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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 03 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  us  s ta r t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   I f  I  can  jus t  conf i rm… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana you –  the  oa th  you took 

yesterday cont inues to  app ly  today.   You unders tand tha t?  10 

MS KWINANA:   I t  con t inues Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  I  can  jus t  check tha t  Ms Mban jwa is  

ready I  see tha t  she is  s t i l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Mov ing  some f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  le t  her  ge t  se t t led  f i rs t .   No,  no  tha t  i s  

f ine .   No tha t  i s  f ine ;  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana  wou ld  l i ke  to  move th is  

morn ing  to  the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  wh ich  you re ferenced  

in  your  ev idence  yesterday and wh ich  I  unders tand f rom 

your  a f f idav i t  in  response to  the  Cha i rperson ’s  Regu la t ion  

10 .6  D i rec t i ve  i s  someth ing  tha t  you fe l t  s t rong ly  about  
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wh i le  you were  a t  SAA,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Can you te l l  us  about  i t  –  why you fe l t  

s t rong ly  about  i t ;  what  i t  was env isaged to  do?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  was in tended to  empower  the  b lack  

peop le  and as  we a l l  know tha t  South  A f r i ca  –  b lack  South  

A f r i cans have long been in  a  d i sadvantaged pos i t ion  and 

there fo re  the  30% set  as ide  was in tended to  a t  leas t  make 

sure  tha t  the  gap is  be ing  br idged.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  10 

MS KWINANA:   And in  fac t  as  I  sa id  yesterday the  30% set  

as ide  was too  l i t t le  cons ider ing  the  demograph ics  o f  South  

A f r i ca .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  i f  i t  had been  up to  you i t  wou ld  have  

been more  than 30%.   

MS KWINANA:   Oh yes de f in i te ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  unders tand f rom your  a f f idav i t  tha t  

you made par t i cu la r  re fe rence  to a  memorandum of  20 

unders tand ing  tha t  was conc luded w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  

Trade and Indust ry.   Can I  take  you  to  tha t?    

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  tha t  i s  in  Exh ib i t  DD33 and i t  i s  

back i n  Ms Kwinana ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  i s  Exh ib i t  1  there  f rom 
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page 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  you can jus t  te l l  us  about  a t  page  

4  in  your  pa ragraph address ing  a t  b  wh ich  is  en t i t led  the  

30% set  as ide  po l i cy  adopted by  SAA dur ing  your  tenure  on  

the  board  o f  SAA.   You exp la in  the re  the  ro le  tha t  the  MOU 

p layed;  cou ld  you  exp la in  tha t  to  us  today p lease? 

MS KWINANA:   I  wou ld  need the  copy o f  the  MOU.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am go ing  to  –  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  f i rs t  

annexure  to  your  a f f idav i t .   But  Ms Kwinana you might  be  10 

aware  the  vers ion  tha t  you gave us  was a  vers ion  tha t  was  

uns igned and then we asked i f  you had a  s igned  vers ion  

and as  we unders tood i t  f rom your  representa t i ve  Ms 

Mban jwa you d id  no t  have a  s igned copy to  hand,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV MBANJ WA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  we managed to  ge t  a  s igned copy  

f rom the  DTI .   So  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  beg leave to  hand tha t  

up  i f  I  may?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  I  suggest  tha t  we mark  i t  Exh ib i t  

DD33.22 because  tha t  w i l l  be  the  new number ing  and then  

i f  I  cou ld  a lso  ask  i f  we cou ld  jus t  hand one to  the  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves  and Ms Kwinana.   Thank you so  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now Ms Kwinana p lease f ree  to  take  a  
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moment  jus t  to  take  a  look a t  th is .   Th is  you w i l l  see  on the  

las t  page o f  the  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apo log ies  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr  you were  ask ing  me to  admi t  

th is?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  Exh ib i t  DD33.2?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry  po in t  22  apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   22?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The memorandum of  

unders tand ing  between the  Depar tment  o f  Trade and  

Indust ry  and the  South  A f r i can A i rways … 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  we might  want  to  say s igned on 18  

May 2015 because tha t  i s  the  s ignature  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes tha t  i s  what  I  was look ing  fo r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry  i t  i s  on  the  las t  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am look ing  fo r  the  da te  here .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   S igned by  –  d id  they s ign  on  the  same 

date?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   There  is  no t  a  da te  f i l l ed  in  by  Ms Myen i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  there  i s  ac tua l l y  la te r  
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cor respondence tha t  re fe rs  to  the  18  May.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  I  am fa i r l y  conf ident .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  say  the  memorandum of  unders tand ing  

between the  Depar tment  o f  Trade and Indust ry  and the  

South  A f r i can A i rways SOC LTD s igned by  Mr  Mzwand i le  

Mas ina  Deputy  M in is te r  on  the  18  May 2015 and s igned by  

Ms Dudu Myen i  Cha i rperson o f  the  SA board  is  adm i t ted  as  

Exh ib i t  DD33.22.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r  I  am indebted.   Ms  10 

Kwinana have you had a  chance to  look  a t  th is  vers ion?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So i f  you  cou ld  jus t  te l l  us  

what  ro le  th is  memorandum of  unders tand ing  on your  

vers ion  p layed in  the  30% set  as ide?  

MS KWINANA:   Th is  memorandum i f  you read  in  the  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe sha l l  we s ta r t  w i th  ge t t ing  

c la r i f i ca t ion  whether  i t  i s  exact ly  the  same as the  uns igned  

one tha t  she p rov ided o r  a re  there  d i f fe rences?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   There  are  some d i f fe rences yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes mate r ia l?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .   No I  jus t  wanted to  

know.  
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MS KWINANA:   So  why do you not  g ive  me both  o f  them? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  sa id  where  the  o ther  was.   I t  i s  your  

annexure  to  your  a f f idav i t  i t  i s  Tab 2  a t  page 11.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  in te r rup ted  wh i l e  Ms Kwinana was t ry ing  

to  answer  a  ques t ion .   I  am sor ry.   So you can cont inue Ms  

Kwinana w i th  your  answer.  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  cons ider ing  the  fac t  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  

i s  say ing  there  are  mater ia l  d i f fe rences between  the  two  

can she po in t  i t  to  me those d i f fe rences so  tha t  I  can be  

ab le  to  respond.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine  she w i l l  do  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  you see the  cha l lenge we had when 

the  uns igned vers ion  was prov ided as  an  annexure  to  your  

a f f idav i t  was tha t  on  i t s  face  i t  appeared to  be  incomple te  

and I  w i l l  g ive  you an example .   I f  you  go to  page 15 o f  

your  bund le  DD33 and you look a t  C lause 4  the re  –  4 .1 .    

ADV MBANJ WA:   Sor ry  the  re ference aga in?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Page 15-  15  o f  Exh ib i t  DD33 wh ich  is  

w i th in  the  memorandum of  unders tand ing  tha t  Ms Kwinana  

prov ided to  the  commiss ion .   Admi t ted ly  she conf i rmed she 20 

d id  no t  have the  s igned vers ion .   But  h is  ve rs ion  do  you 

see on page 15 a t  C lause 4 .1 .5  there  is  a  quest ion  mark?  

MS KWINANA:   Page 15 4 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   1 .5  

MS KWINANA:   Yes 4 .1 .5 .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you see tha t  there  i s  a  quest ion  mark  

there?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then a lso  fu r the r  down on the  page  

you w i l l  see  a t  C lause 4 .2 .6  i t  i s  open –  i t  i s  le f t  b lank.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  when the  commiss ion  rece ived th i s  

f rom you our  impress ion  was tha t  th is  was un l i ke ly  to  be  

the  f ina l  vers ion .   Would  you share  tha t  impress ion?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So when I  say  the re  are  mater ia l  

d i f fe rences there  are  d i f fe rences because th is  I  th ink  we 

can a l l  accept  i s  in  a  less  than comple te  vers ion  and then 

the  s igned ve rs ion  tha t  we were  ab le  to  ob ta in  i s  the  

comple ted  ve rs ion .   Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Hm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  you  w i l l  jus t  say yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So i f  I  cou ld  then re turn  to  

my quest ion .   What  ro le… 20 

MS KWINANA:   Sor ry  be fore  you  go to  the  quest ion .   A re 

you say ing  those are  the  on ly  d i f fe rences between th is  

s igned vers ion  and the  uns igned ve rs ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes the  c lauses tha t  seem to  have been 

not  comple ted  on the  vers ion  tha t  you prov ided  to the  
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commiss ion  are  then f i l l ed  ou t  in  the  s igned vers ion .  

MS KWINANA:   Oh I  see those are  the  two d i f fe rences?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So i f  we can re turn  to  the 

quest ion .   What  ro le  d id  the  MOU in  your  unders tand ing  

p lay  in  the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe do you… 

MS KWINANA:   Then I  w i l l  s t i ck  to  the  uns igned  vers ion  

wh ich  I  saw.   Can  I  qu ick ly  read i t?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh we l l  tha t  i s  –  tha t  i s  what  I  wanted to  

f ind  ou t  whethe r  you ever  saw the  s igned one? 

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r  I  w i l l  s t i ck  to  the  uns igned  

vers ion  tha t  I  submi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  d id  you or  d id  you never  see the  

s igned one before?  

MS KWINANA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  the  f i rs t  t ime you see i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   I  jus t  wanted to  c lear  tha t .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana are  you sure  tha t  you  d id  no t  

s igned vers ion  because i f  you are  no t  su re  you may  want  to  

say you are  no t  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  i f  you  are  su re  p lease do te l l  us .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You are  abso lu te ly  sure  you d id  no t  see  

the  s igned ve rs ion?  

MS KWINANA:   I  am sure  I  d id  no t  see the  s igned ve rs ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am –  I  am sor ry  what  was tha t  las t  

sentence? You –  d id  you… 

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  d id  no t  see the  s igned ve rs ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:   I  w i l l  s t i ck  the  uns igned vers ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r i gh t .   Do  you want  Ms Hofmeyr  to  

repeat  the  quest ion  or  you s t i l l  remember  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Can she a l low me to  read the  uns igned 

vers ion  f i rs t  because I  was read ing  the  s igned  vers ion  

Cha i r?   So can she a l low me to  read the  uns igned  vers ion  

and then she repeats  the  quest ion  a f te r  I  have read the  

uns igned vers ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you wou ld  have read the  uns igned 

vers ion  when you sent  –  when you a t tached i t  to  your  

a f f idav i t .  20 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r  I  want  to  read i t  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  

MS KWINANA:   I  want  to  read i t  aga in  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was the  quest i on  Ms Hofmeyr  how the  

MOU in f luenced her  dec is ion  o r  the  board ’s  dec is ion? 
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ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  in f luenced the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because I  unders tood her  a f f idav i t  to  say  

i t  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Okay have a  look then Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Thanks Cha i r.   In  fac t  Cha i r  a l l  th is  record  

here  f rom number  1  to  number  7 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  uns igned MOU? 

MS KWINANA:   On the  uns igned MOU.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Aha what  about  i t?  10 

MS KWINANA:   Suppor ts  the  b lack  economic  empowerment  

bas ica l l y.  Now as  I  sa id  in  my a f f idav i t  the  30% set  as ide  is  

in tended to  make  sure  tha t  i t  b r idges the  gap between the  

b lacks  and the  wh i tes  so  to  say.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes bu t  I  am –  I  am focuss ing  in  on  the 

30% set  as ide .   Where  in  th is  memorandum of  

unders tand ing  is  the  30% set  as ide  ident i f ied?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  i s  no t  go ing  to  ta lk  about  the  30% set  

as ide  as  the  o the rs  –  the  o ther  compan ies  imp lement  51%.  

The o thers  wh ich  imp lement  30%.   The o the rs  wh ich  20 

imp lement  –  so  bas i ca l l y  what  th is  means is  the  gu ide l ine  

and then the  imp lementa t ion  the re fore  the  30% tha t  we 

were  ta lk ing  about  a t  SAA is  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  th is  

MOU.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana is  i t  your  ev idence tha t  when 
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in  o ther  SOE’s  there  was a  focus on  p rov id ing  

oppor tun i t ies  to  b idders  or  supp l ie rs  who were  more  – 51% 

or  more  le t  us  ca l l  i t  b road ly  b lack  owned tha t  was the  

same as the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  tha t  SAA adopted.  

MS KWINANA:   I t  may not  be  imp lemented exact ly  the  

same but  the  end  resu l t  I  wou ld  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  in tended to  

ach ieve the  same ob jec t i ves .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes bu t  the  imp lementa t ion  i s  qu i te  

impor tan t  because I  –  as  I  unders tand and i t  i s  re f lec ted  in  

the  name se t  as ide .   The idea and we have had ev idence  10 

on je t  fue l  and how i t  p layed out  in  je t  fue l  and we have 

had ev idence on how i t  was p lay ing  ou t  in  Swiss  Por t  was 

tha t  30% of  con t rac ts  wou ld  be  d i rec ted  to  those who 

qua l i f ied  fo r  be ing  BEEE par tners  o f  the  main  con t rac to r.   

Have I  desc r ibed i t  accu ra te ly?  

MS KWINANA:   How you in tended to  imp lement  i t  i f  –  i f  we 

were  successfu l  in  imp lement ing  i t?   Remember  t ha t  we 

were  no t  successfu l  in  imp lement ing  th is  30% se t  as ide .   

And there fo re  i f  we were  success fu l  th is  i s  how we wou ld 

l i ke  i t  to  be  imp lemented.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   We wou ld  say fo r  ins tance c lean ing  has  

been done by  a  wh i te  on ly  company prev ious ly  and then we  

wou ld  say 30% of  tha t  c lean ing  when the  tender  comes  

30% of  tha t  c lean ing  shou ld  be  se t  as ide  so  tha t  b lack  
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peop le  can par t i c ipa te  in  the  30% set  as ide .   That  i s  how 

we in tended to  imp lement  i t  -  they  d id  no t  be ing  met  w i th  

res i s tance.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R igh t .   And i t  was met  w i th  res is tance we  

w i l l  come to  tha t  in  a  moment .   But  do  I  have your  ev idence  

to  be  the  MOU i t se l f  does not  speak to  the  30% se t  as ide ,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   The MOU ta lks  about  the  promot ion  o f  

economic  oppor tun i t ies  to  p rev ious l y  d isadvantaged South  

A f r i cans wh ich  bas i ca l l y  wou ld  be  imp lemented by  pu t t ing 10 

as ide  the  30%.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   So  bas ica l l y  much as  i t  does not  ta lk  

exact ly  about  the  30% Cha i r  bu t  the  who le  a im is  exact ly  

the  same.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Hm.   But  you faced res is tance both  f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury  and f rom the  DTI  when you  t r ied  to  

imp lement  the  30% because they sa id  tha t  wou ld  be  

un lawfu l ,  d id  they  no t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And par t  o f  the  reason I  suggest  tha t  they 

wou ld  have sa id  i t  was un lawfu l  was because o f  a  te rm o f  

the  MOU tha t  was s igned.   So le t  me take you to  tha t  i f  I  
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may?  I t  i s  the  one tha t  we have handed in  th is  morn ing  

and tha t  has been marked as  Exh ib i t  DD33.22.   You see  

those c lauses tha t  were  no t  comple te  on  the  uns igned  

vers ion  tha t  you  gave us  a re  comple ted  on the  s igned 

vers ion  and you w i l l  f ind  them a t  C lause 5  wh ich  is  headed  

Obl iga t ions o f  the  Par t ies .  

MS KWINANA:   Sor ry  33?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana i t  i s  the  document  handed up  

th is  morn ing  so  i t  w i l l  no t  be  in  your  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The s igned one.   The s igned one.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The s igned one ja  –  c lause 5 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   F ind  tha t  and you need to  f ind  C lause 5  

in  tha t  agreement .   Do you have i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  beg ins  w i th  C lause 5 .1  w i th  the  DTI ’s  

ob l iga t ions and then a t  5 .2  i t  se ts  ou t  SAA’s  ob l iga t ions.   

Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  you go over  the  page to  C lause 20 

5 .2 .3  cou ld  you  read fo r  us  what  i s  recorded there  as  

SAA’s  ob l iga t ions? 

MS KWINANA:    

“Engaged w i th  supp l ie rs  who have  

expressed an in te res t  in  supp ly ing  goods  
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and serv i ces  to  SAA wi th in  the  se lec ted  

product  ca tegor ies  to  ga in  ins igh t  in to 

cha l lenges exper ienced and to  exped i te  

reso lu t ion  to  such cha l lenges.   A l l  such  

engagements  remains  sub jec t  to  SAA’s  

Supp ly  Cha in  Management  Po l i cy  and due  

Procurement  Processes. ”  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So i t  i s  based on tha t  c lause tha t  I  say  

the  DTI  and Nat iona l  Treasury  regarded the  30% set  as ide  

as  un lawfu l .   Because what  SAA was ob l iged to  do  here  10 

was to  comply  w i th  Supp ly  Cha in  Management  and due 

procurement  p rocess and as  I  unders tand the  adv i ce  tha t  

SAA rece ived f rom Nat iona l  Treasury  and the  DTI  th is  

sec t ion  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  wou ld  no t  be  in  l ine  w i th  

those requ i rements .   I s  tha t  your  unders tand ing  as  we l l?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.   Ms  Mban jwa.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   I  jus t  wanted –  thank you Cha i r  i f  Ms 

Hofmeyr  cou ld  a l so  read fo r  the  w i tness paragraph 5 .24  o f  20 

the  document .   Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Parag raph 5 .2 .4  reads:  

“Rev iew ex is t ing  cont rac ts  o f  SAA in  o rder  

to  deve lop  a  t ransfo rmat ion  road  maps fo r  

se lec ted  procurement  ca tegor ies”  
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Do you have a  comment  on  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So we have the  same 

unders tand ing  o f  Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  bas is  fo r  res is t ing  the  

30% set  as ide  po l i cy.   I f  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second Ms Hofmeyr.   Ms Mban jwa  

w i th  regard  to  tha t  when you re -examine you cou ld  say 

when Ms Hofmeyr  read to  you th is  i s  what  she read but  

read th is  sec t ion  and then see wha t  the  w i tness has to  say.   

So i t  cou ld  eas i l y  go  in to  re -examine.   Okay a l r igh t .   Le t  us 10 

cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  we –  bo th  have the  same 

unders tand ing  tha t  Nat iona l  Treasury  and the  DTI  regarded  

the  se t  as ide  po l i cy  as  un lawfu l  because  i t  was 

incons is ten t  w i th  the  ex i s t ing  procu rement  po l i cy  

f ramework  and leg is la t ion .   And so  I  wanted to  ask  you why  

then d id  you pers i s t  in  imp lement ing  i t  o r  seek ing  to  

imp lement  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  we wro te  to  Nat iona l  Treasury  and 

requested fo r  gu idance in  respect  o f  th is  imp lementa t ion  o f  20 

the  se t  as ide .   I t  shou ld  s t i l l  be  no ted or  maybe aga in  be  

noted tha t  we cou ld  no t  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .   We 

wro te  a  le t te r  to  Nat iona l  Treasury  to  say we need  

gu idance yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   They responded  and sa id  i t  i s  un lawfu l .   
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So  why d id  you pers i s t  in  t ry ing  to  imp lement  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  we wro te  –  we d id  no t  imp lement  the  

30% set  as ide .   We d id  no t  imp lement  the  30% se t  as ide .   

We wro te  to  Nat iona l  Treasury  and sa id  we needed  

gu idance on how to  imp lement  th is  30% set  as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.    

MS KWINANA:   We d id  no t  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  d id  no t  ask  whether  you 

imp lemented i t .   I  sa id ;  a f te r  Nat iona l  Treasury  sa id  to  you 

i t  i s  un lawfu l  why  d id  you t ry  to  imp lement  i t?  10 

MS KWINANA:   No,  no ,  no  we t r ied  to  imp lement  i t  be fore  

we were  repr imanded by  Nat iona l  Treasury.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay we l l  le t  us  look a t  tha t .   Le t  us  go t  

to  the  le t te r  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury  and fo r  tha t  purpose  

you w i l l  need to  go  to  Exh ib i t  DD19  – 19 [a ] .     

MS KWINANA:   DD19.   Sor ry  where  do  I  ge t  DD19? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh i t  i s  jus t  on  your  r igh t  hand –  le f t  

hand s ide  Ms Kw inana they were  pu t  there  in  an t ic ipa t ion  

th is  morn ing .    

MS KWINANA:   19?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   19  and then where  we w i l l  need to  go  in  

19  is  page 132.16.   So 132.16.    

MS KWINANA:   132.16.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Before  we look a t  the  le t te r  I  wou ld  

jus t  l i ke  to  spend  a  moment  on  the  ev idence o f  Dr  Dahwa 
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be fore  th is  commiss ion .   D id  you fo l low tha t  ev idence? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You d id .   D r.  Dahwa gave ev idence to  the  

commiss ion  tha t  he  had concerns  about  the  un lawfu lness  

o f  the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy.   Were  you aware  tha t  he  had  

those concerns?  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r  he  d id  no t  say  tha t  when we were 

t ry ing  to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   He d id  no t  … 

MS KWINANA:   The concerns I  had the  concerns in  th is  10 

commiss ion  because Dr  Dahwa was go ing  w i th  us  in  

respect  o f  th is  who le  empowerment  and we were  no t  aware  

tha t  he  was concerned.   And in  fac t  i f  he  was concerned he 

wou ld  te l l  us  why  and then cor rec t  and gu ide  us  so  tha t  we 

cou ld  successfu l l y  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  h is  vers ion  be fore  the  commiss ion  is  

tha t  he  had a  lengthy  engagement  w i th  you and Ms  Myen i  

on  Fr iday the  2  October  in  wh ich  he  made i t  c lea r  to  you 

tha t  he  cou ld  no t  in  h is  consc ience s ign  le t te rs  tha t  wou ld  

fac i l i ta te  the  30% set  as ide .   A re  you say ing  tha t  none o f  20 

tha t  ev idence was t rue?  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  no t  t rue  Cha i r.   Where  wou ld  be  the 

le t te rs  –  where  –  the  le t te rs  tha t  he  wou ld  s ign  where  

wou ld  they be  coming f rom?  I  am not  aware  o f  those  

le t te rs  tha t  he  wou ld  s ign .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay because  he sa id  in  h i s  ev idence  

tha t  one o f  the  reasons he was concerned about  the  se t  

as ide  po l i cy  were  these very  le t te rs  tha t  we a re  go ing  to  go  

to .   The Nat iona l  Treasury  le t te r  and the  BBBEE 

Commiss ioner ’s  l e t te r  f rom the  DT I .   You sa id  tha t  you d id  

no t  cont inue to  seek to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  

a f te r  rece iv ing  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  le t te r  and I  sa id  to  

you tha t  we wou ld  go  and see whether  tha t  was indeed the  

case.   Because you w i l l  see  a t  page 132.16 tha t  i s  the 

Nat iona l  Treasury  le t te r.   Can you te l l  us  what  i t  i s  da ted? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  be fore  tha t  can I  ge t  cop ies  o f  those  

le t te rs  tha t  Dr  Dahwa d id  no t  want  to  s ign?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  fo r  now you a re  no t  be ing  asked  

about  them.   Jus t  te l l  –  read the  da te  o f  tha t  le t te r  and 

then i f  and when  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  dea l  w i th  those le t te rs  

we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .   Ms Mban jwa.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  

to  ge t  an  under tak ing  tha t  we wou ld  rece ive  those le t te rs .   

I  do  no t  want  to  ho ld  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wai t  those le t te rs  m ight  no t  rea l l y  be  20 

impor tan t  fo r  now.   So le t  us  see i f  and when they a re  

impor tan t .  

ADV MBANJWA:   Yes bu t  Cha i r  they go  to  the  prob i ty  o f  

the  ev idence o f  Dr  Dahwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  jus t  wa i t  fo r  now.   The quest ion  
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i s  about  someth ing  e l se .   I t  i s  about  what  da te  th i s  le t te r  

i s .   Ms Kwinana do you want  to  –  to  read the  da te  o f  tha t  

le t te r  –  tha t  le t te r  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury.  

MS KWINANA:   The date  i s  28  Sep tember  2015 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  i s  the  da te  we were  focussed on 

yesterday because I  sa id  tha t  there  was a  fa te fu l  week a t  

the  end o f  September  ear l y  October  2015.   28  Sep tember  

i s  the  da te  on  wh ich  the  board  o f  SAA met  and you made  

tha t  dec is ion  to  cance l  the  LSG Sky Chefs  award  and g ive  10 

i t  to  A i r  Chefs .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  tha t  was the  Monday o f  the  week.   

Th is  le t te r  comes  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury  cou ld  you  te l l  us  

who a t  Nat iona l  Treasury  wr i tes  th is  le t te r?  

MS KWINANA:   Ms Mpshe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No i t  i s  wr i t ten  by  somebody f rom the  

Nat iona l  Treasury  who is  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Oh Kenneth  Brown Ch ie f  P rocurement  

Off i ce r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And he is  address ing  i t  to?  

MS KWINANA:   To  Ms Mpshe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Who was the  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

Off i cer  o f  SAA a t  the  t ime,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  focus on 

there  is  i t  i s  the  response to  the  le t te r.   That  i s  the  le t te r  

where  you sought  gu idance,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r.   Th is  i s  no t  the  le t te r  t ha t  we 

sought  gu idance.   In  fac t  how i t  happened was when we 

were  t ry ing  to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide  in  the  

newspapers  B idvest  was compla in ing  tha t  they a re  fo rced  

to  30% set  as ide  and so  on  and so  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who was compla in ing?  

MS KWINANA:   B idvest .  B idvest .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.   And then we rece ived the  

le t te rs  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury  and f rom DTI .   And say ing 

tha t  they have been in fo rmed about  th is  30% set  as ide .   

And then we responded as  the  board .   So bas ica l l y  th is  i s  

no t  the  le t te r  tha t  we responded to .   We responded to  as  

the  board  to  Kenneth  Brown because he wro te  us  a  le t te r  

no t  th is  one but  he  wro te  us  a  le t te r  and then we  

responded.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  th ink  you migh t  be  confus ing  th is  w i th  20 

the  le t te r  o f  the  BEE Commiss ioner  bu t  we w i l l  come back 

to  tha t .   Th is  one says in  the  3  –  the  th i rd  parag raph .  

“Dec is ions tha t  a re  taken by  the  board  to  

encourage t rans format ion  i n  p rocurement  

a re  commendab le .   However  the  SAA board  
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must  no t  opera te  ou ts ide  the  procurement  

lega l  f ramework .   The reso lu t ion  o f  the  

board  to  se t  as ide  the  30% in  i ts  cur ren t  

fo rm is  no t  suppor ted  by  any procurement  

lega l  f ramework  and must  be  s topped w i th  

immedia te  e f fec t . ”  

Le t  us  j us t  s top  there  fo r  a  moment .   The board  had 

a l ready taken by  th is  s tage a  reso lu t ion  to  imp lement  the  

30% set  as ide  had i t  no t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   As  I  have i t  tha t  was on around the  

25  August  2015.   Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So you dec ided you  were  

imp lement ing  i t  then there  was th i s  i ssue tha t  was taken up 

and now Treasury  as  I  have i t  un less  you d i sag ree w i th  me 

is  wr i t ing  here  to  SAA addressed to  the i r  Ch ie f  Execut ive  –  

Ch ie f  –  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  say ing  tha t   

“The reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  to  se t  as ide  the  

30% in  i t s  cu r ren t  fo rm is  no t  suppor ted  by  20 

any procu rement  lega l  f ramework  and must  

be  s topped w i th  immedia te  e f fec t .   You are  

k ind l y  requested to  adv ise  the  board  no t  to  

take  procurement  dec is ions tha t  b r ing  the  

name o f  SAA and Nat iona l  Treasury  in to  
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d is repute . ”  

And then he conc ludes by  say ing :  

“K ind ly  update  me on the  deve lopment  

a round the  30% set  as ide  o f  key  

procu rement  t ransact ions. ”  

So both  Ms Mpshe and Dr  Dahwa ind ica ted  tha t  th is  le t te r  

was brought  to  the  board ’s  a t ten t ion  and desp i te  tha t  on  

the  Fr iday o f  tha t  same week there  was an in te rac t ion  w i th  

Dr  Dahwa wh ich  we w i l l  ge t  in to  in  a  moment .   Do you  

conf i rm tha t  you  met  w i th  h im on Fr iday the  2  October  10 

2015?  

MS KWINANA:   I  cannot  conf i rm Cha i r  bu t  as  I  sa id  i f  you  

can g ive  me the  m inutes  o f  tha t  meet ing  w i th  Dr  Dahwa I  

may be ab le  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    As I  understand i t ,  there were no l imi ts.   

He was cal led up to,  I  th ink i t  was the 6 t h f loor of  the Airways 

Park Bui ld ing on SMS f rom you.   Do you recal l  that? 

MS KWINANA :    An SMS from me? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    What d id the SMS say? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    His evidence was that  he was cal led to a 

meet ing on the 6 t h f loor of  Airways Park Bui ld ing.    

MS KWINANA :    What d id the SMS say Chai r? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  I  am tel l ing you his evidence.   His 

evidence is that  the meet ing – he was cal led to a meet ing on 
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the 6 t h f loor of  Airways Park Bui ld ing.  

MS KWINANA :    Via an SMS message? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  f rom you.    

MS KWINANA :    How do I  cal l  h im by an SMS message? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is not  my quest ion.   I  am asking 

whether you sent  i t?  Whether you have any recol lect ion of  

sending i t?  

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  cannot cal l  h im via an SMS message.  

Def in i te ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   And his evidence is that  he began 10 

a meet ing wi th you and then you were jo ined by Ms Myeni .   

Do you recal l  that? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So did this meet ing take place at  al l  on 

you recol lect ion? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe Ms Hofmeyr . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Maybe you can give me the minutes of  the 

meet ing so that  I  can remember that  yes the meet ing did 

take place and this is what was discussed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  have sa id that  my 

understanding is  that  there are not  any minutes of  that  

meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I  thought maybe i f  you remind her  

what the issues were that  were d iscussed at  the meet ing.   
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That  might  help her to remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  do that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  she remembers the meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  Wel l ,  she certainly has indicated 

al ready Chair  that  she did observe the evidence of  Dr 

Dahwa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So this was setup there.   But  let  me do so 

for completeness purposes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And I  summarise now.  And for the record,  

i t  appears in Dr  Dahwa’s t ranscr ipt  on the 28t h of  June 2019 

and i t  commences at  page 168 of  that  t ranscr ipt .   Dr 

Dahwa’s version of  that  day is broadly the fol lowing.    

 That  you sent  him an SMS cal l ing him to a meet ing on 

the 6t h f loor of  Ai rways Park Bui ld ing.   That  you asked him 

how far he had got  wi th implement ing the 30% speci f ied 

pol icy.   You asked in part icular about  Swissport .    

 Ms Myeni  walked into the meet ing at  a point  and asked 

you for an update and you said that  Dr Dahwa was not  doing 20 

enough to implement the strategy.    

 Ms Myeni  then sa id she wanted to advert ise Dr Dahwa’s 

job.   He was then told to go back to his off ice to draf t  awards 

for the set  aside for Swissport  and for Engen.   

 Swissport  was the part icular contract  that  would have 
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involved the ent i ty cal led Jammicron in the ground handl ing 

that  was to be concluded with Swissport .   And so he went  

and he draf ted le t ters of  award but  he refused to sign them 

because he said i t  was against  his conscience to do so.    

 And the chai r  then suggested that  Ms Myeni ,  that  i t  

should be draf ted for  the act ing CEO, Ms Mpshe to s ign.   At  

that  point ,  Ms Mpshe jo ined the meet ing.    

 You,  Ms Myeni  and as Dr Dahwa’s evidence goes,  t ry to  

convince her to  sign on the basis of  te l l ing her  that  

Swissport  was in favour of  th is  arrangement.   And she 10 

refused to sign i t  and eventual ly said that  she had to leave 

because by now, the meet ing was get t ing late in the day.    

 And on Dr Dahwa’s version that  i t  s tarted in the morning 

and we were now towards the end of  the day.   And his  

evidence is that  when Ms Mpshe was leaving,  she said the 

fol lowing to  h im.  Wel l ,  I  am going to quote f rom Dr Dahwa’s 

t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  he talks about what Ms Mpshe says 

but  I  wi l l  t ry and make that  c lear in  how I  convey i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So Dr Dahwa says this in his evidence 

before the Commission.  

“But  before Ms Mpshe lef t  Chai r,  I  need to conf i rm.   

She said to me in f ront  of  the two board members  
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that :   Dr Dahwa,  you wi l l  be alone in court  should 

this th ing come back.   And i f  you know this is wrong,  

you do not  do i t .    

Ja,  she insisted.    

And the chai r  t r ied to sweet -talk her and say:   No,  

but  you know, i f  anything is to come back,  i t  wi l l  

come back to me as the chai r.    

Then Ms Mpshe st i l l  insisted that :   Dr Dahwa, wi l l  a l l  

your qual i f icat ions,  experience and credent ia ls,  you 

wi l l  have to answer to th is one day and in my view,  10 

i f  you content  and i f  you are qui te sat isf ied that  i t  is 

the wrong to do,  p lease do not  do i t .    

And off  she went. ”  

 That  was his evidence.   He descr ibed the day as 

involving psychological  games.  He went on to give evidence 

to the Commission that  he was told by Ms Myeni  that  the 

EFF would be there on the Monday at  SAA and that  they 

wanted to get  r id  of  people l ike Dr Dahwa who were ant i -

t ransformat ion because they – and that  they wanted to get  

r id of  Zimbabweans.    20 

 And he also test i f ied that  he – that  you,  Ms Kwinana,  

said to him that  he and Ms Mpshe were going to suffer and 

that  he would be discipl ined.   So that  is his vers ion of  what 

happened on that  day.   What is your  response? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink that  is the day where he says the 
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meet ing started roundabout ten in the morning.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And by four  o’c lock the meet ing was st i l l  

cont inuing.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  they were st i l l  cont inuing and went 

on probably to s ix  because that  is when Ms Mpshe said she 

had to leave to go home.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So we calculated a total  of  e ight  hours on 

his version.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  and i f  I  am not  mistaken,  he said at  

some stage,  I  th ink,  he was asked to go to h is off ice and he 

cr ied or something.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  He certainly spoke about being 

dist ressed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  is r ight .   Being dist ressed.   Maybe 

he did not  cry.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  he was very dist ressed . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .about  the demands that  he said were 

being made on him by Ms Kwinana and Ms Myeni .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink,  ja .   That  is the. . .   Ja.   

Ms Kwinana, do you remember that  meet ing? 
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MS KWINANA :    I  do not  remember the meet ing at  al l  Chai r.   

That  is why I  was saying.   I  am sure for such a long meet ing 

that  would start  a t  ten o’clock and end at  four o’c lock,  there 

would be minutes that  would be approved by the people who 

are in that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA :    Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  what  Dr Dahwa says you and Ms Myeni  

were doing in that  meet ing to her,  that  was wrong.   And i f  

you were doing something wrong,  you are not  going to have 10 

minutes for that  meet ing,  obviously.   So not  every meet ing 

has got  minutes.   And certainly meet ings where i l legal  th ings 

are being done, wrong things are being done – people do not  

keep minutes general ly.  

MS KWINANA :    Def in i te ly,  Chai r.   In th is meet ing I  was to  

there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say you were not  there? 

MS KWINANA :    I  was not  there.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Are you sure that  you have a clear 

recol lect ion that  you were not  at  that  meet ing or  is the 20 

posi t ion that  you cannot  remember?  Maybe you were in that  

meet ing,  maybe you were not? 

MS KWINANA :    Def in i te ly,  Chai r  I  was not  in the meet ing.   I f  

I  was in the meet ing,  I  would remember that  event .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you do not  have any recol lect ion of  him 
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saying to you that  his conscience would let  h im do that  you 

were demanding of  him? 

MS KWINANA :    Def in i te ly no.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  not . . .   But  as I  understand your  

evidence.   You are not  saying you cannot recal l .   You are 

saying that  did not  happen because you were not  in that  

meet ing.  

MS KWINANA :    That  did not  happen Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And d id you ever  come to learn that  he 

was resist ing signing let ters of  award to faci l i tate the 30% 10 

set-aside pol icy because his conscience would not  a l low him 

to do that? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  do not  even understand these 

let ters of  award that  Dr Dahwa is ta lk ing about because the 

let ter of  award would emanate f rom a due procurement 

process.   So that  is  why I  wanted to see these let ters that  

Dr Dahwa is refus ing to sign.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, they would not  emerge f rom 

a due procurement process because one of  the contractors 

that  you wanted to implement the 30% set -aside pol icy,  was 20 

Swissport .    

 And as we t raversed at  length yesterday,  in 2015 and 

2016 no procurement process was fol lowed at  for Swissport .   

So there would be no procurement process.    

 What there was,  on the evidence that  we looked at  
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yesterday and to the lead up of  th is meet ing,  was the 

decision by the Board of  SAA on the 25t h of  August  to  

implement a 30% set-aside pol icy.    

 Communicat ion f rom Nat ional  Treasury on the 

28t h  of  September 2015 that  that  must  be stopped with 

immediate effect .    

 A meet ing on Fr iday that  week on Dr Dahwa’s vers ion 

where he was pressur ised into doing so and implement ing i t .   

And your response saying that  he was going to be 

discipl ined and that  he would suffer.    10 

 And then thereaf ter,  short ly  thereaf ter,  he is  d iscip l ined.   

He is removed and he is replaced.   Ms Kwinana, who 

replaced him? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Who replaced Dr Dahwa? 

CHAIRPERSON :    One second.  Ms Mbanjwa.  

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  just  want  you to give 

us a chance Chair  to re-examine on this point .   The evidence 

leader,  Ms Hofmeyr has the evidence of  yesterday 

incorrect ly.   There was a procurement process for Swissport  20 

but  we wi l l  leave that  for re-examinat ion.   She is wrong on 

evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you.    
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Who replaced Dr Dahwa? 

MS KWINANA :    Lester Peter.   I  do not  know.. .  acted in his 

posi t ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  so when Dr Dahwa was suspended 

for  the discipl inary charges that  were brought against  him, 

Ms Lester Peter took his posi t ion.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Mr Lester Peter is the person who 

sent  on the 15t h o f  December,  we looked at  last  – yesterday,  

the 15t h of  December 2015 – that  Tr ipart i te Agreement  that  10 

was going to be concluded that  you sa id you have not  seen 

before,  between Swissport /SAA and a yet  to be selected BEE 

suppl ier who was going to get  30% of  the cont ract .   Do you 

remember seeing that  for the f i rst  t ime yesterday? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   So where we are at  the moment is  

you,  as I  understand i t ,  could not  understand how a let ter of  

award could ar ise in th is ci rcumstance.   And I  am put t ing to 

you,  that  set  of  facts makes i t  c lear,  to me at  least ,  how i t  

could ar ise.   I t  was a board decision that  th is pol icy would be 20 

implemented and now you were checking up on whether i t  

was being implemented.   Do you have a response to that? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  at  SAA, the let ter  of  awards ar ises 

f rom a due procurement process.   That  is why I  am surpr ised 

about these let ters of  awards that  Dr Dahwa is saying he 
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refused to sign because the award let ters would come from a 

due procurement process.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So when Mr Lester Peter sent  the draf t  

contract  faci l i tat ing the 30% set -aside pol icy of  the board on 

the 15t h of  December 2015, was he act ing i r regular ly? 

MS KWINANA :    Was that  s igned Chair? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry.   My quest ion . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Before we can he was act ing i rregular ly or  

not ,  we need to take the process up to the t ime he has to 

sign.    10 

 Now the process would be:   Was there a tender?  Was i t  

advert ised?  Was the procurement process fol lowed?  Was 

the award given?  Was the contract  awarded?  Was the 

contract  s igned?   

 So al l  of  these.   And then – and therefore,  we would say,  

i f  for instance there is a  draf t  that  does not  ta lk to that  whole 

process,  then that  is i r regular.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What  is your  knowledge, Ms Kwinana?  

Did a procurement process proceed, the 15 December 2015 

draf t  agreement that  was sent  to Swissport  by the act ing 20 

procurement off icer of  SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  that  agreement,  draf t  agreement I  

saw i t  for the f i rst  t ime here.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  was not  my quest ion.   To your 

knowledge, was there a procurement process fol lowed before 
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that  agreement,  which I  accept  your  evidence yesterday was 

you saw i t  for the f i rst  t ime yesterday . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know.  I  do not  know Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   But  you would have wanted to 

check before any agreement was entered into wi th  Swissport  

because you are concerned to ensure that  procurement is  

properly fo l lowed.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    So let  us go back to your evidence that  

you have no recol lect ion of  that  meet ing.   You say i t  d id not  10 

happen.  Is that  your version? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    You say i t  was not  communicated then or  

since then that  Dr Dahwa could not  in good conscience do 

what you are asking him to do.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying Chai r.   I  def in i te ly  was not  in 

that  meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  my.. .  that  was not  the quest ion.   Did i t  

ever come to your knowledge that  Dr Dahwa was saying he 

could not  in good conscience do what you were requi r ing of  20 

him to do? 

MS KWINANA :    When he was test i fy ing here.   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Here?  That  is  the f i rst  t ime i t  came to 

your knowledge.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay let  us go to  an emai l  that  you wrote 

to Ms Myeni  a few days af ter your  2n d of  October meet ing.   

You wi l l  f ind that  in Dr Dahwa’s bundle.   I  do not  th ink you 

had that  before.   So i f  we could just  have assistance.   That  

is Exhibi t  BD16 and we wi l l  p ick i t  up at  page 240.    

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Two, four,  zero.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Let  us maybe start  at  page 239,  actual ly,  

i f  we may? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So on Dr Dahwa’s version,  the meet ing 

that  lasted for eight  hours or thereabout and he descr ibed i t  

as having involved psychological  games being played wi th 

him was on Fr iday,  the 2n d of  October.   Now what  you wi l l  

f ind on page 239 Ms Kwinana is an emai l  that  you sent  to  

Ms Myeni  on the 12t h of  October 2015.   Do you see that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you say. . .   I ts subject  is complaint  

let ter and you say:  

“Dear Chairperson.   Please f ind my let ter o f  

complaint  which is sel f -explanatory for your act ion.   

Best  regards Yakhe Kwinana.”  
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 And then i f  you go over the page, is the at tachment  to 

that  emai l .   Do you see that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you recal l  th is  let ter of  complaint? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  the let ter o f  complaint  suggests that 

some of  the evidence you have given this morning 

Ms Kwinana is fa lse.   The f i rst  th ing that  indicates that  your 10 

evidence is fa lse is because you begin the let ter wi th Dear  

Chairperson.    

 May 18,  2015 was a histor ic day for  South Af r ican 

Airways where you have signed the memorandum of  

understanding on behal f  of  SAA with the Department of  

Trade and Indust ry,  commit t ing SAA to support  DTI  

Indust r ia l isat ion.    

 Your evidence ear l ier was that  you had not  seen 

18 May 2015 MOU.  Do you remember giving that  evidence? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    You clear ly had seen i t ,  had you not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So that  evidence was false.   What 

you then go on to do is  you talk  about  President  Zuma’s 

State of  the Nat ion Address and his reference to 30% set-
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aside.   And then I  would l ike to pick i t  up,  in  the last 

paragraph of  that  page before the numbering starts because 

this is where you start  to lodge your complaints against  

Dr Dahwa.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You wrote the fol lowing:  

“Having noted al l  th is,  i t  is sad for me to seek 

answers f rom your Chai rperson wherein part icular,  I  

would l ike to  report  the fol lowing about  Dr  Masimba 

Dahwa.  10 

1.  He l ied that  the Jet  Fuel  Tender is inclusive of  

s ix st reams whereas on further enquiry the Jet  Fuel  

Tender is just  supply of  jet  fuel .    

2.  I  use the above l ies to communicate that  th is 

tender has s ix s t reams to SMME’s to whom the 

board awarded the 15% tender of  Jet  Fuel . ”  

 So I  am just  going to pause there.   We did have 

evidence back in  June of  last  year  about  how there was 

steps to implement the set -as ide in  the jet  fuel  context .   I  am 

just  reminding us that  that  is where that  comes in the 20 

evidence of  the Commission.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    She goes. . .   Ms Kwinana, you go on at  3.  

“3.  These l ies that  I  communicated to a room with 

more than 60 people has an effect  on br inging my 
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name, the chai rperson’s name,  SAA and the 

governments’ name into disrepute as there are now 

enqui r ies where serv ice providers want to know the 

way forward in  respect  of  log ist ics and other  

st reams as communicated by mysel f  as per the 

misleading informat ion provided by Dr Dahwa.  

4.  He also l ied and made the chai rperson to 

bel ieve that  the award let ters to tenderers were 

signed whereas there were no let ters. ”  

 Those are the award let ter that  a moment ago you said 10 

you had no knowledge of  and could not  exist  because 

procurement would have to be fol lowed beforehand.   

 Paragraph 5:  

“5.  When asked about the status of  the board 

resolut ions implementat ion he l ied and said that  the 

delays are wi th Legal .    

I  subsequent ly asked Legal  who informed me in the 

presence of  Dr Dahwa that  they are wai t ing for 

Dr Dahwa.  

6.  He t ravel led wi th us on Transformat ional  Road 20 

shows and when we were communicat ing the board 

decisions,  he also c lapped hands knowing very wel l  

that  he would not  wri te the award let ters which I  

later discovered that  he would not  wri te as he said,  

“my conscience does not  al low me”.”  
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 Let  me just  pause there.   A moment  ago Ms Kwinana you 

gave evidence that  said that  you d id not  know that  that  was 

his issue wi th the award let ters and you heard his evidence 

in th is Commission.   I  put  i t  to you that  your evidence ear l ier 

was false.   What is your response? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  had forgot ten about th is let ter that  I  

wrote.   In th is regard,  I  have . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Clear ly,  Ms Kwinana . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    In th is let ter I  detract .   I  stand by the let ter 

that  I  wrote.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry?  What?  You stand by? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    The let ter.  

MS KWINANA :    By the let ter that  I  wrote.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  do not  know what that  means.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What does i t  mean that  you stand by i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Does that  mean . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because i t  is a completely  di fferent  

vers ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Does that  mean you now remember the 20 

meet ing that  you said you did not  a t tend?  

MS KWINANA :    I  st i l l  do not  th ink that  was the meet ing.   I  

th ink a l l  these things t ranspired through the road shows, not  

through the meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  me t ry th is.   Previously,  at  my 
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request ,  Ms Hofmeyr read Dr Dahwa’s evidence,  you know, a 

substant ia l  part  to  indicate what,  according to him, happened 

at  that  meet ing.   The idea behind that  was that  i t  could help 

you remember whether you were part  of  that  meet ing.   You 

said you def in i te ly  were not  part  of  that  meet ing.    

 So now Ms Hofmeyr has referred us to a let ter or  an 

emai l  that  you sent  to Ms Dudu Myeni in which you refer to 

Dr Dahwa and the award let ters.    

 And of  course,  his evidence was that  he refused to s ign 

two award let ters.   And here you refer to him having said his 10 

conscience did not  al low h im.   

 Now that  seems to – what is wri t ten here – seems to t ie 

up wi th what Dr Dahwa says accord ing to the ev idence that  

was read by Ms Hofmeyr about a meet ing where he says he 

was required by you and Ms Myeni  to sign two let ters,  award 

let ters and his conscience would not  a l low him to do that .   

And he was dist ressed and so on.    

 But  at  least ,  there are references here which suggests 

that  you seemed to or you may have known about some of  

these things.   What do you say? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  would remember one of . . .   I  do not  

know whether to  say the award let ter or the agreement.   

Maybe i t  would not  be the award let ter.   The reason why I  am 

saying i t  would not  be the award let ter is because I  

remember very wel l  the one for the Jet  Fuel  where basical ly  
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Engen agreed that  f rom the supply that  they are g iving to  

SAA, they are wi l l ing to dispose of  15% of  that  suppl ies and 

give i t  to the smal ler companies.    

 So which means,  therefore,  that  the agreement between 

SAA and Engen where the tender process was fol lowed 

would st i l l  cont inue as i t  is.    

 And therefore – that  is why I  am saying,  maybe i t  is  not  

an award,  i t  is an agreement between now Engen and the 

BEE companies.    

 Then that  one,  our understanding and Dr Dahwa made 10 

us to bel ieve that  he is going to lead i t .   And please 

Ms Hofmeyr,  understand that  the award fol lowed a 

procurement process f rom the beginning up to the t ime that  

Engen was awarded that  tender.    

 And then now, we negot iated wi th  Engen to say:   Can 

you please f rom the remaining tender,  f rom the remaining 

per iod that  is remaining to the expi ry of  your contract ,  can 

you give 15% to these black companies.    

 In fact ,  I  remember that  there were about 60 odd b lack 

companies that  were not  knocking on SAA’s doors to  get  the 20 

tender.   And therefore,  Dr Dahwa . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  does al l  of  th is – are you saying al l  of  

th is,  to say,  you remember the meet ing and you did at tend i t  

or are you saying al l  of  th is,  to say,  you did not  at tend the 

meet ing? 
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MS KWINANA :    No,  Chair  I  d id not  at tend the meet ing.   I t  

was not  the meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    We were doing the road shows throughout 

the country.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh. . .   H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    And then now we would,  in fact ,  d iscuss l ike 

wi th a hal l  fu l l  of  people to say this  is  how this  th ing is going 

to happen.  So basical ly,  I  would not  say there was a 

meet ing especia l ly the meet ing that  Ms Hofmeyr was talk ing 10 

about.   So basica l ly,  what I  was talk ing about but what was  

Dr Dahwa promised that .    

 Now that  we have negot iated wi th  Engen, Engen now 

can g ive the 15% out  of  thei r  own wi l l .   Remember that  th is  

is about  negot iat ions because the company that  has got  the 

tender wi th SAA is Engen and therefore,  we cannot enforce 

anything.   That  is  why we were negot iat ing wi th Engen and 

the other companies and B idvest .    

 So basical ly,  Dr Masimba Dahwa was supposed to say,  

he does not  want to do that .   And in fact ,  i f  he says he does 20 

not  want  to do that .   Remember that  the procurement 

process is  not  tampered wi th in th is exercise that  we are 

doing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr,  before – but  before that .   Ms 

Mbanjwa.  
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MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Chai r,  I  just  want to put  

on record that  on my own evaluat ion,  I  do not  bel ieve that  

th is let ter,  th is emai l  that  has been wri t ten by Ms Kwinana is  

a conf i rmat ion of  the fact  that  there was that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Ms Mbanjwa.  That  you can deal  wi th  

in re-examinat ion.   Now i t  is l ike you are tel l ing the wi tness 

how to respond to quest ions on this  let ter.  

MS MBANJWA :    No,  I  was going to ask Chai r  that  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Reserve i t  for re-examinat ion.  10 

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  you do not  have to ask for i t .   I  g ive – 

I  to ld you,  I  wi l l  a l low you to re-examine when the wi tness 

has – when Ms Hofmeyr has f in ished.    

 So you do not  have to ask for i t  each t ime.  We wi l l  g ive 

you the opportuni ty.   What I  do not  know whether i t  wi l l  be 

today or i t  wi l l  have to be some other date,  depending on 

when we f in ish.    

 Okay.   So you just  make a note of  a l l  the issues that  you 

want to clar i fy dur ing re-examinat ion.  20 

MS MBANJWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  do want to just  spend a 

l i t t le bi t  more t ime on this meet ing because,  you see,  i t  is  

not  a  meet ing i f  i t  has occurred,  that  I  want to suggest  to  
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you,  could easi ly be forgot ten by the people involved.    

 And the reason I  say that  is,  i f  Dr Dahwa’s version is  

correct  -  and I  might  add,  the part  of  the meet ing where he 

says Ms Mpshe jo ined him, Ms Mpshe conf i rms in her  

evidence.   Right .    

 But  that  type of  meet ing that  caused such psychological  

d ist ress to one of  the part ic ipants,  is not  a meet ing that  

people easi ly forget .    

 I  want  to put  that  to you.   Would you accept  that  i f  

somebody in a meet ing experiences severe psychological  10 

dist ress by i t  and i t  last  for e ight  hours,  is not  the type of  

meet ing that  people easi ly forget  having been part  of? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  would also not  forget  that  meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right ,  r ight .   That  type of  meet ing would 

be in your memory,  would i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And your ev idence today is,  despi te  

having seen th is emai l  that  was days la te r  on  the  fo l low ing 

Fr iday.    You s t i l l  ma in ta in  tha t  you d id  no t  a t tend tha t  

meet ing  w i th  h im,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t  and do you a l so  main ta in  tha t  he  

was not  to ld  a t  tha t  meet ing  tha t  the  EFF were  go ing  to  be  

coming to  SAA tha t  next  Monday and tha t  he  must  be  

fear fu l  because they were  there  to  ac t  aga ins t  peop le  who  
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were  an t i - t ransformat ion  and fo re igners ,  Z imbabweans,  l i ke  

h im.   D id  tha t  no t  occur?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  was not  a t  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  tha t  no t  occur?  

MS KWINANA:    I  was not  a t  tha t  meet ing ,  I  do  no t  know i f  

i t  d id  occur  o r  no t ,  I  was not  a t  the  meet ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   You see,  Dr  Dahwa was so  

d is t ressed by  tha t  th rea t  tha t  he  d id  no t  go  to  work  the  

next  Monday and ins tead he wro te  an  emai l  to  h is  l ine 

manager,  Mr  Wol f  Meyer.   He cop ied  i t  to  Ms Mpshe,  who  10 

had a t tended the  meet ing  w i th  you on the  2n d ,  the  prev ious 

Fr iday,  and he re ferenced tha t  meet ing  and he re fe renced  

the  fac t  tha t  he  was too  a f ra id  to  come to  work .   Does tha t  

no t  jog  your  memory  a t  a l l?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  your  ev idence today is  desp i te  

your  own emai l  on  i t s  face  re ferenc ing  the  th ings  tha t  he  

sa id  took p lace in  tha t  meet ing  and a  subsequent  emai l ,  I  

w i l l  take  you to  now,  in  wh ich  he  ta lks  about  the  ve ry  th rea t  

and the  fac t  tha t  he  met  w i th  two board  members  the  20 

prev ious Fr iday.   You s t i l l  ma in ta in  to  th is  Commiss ion  you 

d id  no t  pa r t i c ipa te  in  tha t  meet ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   Le t  us  go  to  the  emai l .   I t  i s  a  

few pages back in  the  w i tness bund le  o f  Mr  Dahwa wh ich  is  
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DD16 and you w i l l  p ick  i t  up  a t  page 236.  

CHAIRPERSON:    236?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   236,  the  same one,  DD16.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Dr  Dahwa one.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  contemporaneous ev idence a t  the  

t ime,  th is  emai l ,  wr i t ten  a t  747 in  the  morn ing  on  Monday 

the  5  October  by  Dr  Dahwa to  Mr  Wol f  Meyer  and Ms Thu l i  

Mpshe,  says the  fo l low ing:  

“Dear  S i r,  fo l low ing the  meet ing  be tween the  two  

board  members  and I  on  Fr iday 2  October  2015 I  10 

was adv ised tha t  EFF was coming to  A i rways Park  

today,  Monday 5  October  to  demonst ra te .   I  was  

adv ised tha t  they  w i l l  be  demonst ra t ing  tha t  there  is  

no  t ransfo rmat ion  a t  SAA because o f  peop le  l i ke  me 

in  sen ior  pos i t ions  as  there  is  no  South  A f r i cans  

ho ld ing  such pos i t ions  in  Z imbabwe.   See ing  the  

recent  v io lence  aga ins t  fo re ign  na t iona ls  I  fee l  

endangered.   As  you a re  aware  o f  these  

demonst ra t ions by  EFF and tha t  they are  ta rge t ing  

“peop le  l i ke  me who a re  non-South  A f r i cans ye t  20 

ho ld ing  sen ior  pos i t ions  a t  SAA”?  I  do  no t  f ind  i t  

sa fe  to  p roceed to  the  o f f i ce  th i s  morn ing  aga ins t  

the  adv ice  I  was g iven by  the  two board  members  I  

met  on  Fr iday.   I  awa i t  you r  adv ice  and d i rec t ion . ”  

Do you s t i l l  pers is t  tha t  you d id  no t  a t tend tha t  meet ing ,  Ms  
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Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  need to  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  you have  

been d ishonest  w i th  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  be fore  tha t .   Ms Kwinana,  jus t  

re f lec t  p roper ly.   Here  is  a  s i tua t ion  where  a  sen ior  

member  o f  the  management  o f  SAA,  Dr  Dahwa,  has g iven 

ev idence a long the  l ines  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  read  to  you  

ear l ie r  on  about  a  meet ing  where  he  says you and Ms 

Myen i  demanded  and pressur i sed  h im to  s ign  le t te rs  o f  10 

awards tha t  he  cons ide red to  be  wrong,  i l l ega l ,  he  sa id  h is  

consc ience wou ld  no t  a l low h im – sa id  he  was ve ry  

d is t ressed and he  says Ms Mpshe came in  a t  some s tage a t  

the  meet ing  and Ms Mpshe has come befo re  th is  

Commiss ion  and under  oa th  conf i rmed tha t  she came in to  

the  meet ing  and  you and Ms Myen i  were  the re  w i th  Dr  

Dahwa and she has conf i rmed tha t  par t  o f  the  meet ing  tha t  

happened when she was there .   Now Ms Hofmeyr  has  

re fer red  you to  an  emai l  da ted  5  October  2015 f rom Dr  

Dahwa to  h is  superv i so r  o r  whoever,  Mr  Wol f  Meyer.  20 

Monday -  the  5  October  was the  Monday,  the  mee t ing  tha t  

he  is  ta lk ing  about  he  says happened on the  Fr iday,  th ree  

days be fore  tha t .   So every th ing  is  f resh  in  h is  m ind.   He is  

wr i t ing  to  h is  sen io r  and he ta lks  about  hav ing  had a  

meet ing  w i th  two  board  members  on  tha t  F r iday.   In  the 
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emai l  he  does not  ment ion  who they are  bu t  he  has 

ment ioned the  ev idence who they are  and he says tha t  you 

to ld  h im tha t  the  EFF was go ing  to  have a  demonst ra t ion  

aga ins t  peop le  l i ke  h im ho ld ing  sen ior  pos i t ions  in  SAA 

who were  an t i - t ransfo rmat ion  and fo re igners  and why wou ld  

th is  man fabr i ca te  a l l  o f  th is  aga ins t  you?  What  d id  he 

have aga ins t  you to  fabr i ca te  a l l  o f  th is  because i f  you 

were  no t  in  tha t  meet ing ,  i t  means he is  fabr ica t ing  a l l  o f  

th is .   So I  jus t  want  you to  re f lec t  p roper ly  whethe r  rea l l y  

you are  say ing  –  you are  s t i ck ing  to  your  ev idence tha t  you 10 

were  no t  in  tha t  meet ing  or  whether  when you  re f lec t  

p roper ly  you may  have been in  tha t  meet ing  o r  you were  in  

tha t  meet ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  there  i s  no  way tha t  I  w i l l  fo rge t  

such a  meet ing .   I  was not  in  tha t  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  Dr  Dahwa is  jus t  fa lse ly  imp l ica t ing  

you in  what  he  says you and Ms Myen i  d id  o r  sa id  to  h im in  

tha t  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    He is  fa lse ly  imp l ica t ing  me,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Ms Mpshe ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she  20 

conf i rms a t  leas t  some –  those th ings tha t  happened wh i le  

she was a t  tha t  meet ing ,  she i s  a lso  fa lse ly  imp l ica t ing  

you?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr,  you had asked a  quest ion .   
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I  am sor ry,  I  jus t  wanted to  g ive  Ms Kwinana rea l l y  an  

oppor tun i ty  to  re f lec t  and dec ide  whethe r  she s t i cks  w i th  

her  ev idence tha t  she was not  a t  th is  meet ing  bu t  you  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  was s imp ly  go ing  to  fo l low tha t ,  

Cha i r,  by  ind ica t ing  to  Ms Kwinana tha t  we w i l l  l i ke ly  a rgue 

in  due course  tha t  you have been d i shonest  in  the 

ev idence you have g iven in  res is t ing  aga ins t  a l l  th is  

overwhe lm ing ev idence po in t ing  to  the  fac t  tha t  you were  

there ,  you nonethe less  dogged ly  ins is t  you were  no t  and 10 

tha t  tha t  i s  fa lse  and d i shonest .   What  i s  you r  response to  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  I  was not  in  tha t  meet ing .   

So i f  you  want  to  say what  I  am say ing  is  f a lse  and 

d ishonest ,  i t  i s  your  own prerogat ive ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Le t  us  then go  –  you were  ve ry  –  you  

sa id  you s tand by  the  le t te r  tha t  you wro te  on  the  9 

October  tha t  you have been shown now,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  le t te r,  as  I  read i t ,  and I  want  to  20 

check i f  we have the  same unders tand ing ,  expresses a  

leve l  o f  an imos i ty  towards Dr  Dahwa tha t  I  wou ld  descr ibe  

as  ex t reme,  com ing f rom you.   Do you ag ree w i th  tha t  

assessment?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 51 of 279 
 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  no t  ex t reme an imos i ty?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  a t  a l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Not  a t  a l l ,  okay.   Le t  us  read what  he 

sa id .   Le t  us  go  to  page 241,  i t  i s  in  the  same bund le ,  we  

are  in  DD16 and i t  i s  jus t  the  second page o f  the  le t te r  that  

you wro te  to  Ms Myen i  on  the  9  October  2015.   Can I  jus t  

be fore  we go to  what  you wro te?   You say i t  does not  

express ex t reme an imos i ty  to  Dr  Dahwa.   How wou ld  you  

desc r ibe  your  fee l ings  to  Dr  Dahwa a t  tha t  s tage?  

MS KWINANA:    No fee l ings  a t  a l l ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    None a t  a l l?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.   He was jus t  the  head o f  

p rocu rement  and  you were  jus t  dea l ing  w i th  h im l i ke  you  

wou ld  dea l  w i th  any manager,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  le t  us  see what  you sa id  to  Ms 

Myen i .   We wi l l  p ick  i t  up  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 241 under  

the  bu l le t  po in t s .   You say:  

“F rom the  a forego ing  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  there  is  no  20 

commi tment  on  the  par t  o f  Dr  Dahwa to  the  

reso lu t ions o f  the  Durban Road Show. ”  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  where  is  th is?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies .   So we are  a t  241.   You w i l l  

see  some bu l le ts  sor t  o f  two th i rds  o f  the  way down and I  
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am read ing  f rom the  paragraph be low tha t ,  “From the  

a forego ing . . .  

“F rom the  a forego ing  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  there  is  no  

commi tment  on  the  par t  o f  Dr  Dahwa to  the  

reso lu t ions o f  the  Durban Road Show.   No pos i t i ve  

ou tcome has eventuated s ince  we  went  on  a  road  

show judg ing  by  numerous enqu i r ies  f rom wou ld-be  

serv i ce  prov iders  tha t  have gone unanswered.   The  

s i tua t ion  as  i t  p resents  i t se l f  amply  demonst ra tes  

tha t  Dr  Dahwa is  he l l -bent  on  sabotag ing  and  10 

dera i l ing  the  t ransformat iona l  agenda  o f  the  presen t  

government  in  genera l  and tha t  o f  SAA in  par t i cu la r  

wh i le  the  SAA board  is  do ing  a l l  in  i t s  power  to  

t rans la te  government ’s  in ten t  o f  economic  

empowerment  in to  concre te  rea l i t y  to  ex t r i ca te  the  

A f r i can majo r i t y  f rom the  quagmi re  o f  pover ty,   Dr  

Dahwa is  equa l ly  do ing  h is  best  to  keep the  same 

peop le  in  economic  bondage.   He is  pa r t  o f  s in is te r  

re t rogress ive  agenda wh ich  is  a imed a t  revers ing  

the  t ransfo rmat ion  agenda o f  the  present  20 

government .   H is  behav iour  smacks o f  

insubord ina t ion  and consp i racy  aga ins t  the  SAA 

board .   H is  puru len t  a t t i tude may be loca ted in  the  

fac t  tha t  he  does  not  share  the  agony o f  the  peop le  

o f  South  A f r i ca  who have emerged  f rom centur ies  o f  
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economic  depr iva t ion  and h is  f reedom was bo rn  o f  

s t rugg le .   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  i ron ic  tha t  he  is  sabotag ing  

SAA tha t  appo in ted  h im to  such a  sen ior  pos i t ion  

essent ia l l y  b i t ing  the  hands tha t  feeds h im.   Th i s  

leaves me wi th  no  o ther  op t ion  except  to  

recommend tha t  the  s t rongest  poss ib le  ac t ion  be  

taken aga ins t  h im. ”  

Ms Kwinana,  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  tha t  i s  no t  wr i t ten  about  

somebody in  respect  o f  whom you had an ind i f fe ren t  

a t t i tude as  your  ev idence a  few moments  ago suggested.   10 

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  s t i l l  take  i t ,  Cha i r,  as  ind i f fe ren t  in  the 

sense tha t  there  w i l l  a lways be some d isagreements  

be tween the  jun io r  and h is  o r  her  sen io r  bu t  tha t  does not  

mean tha t  there  i s  a  –  what  words  d id  you use,  an imos i ty?   

No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  he was jus t  average …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana –  I  am so r ry,  Ms Hofmeyr,  

a re  you say ing  to  me you want  me  to  be l ieve  tha t  you had 

no s t rong fee l ings  aga ins t  Dr  Dahwa when you wro te  an  20 

emai l  in  such s t rong negat ive  te rms?  Th is  emai l  i s  wr i t ten  

in  very  s t rong,  negat ive  te rms about  and aga ins t  Dr  Dahwa,  

you want  to  te l l  me tha t  you d id  no t  have any  s t rong 

negat ive  fee l ings  towards h im? 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  f rom t ime to  t ime there  w i l l  be  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 54 of 279 
 

d isagreement  be tween the  sen ior  and the  jun io r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  know tha t ,  Ms Kwinana,  do  no t  te l l  

me tha t .   My quest ion  is  a re  you say ing  to  me tha t  the 

s t rong words you used here ,  negat ive  words abut  and  

aga ins t  Dr  Dahwa do not  re f lec t  tha t  you had  s t rong 

negat ive  aga ins t  h im?  I s  tha t  what  you want  me to 

be l ieve?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cont inue,  Ms Hofmeyr.   Wel l ,  be fore  you  

proceed,  le t  me ask th is  quest ion .   I  mean,  Ms Kwinana,  10 

you say in  th is  paragraph tha t  Ms  Hofmeyr  read,  you are  

say ing  tha t  wh i le  the  SAA – you say:  

“F rom the  a forego ing  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  there  is  no  

commi tment  on  the  par t  o f  Dr  Dahwa to  the  

reso lu t ions o f  the  Durban Road Show.   No pos i t i ve  

ou tcome has eventuated s ince  we  went  on  a  road  

show judg ing  by  numerous enqu i r ies  f rom wou ld-be  

serv i ce  prov iders  tha t  have gone unanswered.   The  

s i tua t ion ,  as  i t  p resents  i t se l f ,  amply  demonst ra tes  

tha t  Dr  Dahwa is  he l l -bent  on  sabotag ing  and  20 

dera i l ing  the  t ransformat iona l  agenda  o f  the  presen t  

government  in  genera l  and tha t  o f  SAA in  par t i cu la r  

wh i le  the  SAA board  is  do ing  a l l  in  i t s  power  to  

t rans la te  government ’s  in ten t  o f  economic  

empowerment  in to  concre te  rea l i t y  to  ex t r i ca te  the  
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A f r i can major i t y  f rom the  quagmi re  o f  pover ty,  Dr  

Dahwa is  equa l ly  do ing  h is  best  to  keep the  same 

peop le…”  

That  i s  the  A f r i can peop le .  

“…in  economic  bondage. ”  

Th is  i s  an  A f r i can person tha t  you are  ta l k ing  about .   Th is  

i s  a  pe rson f rom Zimbabwe,  b ro thers  and s is te rs  who have 

su f fe red  under  co lon ia l i sm,  who have su f fe red  under  the  

wh i te  ru le .   Th is  i s  an  A f r i can pe rson tha t  you are  ta lk ing 

about ,  Ms Kwinana.   You are  say ing  wh i le  you are  t ry ing  to  10 

empower  economica l l y  b lack  peop le  in  South  A f r i ca ,  you 

are  say ing  he  is  do ing  h is  best  to  keep A f r i can peop le  in  

economic  bondage.   You say:  

“He is  par t  o f  s in is te r  re t rogress ive  agenda wh ich  is  

a imed a t  revers ing  the  t ransformat ion  agenda o f  the  

present  government .   H is  behav iour…”  

You say.  

“…smacks o f  insubord ina t ion  and consp i racy  

aga ins t  the  SAA board . ”  

You say:  20 

“H is  a t t i tude may  be loca ted in  the  fac t  tha t  he  does  

not  share  the  agony o f  the  peop le  o f  South  A f r i ca”  

He is  f rom Zimbabwe,  he  has su f fe red  jus t  l i ke  the  A f r i can 

peop le  in  South  A f r i ca .   Shoo.    

Anyway,  le t  us  go  to  page 241 bu l le t  po in t  3  you say  
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tha t  you recommend tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson shou ld  charge Dr  

Dahwa wi th -  and I  go  to  bu l le t  3 :  

“Refusa l  o r  fa i lu re  to  car ry  ou t  lawfu l  and 

reasonab le  ins t ruc t ion . ”  

What  a re  you ta lk ing  about  there?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  th is  lawfu l  and reasonab le  

ins t ruc t ion  wou ld  re la te  in  th is  p rev ious tender  tha t  I  ta lked  

about ,  the  je t  fue l  spec i f i ca l l y,  where  bas i ca l l y  we managed  

to  negot ia te  15% f rom Engen to  be  shared by  60-odd b lack  

fue l  supp l ie rs .   So bas ica l l y  what  I  was say ing  here ,  10 

re fusa l  o r  fa i lu re  to  car ry  ou t  lawfu l  and reasonab le  

ins t ruc t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who had g i ven  th is  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  you 

are  ta lk ing  about  to  h im? 

MS KWINANA:    He was g iven by  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who in  the  board  conveyed the  

ins t ruc t ion  to  h im  or  was he ca l led  to  a  board  meet ing  and 

the  board  to ld  h im the  ins t ruc t ion? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  there  were  road  

shows and in  the  road shows there  wou ld  be  commi tment  20 

and in  those commi tments  l i ke ,  fo r  ins tance,  you wou ld  go  

and speak to  th is  example ,  Engen or  She l l  and then  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  do  no t  want  tha t  who le  h is to ry,  Ms 

Kwinana,  what  I  want  i s  –  you sa id  here  the  Cha i rperson 
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shou ld  charge h im wi th  a  re fusa l  o r  fa i lu re  to  ca r ry  ou t  a  

lawfu l  and reasonab le  ins t ruc t ion .   I  am ask ing  the  

quest ion ,  who conveyed to  h im th is  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  you say 

he  fa i led  or  re fused to  ca r ry  ou t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  the  members  o f  the  board ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  members  o f  the  board?  

MS KWINANA:    The board  takes a  co l lec t i ve  dec i s ion ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    The board  takes a  co l lec t i ve  dec is ion ,  so  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  th is  a l l  convey th is  ins t ruc t ion  to  

h im?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  a  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  no t  in  the  meet ing ,  in  the  road  shows 

tha t  we were  a t tend ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  there  was a  road show where  a l l  the 

board  members  were  present  and they a l l  gave h im th is  

ins t ruc t ion?  20 

MS KWINANA:    They may not  necessar i l y  be  a l l  p resent  

bu t  most  o f  them wou ld  be  there  and in  fac t ,  Cha i r,  when  

these road shows happened,  the  board  members  who were  

in  the  road shows,  had a  mandate  f rom the  o ther  board  

members .   That  i s  why I  am say ing  th is  ins t ruc t ion  
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bas ica l l y  was f rom the  board  because even i f  i t  was two or  

th ree  or  fou r  board  members  tha t  a t tended they wou ld  have  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  you one o f  those board  members?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was Ms Myen i  another  one?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  was  the  ins t ruc t ion  aga in?    

Jus t  te l l  me in  c lear  te rms.  

MS KWINANA:    The ins t ruc t ion  was tha t  cons ider ing  tha t  10 

the  board  has gone to  negot ia te  w i th  Engen and Engen has  

agreed f rom the i r  cont rac t  to  pu t  as ide  15%.   That  means i f  

they  were  supp ly ing  100% of  the  je t  fue l ,  they  wou ld  supp ly  

85% and 15% wou ld  be  supp l i ed  by  the  60-odd b lack  

compan ies .   So bas i ca l l y  Engen  w i th  the i r  p rocurement  

p rocess,  they had agreed.   So bas i ca l l y  what  Dr  Dahwa 

was supposed to  do ,  Dr  Dahwa was supposed to  make sure  

tha t  the  15% tha t  has been ag reed by  Engen – remember  

tha t  o ther  compan ies  d id  no t  ag ree,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  a t  

leas t  those compan ies  tha t  agreed tha t  okay,  then  we can 20 

supp ly  85% and then 15% you can take .  

 So Dr  Dahwa was supposed to  ca r ry  ou t  tha t  

mandate ,  the  mandate  o f  go ing  to  Engen and say  Engen,  

you are  agreed on 85%,  here  are  the  compan ies  

…[ in tervenes]  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 59 of 279 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  law sa id  you cou ld  do  th is ,  Ms  

Kwinana?  Which  law sa id  you cou ld  award  an  ent i t y,  a  

bus iness w i thout  tha t  en t i t y  tak ing  pa r t  in  a  p rocurement  

p rocess?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  the  p rocu rement  p rocess was done 

and then now we negot ia ted  w i th  Engen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  no ,  what  you have sa id  t o  

me is  you ins t ruc ted  Dr  Dahwa to  award  a  cer ta in  en t i t y  

15%.  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  bus iness tha t  was supposed to  go  to  

another  one.  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Dr  Dahwa wou ld  no t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  

to  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  d id  you want  h im to  do?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  what  I  am exp la in ing ,  Cha i r,  I  am 

say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  am ask ing  what  d id  you ins t ruc t  h im 

to  do?  

MS KWINANA:    We wanted Dr  Dahwa to  car ry  fo rward  20 

f rom the  negot ia t ions  tha t  were  made w i th  Engen where  

Engen was say ing  we are  g iv ing  away 15% so tha t  SAA,  

you can be supp l i ed  by  b lack  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you mean car ry  fo rward?  What  

was –  what  in  p rac t ica l  te rms was he supposed to  do?  
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MS KWINANA:    To  ca r ry  fo rward ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was he supposed to  do?  

MS KWINANA:    What  I  mean  by  car ry ing  fo rward  is  

because negot ia t ions  had happened w i th  Engen and  Engen  

agreed tha t  15% wi l l  be  supp l ied  by  the  b lack  f i rms,  by  the  

b lack  compan ies  and the re fore ,  Dr  Dahwa needed to  make 

sure  tha t  the  agreement  be tween Engen and the  o ther  

compan ies  do  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was he supposed to  do?  

MS KWINANA:    He was supposed to  ca l l  a  mee t ing ,  i f  I  10 

can be l i ke  say ing  l ine  by  l ine  wha t  he  was supposed to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was supposed to  ca l l  a  meet ing  w i th  

Engen as  a  fo l low-up o f  what  they  agreed p rev ious l y,  ca l l  a  

meet ing  w i th  Engen,  ca l l  a  meet ing  w i th  a l l  the  s ix  

compan ies ,  pu t  a l l  o f  them together  in  the  room and say  

Engen,  as  you agreed,  here  are  the  compan ies  tha t  a re  

go ing  to  supp ly  15% of  the  je t  fue l  tha t  you are  g iv ing  

away.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d id  he  have to  do  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  was  par t  o f  push ing  the  20 

t ransformat iona l  agenda f rom the  s ide  o f  SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  law sa id  he  cou ld  do  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Even i f  there  i s  no  law,  Cha i r,  bu t  what  –  

tha t  i s  how we were  push ing  the  b lack  economic  

empowerment  in  SAA.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  tha t  m ight  be  the  prob lem,  tha t  

you do not  care  whethe r  there  is  a  lega l  f ramework  w i th in  

wh ich  you a re  ac t ing .   You say even i f  there  i s  no  law we 

wi l l  do  i t ,  tha t  m ight  be  the  prob lem.   Ms Hofmeyr,  

cont inue.  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  ac tua l l y,  i f  I  may,  jus t  l i ke  

to  p ick  up  on one f ina l  po in t  a r i s ing  f rom your  quest ion .   

You see,  what  t roub les  me,  Ms Kwinana,  you ar t i cu la te  the  

charge as  be ing  h is  fa i lu re  to  fo l low lawfu l  and reasonab le  

ins t ruc t ions in  l ine  w i th  the  se t  as ide  po l i cy  bu t ,  you see,  10 

you wro te  tha t  le t te r  to  Ms Myen i  on  the  9  October  2015  

and on the  28  September  2015  SAA had been  to ld  by  

Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  Ch ie f  P rocurement  Off i cer  tha t  th is  

who le  se t  as ide  po l i cy  was un lawfu l  and had to  s top  w i th  

immedia te  e f fec t .   So how cou ld  Dr  Dahwa in  good 

consc ience,  i f  he  was concerned about  ac t ing  law fu l l y  a t  

a l l ,  ever  have ac ted  on tha t  ins t ruc t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    You know,  Nat iona l  Treasury  he re  was  

ta lk ing  about  what  was supposed  to  be  imp lemented by  

SAA.   Th is  one tha t  I  am ta lk ing  about ,  about  the  15%,  20 

remember  tha t  i t  i s  no t  supposed to  be  imp lemented by  

SAA l i ke  the  procurement  p rocess o f  SAA because we have 

a l ready negot ia ted  w i th  Engen and  there fo re ,  tha t  does not  

have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  30% set  as ide .   The 30% set  

as ide  tha t  we  were  ta lk ing  about ,  tha t  was never  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 62 of 279 
 

imp lemented,  i s  the  30% set  as ide  by  SAA.    

Remember  tha t  th is  15% was not  go ing  to  be  se t  

as ide  by  SAA,  i t  was go ing  to  be  se t  as ide  by  Engen.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  we a re  a t  e leven and we d id  s ta r t  

ear l ie r  th is  morn ing .   I  wonder  i f  i t  i s  conven ien t  to  take  

the  break now o r  I  am happy to  go  on ,  i t  i s  en t i re ly  up  to  

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  le t  us  take  the  b reak a t  quar te r  

past .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  may I  have  a  comfor t  b reak,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    Comfor t  b reak,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Then we w i l l  have –  when  

the  w i tness says  comfor t  b reak,  we w i l l  have a  comfor t  

b reak.   Okay,  we w i l l  jus t  take  the  tea  break.   We wi l l  

resume a t  quar te r  past  e leven.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Kwinana,  towards  

the  end o f  the  f i rs t  sess ion  be fore  ou r  b reak we were  
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look ing  a t  tha t  le t te r  tha t  you had wr i t ten  to  the 

Cha i rperson on the  9  October  and  in  tha t  le t te r  you ca l led  

fo r  Dr  Dahwa to  be  charged w i th  those va r ious charges tha t  

you had se t  ou t .   Do you know what  then happened?  Was  

he d isc ip l ined?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  he  was d isc ip l ined,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And d id  you  note  f rom h is  ev idence 

before  the  Commiss ion  tha t  in  the  process  o f  h is  

d isc ip l in ing  he  entered in to  a  se t t lement  w i th  SAA.   Were  

you aware  o f  tha t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And were  you aware  o f  h is  ev idence 

where  he  i nd i ca ted  tha t  pursuant  to  a l l  o f  those events  he  

ended up los ing  h is  house tha t  he  had bought  w i th  h is  

fami ly  in  o rde r  to  be  ab le  to  se t t le  here  when he was  

employed as  procurement  manager?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And were  you a l so  aware  o f  h is  ev idence 

–  because I  d id  unders tand you p rev ious ly  to  say tha t  you 

had watched i t .   He a lso  gave ev idence tha t  he   -  as  a t  the  20 

date  o f  h i s  ev idence wh ich  was June o f  las t  yea r  had g reat  

d i f f i cu l t y  back in  Z imbabwe seek ing  employment .   Were  

you aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  I  p icked up on  a  po in t  
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ear l ie r  wh ich  was the  po in t  about  who was Dr  Dahwa 

rep laced by  and  we –  you conf i rmed fo r  us  tha t  was Mr  

Lester  Peter  and  I  ind ica ted  to  you one o f  the  f i rs t  th ings 

tha t  Lester  Peter  d id  was to  c i rcu la te  the  30% set  as ide  

agreement  to  Swisspor t  to  fac i l i ta te  the  po l i cy  there  and  

you then have meet ings w i th  Swisspor t  in  ear ly  2016 about  

tha t .   Were  you not  concerned tha t  push ing  the  30%  se t  

as ide  l ine  was un lawfu l  and you shou ld  no t  be  pe rs is t ing  

w i th  i t  by  tha t  s tage?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  we d id  no t  imp lement  the  30% set  10 

as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  aga in  remember  I  

abso lu te l y  take  i t  fo r  today ’s  ev idence tha t  you were  no t  

u l t imate ly  successfu l  in  imp lement ing  i t .   I  am ask ing  about  

when you are  in  t he  th roes o f  t ry ing  to  imp lement  i t ,  tha t  i s  

why I  sa id  d id  you not  –  were  you  not  concerned tha t  you  

were  push ing  fo r  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  30% se t  as ide  

a t  a  t ime when  Nat iona l  Treasury  had to ld  you i t  was  

un lawfu l?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  we pushed the  30% se t  as ide  20 

before  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  sa id  i t  was un lawfu l .   When  

Nat iona l  Treasury  sa id  i t  i s  un lawfu l  then we s topped 

immedia te ly  and we sa id  to  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  g ive  us  

gu idance.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t  s top  immedia te ly  because on  
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the  15  December  2015 Mr  Leste r  Peter,  the  person who  

rep laced Dr  Dahwa,  sent  an  agreement  tha t  Swisspor t  was 

requ i red  to  s ign  se t t ing  as ide  30% of  tha t  cont rac t .   Your  

comment?  

MS KWINANA:    The 30% set  as ide  by  Swisspor t  i s  no t  the  

30% set  as ide  by  SAA.   We have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  the  

30% set  as ide  by  Swisspor t ,  we are  no th ing  a t  Swisspor t  o f  

–  o r  le t  me say,  I  am noth ing  a t  Swisspor t  and there fo re  I  

wou ld  no t  push the  30% set  as ide  to  be  imp lemented by  

Swisspor t .   However,  I  wou ld  push  the  30% set  as ide  to  be  10 

imp lemented by  SAA i f  i t  was not  a l lowed but  I  cou ld  no t  

push i t  because Nat iona l  Treasury  and DTI  d id  no t  a l low 

fo r  us  to  do  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but ,  Ms Kwinana,  we looked a t  tha t  

agreement  yesterday.   I t  sa id  they  must  se t  as ide  30% and  

SAA is  go ing  to  re ta in  the  revenue o f  the  30% and  g ive  i t  

to  the  BEE par tner  o f  i t s  cho ice .   How can tha t  no t  be  

push ing  fo r  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  30% set  as ide?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  the  30% set  as ide  tha t  we are  

ta lk ing  about  i s  the  30% set  as ide  tha t  wou ld  be  20 

imp lemented by  SAA.   I f  Swisspor t  wanted to  push the i r  

30% set  as ide ,  we,  as  SAA,  d id  no t  fea ture  anywhere  in  

the i r  po l i c i es  o f  push ing  as ide  the  30%.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  i t  was a  t r ipar t i te  

agreement ,  tha t  means the re  are  th ree  par t ies  to  i t .   SAA, 
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Swisspor t  and the  ye t  to  be  named 30% BEE par tner  tha t  

SAA was go ing  to  se lec t .   Ms Kwinana,  how cou ld  SAA not  

have been invo lved in  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  am not  go ing  to  comment  on  the  

t r ipar t i te  agreement  tha t  you showed me yesterday,  I  was 

not  aware  o f  tha t  un t i l  you  showed me yesterday and,  

there fo re ,  I  w i l l  ta lk  about  the  SAA t ry ing  to  push the  30% 

set  as ide  as  SAA,  no t  Swisspor t  do ing  the i r  30%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  canno t  no t  comment  when you  

sa id  SAA was not  invo l ved and Ms Hofmeyr  says to  you but  10 

SAA was pa r ty  to  an  ag reement  tha t  sought  to  pu t  as ide  

30% tha t  i t  wanted to  g ive  to  another  en t i t y  tha t  was ye t  to  

be  named.   So do  you not  agree tha t  i f  SAA was invo lved in  

such a  par t y  –  such an agreement  was a  par t y  to  such an  

agreement ,  tha t  was invo lvement  by  SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  the  t r i par t i te  agreement ,  I  was not  

aware  o f  the  t r ipar t i te  agreement  and I  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  no t  aware  o f  i t ,  as  an  

ind iv idua l?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes and I  sa id  yesterday i t  was my f i rs t  20 

t ime to  see the  d ra f t  agreement  tha t  Adv Hofmeyr  showed 

me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you agree tha t  the  fac t  tha t  SAA was  

par t y  to  such an agreement  means tha t  i t  was invo lved in  

se t t ing  as ide  or  i t  sought  to  se t  as ide  tha t  30%.   A l l  you  
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m igh t  say  is  you were  no t  aware  o f  i t  bu t  tha t  was 

invo lvement .  

MS KWINANA:    My knowledge ,  Cha i r,  o f  the  30% set  

as ide ,  I  have t r ied  to  exp la in  i t  tha t  the  30% set  as ide  tha t  

SAA was t ry ing  to  imp lement  was never  imp lemented.   The 

t r ipar t i te  agreement  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  Ms Hofmeyr  has exp la ined more  

than tw ice  tha t  she accepts  tha t  the  ac tua l  imp lementa t ion  

m ight  no t  have happened but  there  were  e f fo r ts  to  t ry  and 

imp lement  the  30% set  as ide  and tha t  i s  what  she is  ta lk ing  10 

about  when she re fers  to  th is  agreement .   So the  quest ion  

is ,  do  you not  agree tha t  i f  SAA was par ty  to  such an  

agreement  then SAA was invo lved in  a t tempts  to  se t  as ide  

–  to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  –  I  do  no t  even want  to  

comment  about  the  t r ipar t i te  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    The agreement  tha t  I  can ta lk  abou t  i s  the 

agreement  tha t  we wou ld  env i s ion  where  th is  30% set  

as ide  wou ld  happen.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  when you a re  asked a  

quest ion  and you  do not  answer  i t  o r  you do not  want  to  

answer  i t ,  i t  does  not  speak we l l  o f  you as  a  w i tness.   I t  i s  

the  k inds o f  th ings tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  may in  due course  re ly  

on  to  say you were  evas ive  as  a  w i tness,  to  say you were 
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d ishonest .    

When you were  be ing  asked a  quest ion  and you  

knew the  answer  bu t  the  answer  wou ld  be  inconven ien t ,  

you wou ld  then dec ide  to  say I  am not  comment ing  ins tead 

o f  be ing  honest  and say th is  i s  the  answer,  even  i f  i t  is  

inconven ien t ,  even i f  i t  does not  pu t  you in  a  good l igh t  bu t  

because you are  an  honest  person,  you g i ve  the  answer.   

When you say I  am not  go ing  to  comment  and you s tar t  

g iv ing  an  answer  to  a  quest ion  tha t  has no t  been asked,  i t  

does not  say  –  i t  does not  speak we l l  about  you as  a  10 

w i tness.    

So I  am go ing  to  ask  you the  quest ion  aga in .   Would  

you not  agree tha t  i f  SAA was pa r ty  to  such an ag reement  

then i t  was i nvo lved in  a t tempts  t o  imp lement  the  30% set  

as ide .  

MS KWINANA:    Fo r  the  sake o f  p rog ress,  Cha i r,  le t  me 

say yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    Fo r  the  sake o f  p rog ress,  Cha i r,  le t  me 

say yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  no t  say  fo r  the  sake o f  

p rogress,  you must  say  –  g ive  an  answer  tha t  you honest ly  

i s  the  cor rec t  answer.   I f  you  say fo r  the  sake o f  p rogress i t  

g ives  the  impress ion  tha t  you do not  be l ieve  honest ly  tha t  

tha t  i s  the  cor rec t  answer  and I  do  no t  –  I  am not  ask ing  
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you  to  g ive  me answers  tha t  you do not  be l ieve  to  be  t rue ,  

a l l  I  want  fo r  you is  honest  answers .   I f  you  t ru l y  be l ieve  

tha t  tha t  was not  invo lvement  o r  in  e f fo r ts  by  SAA to 

imp lement  the  30% set  as ide  you say so .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  as  I  sa id ,  tha t  t r ipar t i te  ag reement ,  

i t  was the  f i rs t  t ime fo r  me to  see i t  and there fo re  fo r  me to  

comment  and say i t  was an e f fo r t  fo r  the  invo lvement  o f  

SAA,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

conf ident ly  say  so  cons ider ing  tha t  I  was not  even aware  

tha t  there  is  a  t r ipar t i te  agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  can I  jus t  ge t  c lear,  i f  we move away  

f rom the  t r ipar t i te  ag reement ,  i s  your  ev idence tha t  you  

yourse l f  d id  no t  take  any s teps  a f te r  le t  us  ca l l  i t  la te  

September  2015 to  advance the  30% set  as ide  po l i cy  o f  

SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  a f te r  we rece ived the  le t te r  

f rom DTI  and we  responded then we never  dec ide  to  push 

fo r  the  30% set  as ide .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  want  to  be  very  spec i f i c  because you  20 

have answered w i th  “we”  and I  wan t  to  focus pa r t i cu la r ly  on  

you.  

MS KWINANA:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   D id  you  ever  a f te r  the  Nat iona l  

Treasury  le t te r  o f  28  September  2015 t ry  and push the  30% 
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se t  as ide?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t .   You d id  no t  ho ld  any 

meet ings w i th  Swisspor t  and –  le t  me jus t  back fo r  a  

moment  –  we  d i scussed the  10  February  2016 encounter  

yes terday but  can I  jus t  have your  ev idence as  to  whethe r  

you were  invo lved in  any o ther  meet ings to  fac i l i ta te  a  30% 

set  as ide  be tween Swisspor t  and a  BEE par tner  fo r  

Swisspor t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You are  abso lu te ly  cer ta in  about  tha t ,  

Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r. .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  we were  ta lk ing  about  Mr  Lester  

Peter  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe jus t  to  make –  jus t  in  case the  

t ranscr ip t  does not  ca tch  tha t ,  tha t  las t  answer  was:   Yes,  

yes ,  yes .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  your  las t  answer  was yes.  

MS KWINANA:    I  d id  no t  have any o ther  meet ing  w i th  

Swisspor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  no t  take  par t  in  push ing  fo r  the 
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30% set  as ide  a f te r  Nat iona l  Treasury  had sent  i t s  le t te r  

say ing  the  30% set  as ide  was un lawfu l .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And no meet ings w i th  Swisspor t  and a  

prospect ive  BEE par tne r,  you answer  was no,  you d id  no t .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    One second,  Ms  Hofmeyr.   Ms Mban jwa?  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  c la r i f i ca t ion  10 

f rom Ms Hofmeyr.   P lease,  i f  I  heard  her  incor rec t l y ,  jus t  

cor rec t  me.   The  document  wh ich  you were  re fer r i ng  the  

w i tness to ,  i s  i t  tha t  Swisspor t  ag reement  tha t  appears  in  

DD19,  132.45?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am not  re fe r r ing  her  to  any document .  

MS MBANJWA:    No,  no t  now.   I  th ink  you were  ta lk ing  

about  a  document  where  you sa id  tha t  there  was an  

agreement  wh ich  you re fer red  her  t o  yesterday.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  the  t r ipar t i te  agreement .  

MS MBANJWA:    I  jus t  want  to  make su re  tha t  I  have got  20 

the  same …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sure ,  le t  me f ind  i t  fo r  you.  

MS MBANJ WA:    I t  i s  no t  the  –  ja ,  i t  i s  a  s tandard  ground  

hand l ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  i t  i s  no t  tha t  one.  
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MS MBANJWA:    Okay,  can I  p lease get  a  re ference to  

tha t?   I  w i l l  a l low her  to  cont inue,  Cha i r ,  I  jus t  want  to  ge t  

the  re ference fo r  tha t .   Thank you fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Shou ld  I  maybe prov ide  i t  a t  the  break?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry ,  i t  i s  no t  a t  the  top  o f  my mind o r  

wou ld  you l i ke  i t  now? 

MS MBANJWA:    No,  i t  i s  f ind  a f te r  a  b reak,  I  w i l l  j us t  ask  

fo r  the  document  you are  re fer r i ng  to .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly .   Oh sor ry ,  no ,  I  can do  i t  qu i te  

swi f t l y ,  I  th ink  I  have the  r igh t  one in  f ron t  o f  me.    

MS MBANJWA:    And then the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You w i l l  f ind  i t  in  the  Memela  –  Ms 

Memela ’s  bund le  wh ich  is  DD25A  and you w i l l  f ind  i t  a t  

page 291.  

MS MBANJ WA:    And then the  second th ing  wh ich  I  jus t  

want  to  conf i rm,  were  you say ing  tha t  in  tha t  30% set  as ide  

i t  was sa id  tha t  SAA wou ld  choose the  BEE par tner?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  rea l l y ,  I  mean,  I  am happy to  g ive  20 

a  re ference.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  Ms Mban jwa must  p lease pay 

a t ten t ion  to  the  quest ions tha t  I  ask .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am not  here  to  c la r i f y  fo r  Ms Mban jwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r ,  can I  p lease respond to  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA:    Because i t  i s  one o f  those th ings  wh ich  I  

jus t  s imply  canno t  accept .   I  have a  r igh t  i f  I  do  no t  hear  a  

quest ion .   I  have been ins t ruc ted  by  the  Cha i r ,  whom I  

respect ,  no t  to  make in te r rup t ion .   I f  I  do  no t  unders tand a  

quest ion  I  have to  ask  fo r  the  quest ion  to  be  repea ted.   I t  

does not  mat te r ,  Ms Hofmeyr ,  how i r r i ta ted  you become,  i t  10 

is  a  r igh t  I  have.   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  to  b r i ng  th is  to  f ina l i t y .   Yes,  there  

was a  re ference tha t  SAA sa id  they were  go ing  to  choose  

the  BEE par tner .  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   So we were  ta l k ing  about  the  

rep lacement  o f  Mr  Lester  Peter  tak ing  the  pos i t ion  o f  D r  

Dahwa.   A re  you aware  tha t  Ms Mpshe was a lso  

d isc ip l ined?  20 

MS KWINANA:     Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who was she rep laced by?  

MS KWINANA:    By  Mr  Musa Zwane.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  Mr  who?  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Musa Zwane,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Ms Kwinana,  p lease remember  to  

look  th i s  s ide  as  you answer  so  I  can hear.   Okay,  Mr  Musa  

Zwane,  okay,  a l r i gh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  was towards the  end o f  2015,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?   Maybe ear l y  2016 I  th ink  i t  was.   So what  

pos i t ion  d id  Mr  Zwane ho ld  then?  

MS KWINANA:    He was the  CEO of  South  A f r i can A i rways 

Techn ica l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Musa Zwane?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  he  was rep lac ing  Ms Mpshe.   Ms  

Mpshe was the  Act ing  CEO of  SAA,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  he took her  pos i t ion  wh ich  i s  Act ing  

CEO of  SAA,  i s  tha t  no t  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you re fe r red  to  SAA Techn ica l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  she was say ing  be fore  Mr  Zwane  

took Ms Mpshe ’s  ac t ing  pos i t ion  he  was CEO of  SAA 20 

Techn ica l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  I  d id  m isunders tand tha t .   Can I  

make sure  tha t  I  unders tand?  So Mpshe was Act ing  CEO 

of  SAA,  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    A t  the  t ime tha t  she was in  tha t  pos i t ion  

d id  Mr  Musa Zwane ho ld  a  pos i t ion  anywhere?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  was tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    He was the  CEO of  SAAT.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  thank you,  Cha i r.   And then Ms  

Mpshe is  suspended fo r  d i sc ip l ina ry  processes to  run  and  

then Mr  Musa Zwane takes over  her  pos i t ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  then he becomes ac t ing  CEO of  SAA,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And who was go ing  to  f i l l  the  CEO 

pos i t ion  a t  SAAT a lbe i t  on  an  ac t ing  bas is?  

MS KWINANA:    The ac t ing  pos i t ion  was taken  by  Mr  

Malo la .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ma lo la -Ph i r i ,  yes .   We have heard  some 

ev idence f rom h im prev ious ly  and  about  h im.   So towards  

the  end o f  2015,  ear ly  2016,  we have got  Mr  Malo la -Ph i r i  20 

as  Act ing  CEO of  SAA Techn ica l  and we have got  Mr  Musa 

Zwane as  Act ing  CEO of  SAA.   Have I  go t  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Now Mr  Musa Zwane was 

the  person who  s igned the  Sw isspor t  ag reement ,  the  
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A ra ta(?)  one tha t  Ms Mban jwa was ask ing  about  ear l ie r  and  

tha t  we saw yesterday.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not .   Wel l ,  in  h is  pos i t ion  o f  

Act ing  CEO I  assume i t  wou ld  no t  surp r ise  you tha t  he 

wou ld  be  the  s ignatory  to  tha t  agreement ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and tha t  was the  agreement  tha t  

was the  cu lm inat ion  o f  the  e f fo r ts  w i th  Swisspor t  to  pursue  

the  30% set  as ide ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know where  does the  30% set  

as ide  fea ture  w i th  h im,  the  Swisspor t  agreement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You w i l l  remember  tha t  I  took  you to  two 

c lauses yeste rday.   I  agree w i th  you i t  does not  ta lk  about  

30% because on Mr  Koh l ’s  ev idence they wou ld  no t  accept  

tha t  bu t  eventua l l y  by  March 2016  what  they wou ld  accept  

a re  those c lauses  8 .1  and 8 .2  tha t  requ i red  them to  par tner  

w i th  51% b lack  owned compan ies  i n  cer ta in  o f  the  

per fo rmance under  the  cont rac t  and then you w i l l  reca l l  

tha t  impor tan t  c lause 8 .2  wh ich  was the  one tha t  requ i red  20 

them to  buy the  SAAT GPUs.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  tha t  is  why I  sa id  tha t  i s  in  a 

sense a  cu lm inat ion  o f  as  fa r  as  the  30% set  as ide  go t  a t  

i t s  imp lementa t ion .   Do you accept  tha t?  
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MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know i f  tha t  was the  cu lm inat ion  

o f  the  30% set  as ide .   My knowledge o f  Swisspor t  on  i t s  

own is  tha t  they  are  BEE compl ian t ,  so  now i f  you are  

ta lk ing  about  Swisspor t  and the  30% set  as ide  then tha t  i s  

where  I  am not  unders tand ing  i t .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    They were  a l ready BEE compl ian t ,  were  

they no t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  he  sa id .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    H ’m.   So i t  wou ld  no t  make sense fo r  

them add i t iona l l y  to  have to  par t  w i th  30% of  the i r  10 

revenues to  a  prese lected  supp l ie r,  wou ld  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Ms Mban jwa?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  sor ry.  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r,  I  am sor ry  to  launch an ob jec t ion .   

We have paragraph 8 .1  and 8 .2  here  in  th is  page 132.49.   

There  is  abso lu te ly  no th ing  about  the  30% set  as ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  fo r  re -examinat ion ,  Ms Mban jwa.  

MS MBANJ WA:    That  i s  a  wrong quest ion  to  pu t  to  the 20 

w i tness.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The record  w i l l  show,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  sa id  

in  exact  te rms tha t  I  was aware  i t  d id  no t  re fe r  to  the  30% 

and then I  went  on .   The reco rd  w i l l  show tha t .   Le t  us  then 

go –  are  you aware  tha t  th ree  days a f te r  Mr  Zwane was put  
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in to  the  ac t ing  CEO pos i t ion  a t  SAA a f te r  Ms Mpshe had 

le f t  tha t  he  s igned a  Sect ion  54  app l i ca t ion  to  Nat iona l  

Treasury  tha t  Ms Myen i  has t r ied  to  change the  s t ruc ture  o f  

the  A i rbus swap t ransact ion  w i th .   

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  the  reason why I  am focus ing  

jus t  a  l i t t le  b i t  on  these pos i t ions  tha t  invo lved  

rep lacements  o f  persons,  Ms  Kwinana,  i s  because 

Commiss ion  ove r  the  las t  two years  has heard  a  lo t  o f  

ev idence about  peop le  who were  in  s ta te  owned ent i t ies  10 

t r ied  to  res is t  e f fo r ts  o f  un lawfu l  conduct  tak ing  p lace then  

be ing  requ i red  o r  pushed out  by  var ious means and then 

rep laced by  o thers  who were  e i ther  more  comp l ian t  o r  

par t i c i pa t ing  in  those un lawfu l  e f fo r ts .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  

you whethe r  you  th ink  tha t  tha t  occu r red  a t  a l l  w i th  the 

rep lacement  o f  Dr  Dahwa wi th  Mr  Lester  Peter  and the  

rep lacement  o f  Ms Mpshe w i th  Mr  Musa Zwane.  

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly  no ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And can I  ask  you,  was the re  any  

cor rup t ion  and f raud,  to  your  knowledge,  tha t  took  p lace a t  20 

SAA and SAA Techn ica l  wh i le  you were  on  the  boards?  

MS KWINANA:    Except  fo r  the  ones tha t  a re  appear ing  in  

the  Open Wate r  repor ts .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Not  beyond tha t .   And tha t ,  as  I  reca l l  i t ,  

was the  one you re ferenced yeste rday was the  spare  par t s  
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invest iga t ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  on the  components  tender  you say,  i f  

I  unders tand your  ev idence,  there  was no co r rup t ion  

invo l ved?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r,  as  fa r  as  I  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Not  as  fa r  as  you know.   Thank you.   I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  tha t  tender,  i f  we may,  tha t  i s  the  

components  tender  tha t  ends up be ing  awarded in  May o f  

2016 to  the  jo in t  venture  o f  AAR and JM Av ia t ion .   Now 10 

there  are  a l legat ions –  and we have heard  ev idence  before  

th is  Commiss ion ,  so  i t  i s  even  in  a  sense more  than 

a l legat ions a t  th is  po in t ,  the  Commiss ion  has rece ived 

ev idence tha t  there  was cor rup t ion  invo l ved in  the 

appo in tment  o f  JM Av ia t ion and  AAR as the  u l t imate ly  

successfu l  b idders  in  tha t  tender.   A re  you aware  o f  tha t  

ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You are  no t  aware  o f  i t .   Can you te l l  us 

who Ms Chery l   Jackson is?  20 

MS KWINANA:    F i r s t  can I  have th is  ev idence where  f raud  

and cor rup t ion  happened? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  am ce r ta in ly  go ing  to  come to  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  the  quest ion  or  what  you  
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a re  be ing  asked is  to  te l l  us  who Ms Jackson is .   Do you  

know her?  

MS KWINANA:    I  th ink  i t  i s  the  d i rec to r  o f  AAR.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  AAR.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  cannot  hear  you.  

MS KWINANA:    D i rec tor  o f  AAR.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And who is  Ms Kuk i  Md lu lwa?  

MS KWINANA:    Kuk i  Md lu lwa was one o f  the  consu l tan ts  

o f  SAA,  lega l  consu l tan ts  o f  SAA.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Sor ry,  I  jus t  need to  make a  

no te  the re .   Now you I  th ink  ment ioned yeste rday tha t  you  

were  aware  o f  the  ev idence tha t  Ms Sambo gave be fore  the  

Commiss ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you rece ived a  Ru le  3 .3  no t ice  in  

advance o f  her  ev idence.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And a t  tha t  po in t  you sent  in  a  response  

tha t  was jus t  a  s ta tement ,  i t  was not  an  a f f idav i t .   As  I  20 

unders tand i t ,  you  were  no t  lega l l y  rep resented  a t  tha t  

po in t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  you sa id  in  tha t  s ta tement   -  sor ry,  

le t  me go back f i rs t  because you asked me where  are  the  
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a l legat ions o f  cor rup t ion  and f raud.   Now Ms Sambo’s  

ev idence was tha t  in  a  meet ing  tha t  you had w i th  he r,  you  

sa id  to  her  you wanted to  ge t  your  hands on th ree  b ig  

cont rac ts  be fo re  you le f t  SAA.   A re  you aware  tha t  she 

gave tha t  ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And she a lso  sa id  tha t  she had a  second  

meet ing  w i th  you  a t  wh ich  you in t roduced he r  to  someone 

whom you ca l led  i hash i ,  tha t  person was Ms Nd lu lwa,  who 

we jus t  d iscussed and Ms Sambo ’s  ev idence was tha t  a t  10 

tha t  meet ing  you  sa id  tha t  you were  go ing  to  demand a 

payment  f rom AAR for  you rse l f ,  fo r  Ms Memela  and Mr  

Zwane.   Do you reca l l  tha t  ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  jus t  fo r  record  pu rposes tha t  can  

be found in  EXHIBIT DD18,  page  19,  paragraphs 60 and 

64.   We do not  need to  go  there .   Now you d id  deny those  

a l legat ions in  your  s ta tement  tha t   you prov ided  to  the  

Commiss ion .   I  can  take  you there ,  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  me to ,  

bu t  the  par t  o f  i t  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p ick  up  on is  you sa id  20 

tha t  Ms Sambo is  a  “pa tho log ica l  l ia r ”  and i t  was she who 

was the  i hash i  fo r  AAR.   Do you remember  say ing  tha t  in  

your  s ta tement?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Can you jus t  expand on tha t  a  b i t?   Why  
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i s  she a  psycho log ica l  (s i c )  l ia r  and why is  i t  she  who was  

the  i hash i?  

MS KWINANA:    The reason why I  am say ing  a  

pa tho log i ca l  l ia r  i s  because a l l  the  th ings tha t  she sa id  

were  un t rue  or  were  fa l se .   I f  you  th ink  about  i t ,  Cha i r,  Ms 

Sambo was dumped by  AAR 2014,  i f  I  th ink ,  was dumped in  

2014 and then now i t  i s  my f i rs t  t ime to  meet  w i th  he r.   I  

ca l led  a  meet ing  and Ms Sambo is  say ing  Ms Memela  sa id  I  

want  to  be  in t roduced to  Ms Chery l  Jackson and then she  

is  say ing  tha t  i s  in  the  las t  quar te r  o f  2015 .   My  10 

unders tand ing  o f  the  las t  quar te r  in  2015 is  October,  

November,  December  2015 and now in  May,  few months  

be fore  tha t ,  we went  to  Ch icago.   Our  host  was Ms  Chery l  

Jackson and then  now I  go  to  Ms Sambo and say I  need to  

be  in t roduced to  Chery l  Jackson.   That  i s  the  b la tan t  l ie .  

 Now I  ca l l  her  and then I  ge t  to  her  house and s tay  

fo r  about  ten  m inutes  and say I  want  to  ge t  my hands on  

th is  tender  and th is  tender  and th is  tender  and then I  go  

and then I  a r range a  meet ing .   That  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime fo r  me  

to  meet  w i th  her  and then I  a r range a  meet ing  a t  P ro tea  20 

Hote l  and then a t  P ro tea  Hote l  the  meet ing  is  be tween Dr  

Tambi ,  who is  the  board  member  o f  SAA,  myse l f ,  Ms Nzu l i  

and Ms Sambo.   I  say  in  th i s  meet ing  I  want  to  lay  my 

hands on th ree  cont rac ts  I  want  to  ge t  a  100mi l l ion  f rom 

AER,  and the  peop le  who are  go ing  to  benef i t  fo r  th is  i s  
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myse l f ,  Ms Zwane and Ms Memela ,  now a  reasonab le  

person wou ld  ask  a  quest ion  as  to  why was Ms Nd lu l i  here ,  

why was she the re  he rse l f ,  Ms Sambo,  why was Dr  Thami  

there  i f  I  am say ing  I  need th i s ,  I  w i l l  pay,  I  w i l l  ge t  th is  

money f rom AER.     

Now tha t  i s  b la tan t  l ies  and Ms Sambo in  he r  

a f f idav i t  she had l i te ra l l y  about  40  s ta tements  where  she is  

say ing  she cannot  remember,  she cannot  remember,  she  

cannot  remember,  and a l l  o f  a  sudden she remembers  tha t  

in  the  las t  quar te r  o f  2015 I  wan ted to  meet  w i th  he r,  so  10 

bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  Ms Sambo is  such a  

pa tho log i ca l  l ia r  and in  fac t  I  d id  say she is  so  spo i l t  tha t  

she wants  th ings ,  she wants  to  be  spoon fed ,  she  doesn ’ t  

unders tand the  p rocurement  p rocesses.   She doesn ’ t  know 

tha t  i f  she  d id  no t  pu t  in  the  tender,  she has ze ro  chances  

o f  w inn ing  the  b id  and another  th ing ,  she knows tha t  she 

was d i t ched in  2014.    

No,  i f  I  wanted to  ge t  my hands on the  tender,  why  

wou ld  I  go  to  her  fo r  God ’s  sake how wou ld  I  go  to  her  and 

say,  I  want  100mi l l ion  and the  reason why I  am say ing  she 20 

is  the  one –  and in  fac t ,  she sa id  when she came to  us  to  

compla in  about  her  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  AER which  bas ica l l y,  

was the  reason why she ca l led  us ,  I  sa id ,  le t  me ar range a  

meet ing  w i th  Dr  Thami  because I  w i l l  be  go ing  anyway so  i f  

you  have an issue w i th  SAA Techn ica l  then le t  me ar range  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 84 of 279 
 

a  meet ing  and tha t  was the  reason fo r  the  meet ing ,  

bas ica l l y  and then,  now –  so  bas ica l l y,  I  rea l l y  do  no t  know 

why I  wou ld  l i te ra l l y  go  to  her  and knowing tha t  she no  

longer  has a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  AER and we met  w i th  AER in  

May and there fo re  i f  I  wanted 100mi l l ion  f rom AER,   I  

wou ld  s imp ly  go  to  AER and get  tha t  100mi l l ion ,  why wou ld  

I  go  to  her.   Tha t ’s  why I  am say ing  Ms Sambo is  such a  

pa tho log i ca l  l ia r  and in  fac t ,  she d id  no t  even tender  in  tha t  

components  tender,  I  don ’ t  know why is  she d isgrunt led  

l i ke  tha t  and I  unders tand tha t  she – Ms Memela  t r ied  to  10 

ass is t  her  bu t  because she is  such a  spo i l t  b ra t ,  maybe she 

is  used to  ge t t ing  th ings he r  way but  now,  i f  you  don ’ t  even 

put  your  tender  how was she expected to  w in  the  tender.   

So,  bas ica l l y,  tha t ’s  the  reason why,  bas ica l l y,  I  d id  no t  

even put  an  e f fo r t  to  answer  her  a f f idav i t  because i t  i s  

c lea r  tha t  she is  a  b la tan t  l ia r,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  mean ing  tha t  you were  

a t tach ing  to  the  word ,  “ Ihashe” ,  I  th ink  she may have 

exp la ined when she was g iv ing  ev idence but  I ’ ve  forgo t ten  

bu t  obv ious l y  know what  the  l i te ra l  mean ing  o f  “ Ihashe”  i s ,  20 

so  i f  tha t  i s  I s iZu lu  or  I s iXhosa,  tha t ’s  a  horse  bu t  there  

may have been a  par t i cu la r  mean ing  tha t  i t  was – t ha t  was 

a t tached to  i t ,  what  was tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    What  S ibong i le  sa id  in  our  meet ing  when 

she was compla in ing  about  AER,  she sa id ,  he r  re la t ionsh ip  
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w i th  AER s tar ted  as  ear l y  as  2012 and she has been  

runn ing  a round t ry ing  to  ge t  AER peop le ,  she got  them to  

meet  the  Depar tment  –  I  th ink  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  t r ied  to  meet  w i th  th is  person and th is  person 

t r ied  to  meet  w i th  peop le  a t  SAA and there fore  she has 

been runn ing  s ince  2011 and then now,  she is  be ing  

dumped and there fore  she has been a  runner  fo r  a l l  these 

years .   So,  bas ica l l y  “ Ihashe”  i s  a  runner  Cha i r.   So,  when  

she was te l l ing  me about  th is ,  I  sa id ,  oh  – and in  fac t ,  I  

sa id  to  he r,  oh  tha t  means [5 .32  A f r i can language]  runn ing  10 

le f t ,  r igh t  and cen t re ,  up  and down fo r  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   As  I  unders tand Ms 

Sambo’s  a l legat ions aga ins t  you,  Ms Kwinana,  i t ’s  rea l l y  

tha t  you were  endeavour ing  to  so l i c i t  a  b r ibe  f rom AER,  do  

you unders tand her  a l legat ion  s im i la r ly?  

MS KWINANA:    I  unders tand he r  a l legat ions bu t  what  she 

needed to  do ,  she needed to  p rove tha t ,  I  wanted to  so l i c i t  20 

a  br ibe ,  tha t  i s  number  one and  then number  two,  she  

needed to  te l l  me,  why shou ld  I  go  to  her  i f  I  wanted to  

so l i c i t  a  b r ibe  f rom AER because a t  tha t  t ime there  was no 

longer  a  re la t ionsh ip  be tween he r  and AER and i f  I  wanted  

a  br ibe  a t  AER,  I  wou ld  have gone to  AER and Cha i r,  I  
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hope your  invest iga tors  d id  go  to  AER to  check i f  I  d id  

so l i c i t  tha t  b r ibe .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  my quest ion  was jus t  

whethe r  you unders tood her  ev idence in  the  same way as  I  

d id ,  tha t  she was  accus ing  you o f  hav ing  t r ied  to  so l i c i t  a  

b r ibe .   I  unders tand you to  ag ree w i th  me,  tha t  i s  her  c la im 

aga ins t  you,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  he r  c la im.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  unders tand your  ev idence to  deny 

tha t  you d id  no t ,  a t  any po in t ,  so l i c i t  a  b r ibe  in  re la t ion  to  10 

the  components  tender,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  do  you be l ieve   tha t  Ms Memela  is  

a  pa tho log i ca l  l ia r  too?  

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay,  cou ld  she be,  f rom your  

in te rac t ions w i th  her?  

MS KWINANA:    There  was never  an  ind i ca t ion  to  me tha t  

she is  l y ing  o r  no t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  she engaged in  some 20 

WhatsApp communica t ions w i th  Ms Sambo in  a round 2017 

in  wh ich  she makes re ference to  your  e f fo r t  to  so l i c i t  a  

b r ibe ,  so  I ’d  l i ke  to  take  you to  those WhatsApp 

communica t ions so  tha t  we can have your  comment  on  

them.   You ’ l l  f ind  them in  Ms Sambo’s  Bund le ,  now tha t  i s  
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DD18 and we open i t  a t  page 540 .   Wel l  ac tua l l y  cou ld  we  

s tar t  a t  539,  jus t  a  page ear l ie r?   So,  the  page is  539 o f  

Exh ib i t  DD18.   So th is  was  a  se t  o f  WhatsApp 

communica t ions  tha t  Ms Sambo prov ided  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  they  s ta r t  qu i te  a  b i t  ear l ie r  in  th is  Bund le  bu t  

the  one tha t  I ’m  in te res ted  in  i s  the  one tha t  s ta r ts  r igh t  a t  

the  foo t  o f  page 539,  i t ’s  the  las t  da ted  ent ry  there ,  you ’ l l  

see  i t  says  2017/10/16 and the  t ime is  21h47.10 and then 

ident i f ied  as  the  communica tor  on  the  WhatsApp there  is ,  

Nontsasa SAAT Memela ,  do  you see tha t  Ms Kwinana? 10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  th i s  i s  a  response  tha t  Ms  

Memela  sends to  Ms Sambo re fe renc ing  an  emai l  tha t  she 

got  in  the  morn ing ,  I  th ink  I ’m go ing  to  read i t  a l l  to  the  

par t  tha t  I ’m  in te res ted  in ,  Cha i r,  jus t  because i t ’s  he lp fu l  

to  ge t  contex t  fo r  what ’s  happen ing ,  i f  I  may.   So,  what  i t  

says  there  is  –  th is  i s  Ms Memela  wr i t ing  to  Ms Sambo,  she  

says,  

“S ibong i le  I ’m  rea l l y  t ry ing  to  ana lyse  your  emai l  o f  

th is  morn ing .   I ’m  not  sure  what  your  in ten t ions are 20 

but  le t  me remind  you o f  someth ing ,  when you came 

to  my o f f i ce  I  adv ised you to  wr i t e  a  background o f  

what  work  you d id  w i th  them and  what  ag reement  

you guys had in  p lace  and how you fee l  they owe 

you fo r  in t roduc ing  them to  South  A f r i ca .   I  went  as  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 88 of 279 
 

fa r  as  say ing ,  make sure  you b reakdown every th ing  

you d id  fo r  them and send them an emai l  where  you 

copy us  so  tha t ,  base on tha t ,  we w i l l  in te rvene and  

schedu le  a  meet ing  bu t  the  emai l  you sent  today,  

was in tended fo r  someth ing  e lse  and i t  was noth ing  

o f  what  we d i scussed,  so  I ’m  rea l l y  no t  sure  what  

you were  t ry ing  ach ieve by  tha t  one- l ine r.   You 

came wi th  your  par tne rs  fo r  a  meet ing  in  2014 and 

you asked fo r  he lp ,  f i rs t  f rom the  CEO who re fused 

to  g ive  you the  p r ices  fo r  the  tender ” ,  10 

 And th is  i s  the  par t  I ’d  l i ke  to  d raw your  a t ten t ion  

to ,  Ms Memela  goes on and says the  fo l low ing,  

“And in  2015 you  came to  me as a  f r iend and asked 

fo r  in fo rmat ion  fo r  the  shor t  tender  wh ich  you 

wanted to  g ive  to  your  par tner,  bu t  looks l i ke  you 

ended up not  g i v ing  i t  to  them,  s ince  you wanted 

money upf ron t ,  they  tendered anyway w i th  your  

company name and tha t  o f  Nd izane.   You guys 

(yourse l f ,  Cook ie  Nd lu l i  and Cha i r )  were  negot ia t ing  

w i th  Chery l  where  there  was an agreement  o f  what  20 

amount  was go ing  to  be  pa id  ou t  to  you guys i f  

there  was success.   Unfor tunate ly,  Chery l  changed 

her  m ind,  c la im ing i t  was i l l ega l  in  her  count ry  to  

pay ou t  b r ibes bu t  anyway they d idn ’ t  succeed in  

tha t  tender,  A i r  F rance d id ” ,   
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 Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  as  I  read tha t ,  and you te l l  me i f  you 

read i t  d i f fe ren t ly,  Ms Memela  i s  ta lk ing  about  an  occas ion  

in  the  past  where  you,  Ms Nd lu l i  and Ms Sambo were  t ry ing  

to  so l i c i t  a  b r ibe  f rom  Chery l  Jackson o f  AER,  do  you read 

i t  in  the  same way as  me? 

MS KWINANA:    I  read i t  in  the  same way Cha i r,  and I  

cons ider  th is  as  nonsense.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Nonsense?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You say,  you never  eve r  so l i c i ted  a  br ibe  

in  re la t ion  to   the  components  tender,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why wou ld  Ms Memela  j us t  make th i s  

up  in  he r  p r iva te  communica t ions w i th  Ms Sambo? 

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i r,  and I  don ’ t  even know 

the  peop le  tha t  she is  ta lk ing  about  here ,  Duduzan i  and  

okay Bongan i ,  maybe we met  a t  A i r  France but  Duduzan i  I  

don ’ t  know and I  don ’ t  know Rafeeq so  I  rea l l y  do  no t  know 20 

why wou ld  she wr i te  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  I ’d  then l i ke  to  move  to  the  

ac tua l  tender  p rocess fo r  AER,  we l l  le t ’s  ca l l  i t  the  

components  tender,  the  u l t imate ly  successfu l  on  the  las t  

one,  bu t  there ’s  a  lo t  tha t  happens in  be tween.   Were  you 
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aware  tha t  there  were  numerous tenders  pr io r  to  the  las t  

one in  wh ich  they  were  successfu l?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  and the  f ina l  dec i s ion -mak ing  body  

on those tenders ,  wou ld  have been the  Board  o f  SAA 

Techn ica l ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  was a  cont rac t  va lued a t  –  ce r ta in ly  

more  than a  b i l l i on  rand,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  i t  wou ld  fa l l  w i th in  the  de legat ion  o f  

the  Board ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And on the  9 t h  o f  May,  as  I  have  i t ,  tha t  

f ina l  dec is ion  was taken on the  las t  o f  those tenders  to  

award  i t  to  the  jo in t  ventu re  o f  AER & JM Av ia t ion ,  do  you  

reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now whi le  some o f  the  o ther  tenders  

tha t  p receded i t  was s t i l l  open,  you t rave l led  to  Amer ica  to  20 

v is i t  AER’s  o f f i ces ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And yeste rday –  Sor ry  I  sor t  o f  hes i ta te  

in  ask ing  tha t  quest ion  because yesterday in  your  

ev idence,  a t  a  po in t  when we were  t ry ing  to  engage w i th  
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you  about  the  l im i ts  on  communica t ions be tween dec is ion  

makers  and b idders ,  I  thought  I  heard  you say,  bu t  i t  was 

okay when you went  to  Amer ica  because the  tender  was 

not  open a t  tha t  s tage.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  can I  jus t  ge t  c la r i t y  now,  when 

you went  to  Amer ica  to  v is i t  AER,  was there  a  tender  open 

in  wh ich  AER was  a  b idder?  

MS KWINANA:    I ’m  not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You ’ re  no t  aware  o f ,   so  when you sa id  10 

yesterday,  i t  wasn ’ t  open,  you ’ re  no t  cer ta in  now whether  i t  

was or  i t  wasn ’ t?  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  de f in i te ly  i t  was the  tender  be tween  

AER,  tha t  was won by  AAR & JM Av ia t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  we wou ld  agree on.  So,  AAR,  in  the 

–  le t  me jus t  ge t  i t  r igh t  –  had b id  in  the  29  October  2014  

tender,  no t  w i th  JM Av ia t ion  and tha t  i s  the  one tha t  was 

s t i l l  open,  i f  you  can be l ieve  i t ,  in  May o f  –  so r ry  in  –  when 

d id  you go,  May o f  2015,  so  i t  took  rea l l y  some t ime and i t  

was s t i l l  open.   Do you accept  tha t  i t  was s t i l l  open when  20 

you t rave l led  to  AAR? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do,  and in  tha t  encounte r  w i th  AAR 

Ms Memela ’s  ev idence was tha t  you went  on  p r iva te  je ts ,  

fac i l i ta ted  by  AAR,  you had l imous ine  r ides  f rom t ime to  
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t ime and d ined a t  expens ive  res taurants .   Do you conf i rm 

tha t  ev idence o f  Ms Memela ’s?  

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  I  wou ldn ’ t  know about  the  expens ive  

res taurants…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    They might  have jus t  been res taurants ,  

o rd inary.  

MS KWINANA:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay but  you don ’ t  deny the  pr i va te  je ts  

and the  l imous ines?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  and I  wan t  to  go  back to  where  we 

were  yesterday then,  because you ’ re  a  member  o f  the  

Board  o f  SAAT tha t  was go ing  to  dec ide  tha t  tender  tha t  

was open a t  the  t ime tha t  you t rave l led  to  the  US,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And notw i ths tand ing  –  oh  sor ry  AAR was 

a  b idder  in  tha t  Tender,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  d idn ’ t  –  I  can ’ t  remember  bu t  I  wou ld  

th ink  tha t  they wou ld  be  the  b idders .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    They were ,  I  mean,  i f  i t ’s  necessary  I ’ l l  20 

take  you to  the  l e t te r  bu t  le t ’s  –  can we proceed on the  

bas is  tha t  they were?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  you as  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

dec is ion-mak ing  body go on th is  t r ip  to  the  US,  in te rac t  
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w i th  a  b idder  wh i le  a  tender  i s  s t i l l  open.   Do  you not  

regard  tha t  as  i r regu lar,  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  i f  I  can  qu ick ly  te l l  you  about  the   

in  summary,  the  summary o f  the  tender ing  process?  The 

reason why I  wou ld  no t  even –  the  reason why I  wou ld  no t  

even know tha t  there  is…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  s ta r t  your  answer  w i th  say ing  

whethe r  you regard  tha t  as  i r regu lar,  i f  you  say you don ’ t  

regard  i t  as  i r regu la r  then you can say why you don ’ t  

regard  i t  as  i r regu la r.  10 

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  regard  i t  as  i r regu la r  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    The reason why I  don ’ t  regard  i t  as  

i r regu lar  i s  because fo r  the  Board  to  know – the  on ly  t ime 

tha t  the  Board  knows about  the  tender  tha t  i s  go ing  on ,  i s  

when i t  i s  a t  the  f ina l  s tage,  a t  the  f ina l  approva l .   On ly  i f  

the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  requ i res  tha t  i t  be  approved a t  

the  Board  and there fore ,  i f  there  was a  tender  tha t  was 

go ing  on a t  the  t ime,  we were  in  Ch icago,  I  wou ld  no t  know 

i f  there  i s  a  tender  go ing  on  i f  i t  hasn ’ t  been brought  to  the 20 

Board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you not  th ink  tha t  tha t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  you shou ld  have been adv ised  about?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  don ’ t  th ink  so  Cha i r.   As  I  sa id ,  the  

tender ing  process s ta r ts  f rom iden t i f i ca t ion  o f  the  need and 
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then i t  goes to  b id  spec i f i ca t ion  and then i t  goes to  b id  

eva lua t ion  and a l l  these peop le  are  d i f fe ren t  peop le ,  

maybe,  there ’s  one or  two peop le  who are  common and 

then there  is  b id  ad jud i ca t ion  and then there ’s  EXCO 

meet ing  and then  there  is  the  Board .   So bas i ca l l y,  I  don ’ t  

–  a t  no  s tage,  was I  adv ised tha t  there  is  now a  tender  

go ing  on ,  un t i l  the  tender  ge ts  to  the  Board .  So,  I  f ind  i t  

qu i te  no rmal  tha t  I  wou ldn ’ t  know about  i t  un t i l  i t  ge ts  in to 

the  Board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Memela ,  who was the  head o f  10 

procu rement  a t  the  t ime,  jo ined you on tha t  t r ip ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you don ’ t  regard  i t  as  concern ing  

tha t  the  head o f  p rocu rement  who  wou ld  have known tha t  

the  tender  was open,  d idn ’ t  a le r t  you to  tha t  fac t  be fore  

you took th i s  t r ip?  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r,  no ,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And why wou ld  she not  be  requ i red  to  

a le r t  you,  g iven tha t  you ’ re  the  u l t imate  dec is ion  maker  on  

the  tender  tha t  was open?  20 

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  there  are  many p rocesses 

tha t  wou ld  go  up  to  there ,  you may f ind  ou t  tha t  she may  

not  even be aware  tha t  there  was a l so  a  tender  go ing  

on…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    As  the  head o f  p rocu rement ,  she 
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wou ldn ’ t  know tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Most  p robab ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    For  a  cont rac t  wor th  more  than a  b i l l i on  

rand?  

MS KWINANA:    She may not  be  aware  because those 

cont rac t  wou ld  happen –  I ’m  not  sure  a t  what  s tage wou ld  

she get  invo lved but  what  I  am say ing  i s ,  a t  no  s tage d id  

she te l l  me,  w i th  no t  a  s ing le  tender  tha t  there ’s  a  tender  

go ing  on .   The on ly  t ime tha t  I  wou ld  see tha t  the re  is   a  

tender,  i s  when i t  ge ts  to  the  Board .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you have  no knowledge tha t  the  

company o f  wh ich  you are  the  Cha i r  o f  the  Board ,  i s  ou t  on  

tender  to  t ry  and  get  component  serv i ces ,  you don ’ t  know 

a t  any po in t  in  t ime unt i l  you ’ re  asked to  make a  dec is ion  

on  i t ,  i s  tha t  your  ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    Unt i l  I ’m  asked  to  make a  dec i s ion  bu t  

maybe –  le t  me go back to  be fore  the  b id  spec i f i ca t ion ,  

then there  wou ld  be  a  Board  submiss ion  tha t  wou ld  say the  

components  tender  w i l l  be  up  fo r  renewal ,  i t ’s  exp i r ing  on  

th is  da te  and then we say,  okay,  then s ta r t  w i th  the  20 

process.   When  they s ta r t  w i th  the  process,  somet imes  

they wou ld  repor t  tha t  s ix  months  be fore  the  exp i ry  o f  the  

cont rac t  because  the  tender  p rocesses take longer.   So,  

bas ica l l y  when exact ly  the  tender  p rocess is  s ta r t ing  as  

long as  we know in  the  beg inn ing  and then the  tender  
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spec i f i ca t ion  and  every th ing  and bas ica l l y  tha t  one is  jus t  

fo r  no t ing  to  say tha t  there ’s  a  b ig  cont rac t  tha t  i s  go ing  to  

exp i re  bu t  i f  i t  doesn ’ t  happen i t  cou ld  have an impact  on  

the  opera t ions o f  the  bus iness.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you are  g iven fo rewarn ing  when  

tender ing  w i l l  take  p lace on b ig  cont rac ts ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And in  re la t ion  to  th is  one in  pa r t i cu la r,  

the  one tha t  was  adver t i sed i n  October  o f  2014 and was  

s t i l l  open in  May o f  2015,  the  Board  became qu i te  invo lved 10 

in  tha t  tender,  d idn ’ t  they,  because you took a  dec is ion  to  

re t rac t  i t ,  a t  a  po in t ,  d idn ’ t  you?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  necessar i l y,  qu i te  invo lved,  the  

re t rac t ion  a l so  came as a  submiss ion  to  the  Board  and a l l  

the  reasons by  Management  wh ich  had been s ta ted ,  un t i l  i t  

ge ts  to  the  Board .   So,  when you say,  qu i te  invo lved ,  I  tend  

to  d isagree w i th  you on tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were  invo l ved a t  the  beg inn ing ,  you  

know i t ’s  go ing  ou t  to  tender,  and you ’ re  invo lved when  

you ’ re  asked to  take  a  dec is ion  on  i t ,  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  in  be tween i t  wou ld  be  fa i r  to  

assume,  i t ’s  s t i l l  open,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you d id  know tha t  i t  was s t i l l  open 
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when you went  to  the  US? 

MS KWINANA:    You know Cha i r,  there  are  so  many  

tenders  a t  SAA and SAA Techn ica l  and as  a  resu l t ,  me,  as  

the  member  o f  the  Board ,  I  do  no t  have a  book where  I  

wr i te  tha t  on  th i s  da te ,  there  was a  no t i f i ca t ion  tha t  a  

tender  i s  coming and then on tha t  da te  the  tender  i s  

adver t i sed and on tha t  da te  –  no  I  don ’ t  have tha t .   I f  they  

say,  we note  tha t  the  components  tender  i s  go ing  to  exp i re  

in  the  next  s ix  months  and the re fore  we w i l l  go  ou t  to  

tender,  we say,  yes tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  there  are  jus t  too  many tenders  open 

a t  any po in t  to  keep your  f inger  on  one o f  them,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Exact ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Exact ly,  and –  so  when you ’ re  go ing  to  

go  overseas to  the  premises …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Ms Hofmeyr  can  we take a  f i ve-

minute  break . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then we ’ l l  come back.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:  Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS  

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us proceed.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana do you accept  that  being f lown 

in pr ivate jets and dr iven around in l imousines are benef i ts  

to receive? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.   They are not  benef i ts.   We were 

requi red to go to AAR as part  of  the due di l igence and which 

has happened with many other companies including 

Luf thansa,  includ ing Air  France,  inc luding Rol ls Royce.   Now 

I  do not  consider that  I  received any benef i t  when they 

t ransported me in  a pr ivate jet .   I  real ly do not  consider that  

as a benef i t  at  a l l .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So just  te l l  us about  the due di l igence.   

What were you doing a due di l igence on? 

MS KWINANA:   For any company that  we intend to work wi th 

in – at  some stage there was a MOU non-binding MOU that  

SAAT had with AAR which basica l ly was intended to take 

SAAT to the next  level  and therefore any company that  we 

enter into as part  of  the due di l igence we need to make sure 

that  i t  is the company that  exists;  i t  is the company that  is 

saying they are able to do and meet our requi rements.   So i t  

happens al l  the t ime.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  accept  that  i f  you are embark ing on a 

partnership wi th an ent i ty  you would l ike to know qui te a bi t  

about  them.  And is that  what the due di l igence was 

designed to achieve for SAA Technical? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   The chal lenge I  have wi th  that  is  

that  you took the t r ip before the MOU was entered into and 

whi le a tender was st i l l  open in which AAR was a bidder.   

Now you have said previous there were just  too many 

tenders open at  any point  in t ime to keep t rack of  them,  is 

that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you not  th ink though as the 

Chairperson of  the board of  SAAT that  was ul t imately going 

to make a decision on that  tender that  i t  would have been 10 

requi red of  you to  f ind out ;  just  make sure that  before you go 

and vis i t  AAR in the US there is not  a tender that  is open in  

respect  of  which you wi l l  later be a decision maker? 

MS KWINANA:   We were not  going there Chai r  for the 

purposes of  the tender.   We were going there for the 

purposes of  the partnership.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And… 

MS KWINANA:   And therefore I  d id  not  see any need for me 

in fact  i t  never even rang a bel l  that  I  need to go and check 

i f  there is a tender going on and i f  AAR has tendered.   No I  20 

did not  and in fact  as I  am si t t ing here I  real ly do not  see any 

re levance in respect  of  that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So just  to go back to the point  that  the 

Chair  put  to you yesterday.   I  want  to suggest  what the 

re levance might  be.    
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You see AAR was compet ing wi th  other tenderers in 

that  very tender that  was st i l l  open.   And as the Chair  put  i t  

to you yesterday that  i f  you go and have dinner  at  a 

restaurant  wi th one of  the representat ives of  a  bidder and 

one of  their  compet i tors sees you there they would be I  

would suggest  qu i te fa i r ly concerned about the fact  that  the 

decision maker is meet ing wi th the compet i tor.    

And so I  would l ike to put  i t  to you that  s imi lar ly i f  the 

other tenderers found out  that  you were tak ing a t r ip  

overseas aspects of  which would be covered – the expenses 10 

of  which would be covered by the ir  compet i tor bidder they 

would regard that  as unfai r  in the process.   Do you accept 

that  that  would be unfai r?  

MS KWINANA:   That  would be unfa ir  i f  SAA Technica l  d id not  

do that  to other  tenderers.   SAA Technical  had been to Air  

France.   SAA Technical  had been to Luf thansa.   SAA 

Technical  had been to basical ly almost  al l  the big suppl iers 

of  SAA Technical .   So basical ly that  was not  abnormal.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  in a part icular  open tender Ms Kwinana 

I  would put  i t  to you that  i f  only one of  the bidders gets this 20 

opportuni ty  to get  c lose to you;  to spend days wi th you whi le  

you are at  their  premises;  to dr ive you around in Limousines 

and put  you on pr ivate jets  the other  tenderers could fai r ly 

say but  we do not  have that  access to  the decision maker.   

And that  is inherent ly unfai r  in th is process.  
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MS KWINANA:   Chair  as I  said SAA Technical  has been to 

al l  these bidders.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but  Ms Kwinana do you know that  they 

went to those other  bidders when tenders were open in 

respect  of  which there were other compet i tors? 

MS KWINANA:   Then that  would be tested Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No do you know?  Do you know whether  

those vis i ts took place at  a t ime when there were open 

tenders in respect  of  which there were other compet i t ive 

bidders? 10 

MS KWINANA:   I  would not  know Chai r.   Much as I  d id not  

know that  there was an open tender at  that  t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is the problem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you see Ms Kwinana you said that  you 

going to AAR would be unfai r  i f  you did not  do the same to 

others.   And you said you had done the same or the board 

had done the same with others.    

But  the two cases cannot be the same unless you say 

in regard to the others the t r ips also occurred in 

ci rcumstances where there were bidders in a tender that  was 20 

st i l l  open.    

So i f  you do not  have that  informat ion then you 

cannot use the other t r ips to the other service providers to  

just i fy to say i t  was not  unfair  to go to AAR at  a t ime when 

the tender was st i l l  open.   You – i t  is one thing to say 
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whether you were aware;  you were not  aware that  they were 

party to a tender that  was open. 

MS KWINANA:   I  was not  aware Chai r.   Much as I  was not  

aware i f  there was a tender open where AAR had bidded.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  – let  us say for argument sake you 

were aware would you agree that  i t  would have been wrong 

to embark on such a t r ip at  a t ime when the tender was st i l l  

open i f  you were aware? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  even i f  I  was aware I  real ly would not  

see anything wrong in us undertak ing that  t r ip.  The reason 10 

being that  there are r igorous processes that  need to happen 

for – up to the stage where we get  the recommendat ion and 

therefore that  would not  affect  my decision whether I  d id go 

there or not .    

And in fact  maybe the tender that  you were talk ing 

about  as much as we went  to AAR – AAR did not  win that  

tender because the – they had some def ic iencies in terms of  

the tendering processes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.  

MS KWINANA:   So basical ly what I  am saying is that  would 20 

not  impai r  my independence and th inking.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you real ly ser iously mean what you are 

tel l ing me? 
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MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  in your  judgment there would have 

been absolutely nothing wrong for you as a member of  the 

board that  would make a decision on a tender in regard to  

which AAR had put  in a bid for you to go on a t r ip overseas 

to thei r  premises wi thout  the knowledge of  other bidders and 

let  them wine you and dine you over there.   You say there 

would have been nothing wrong with that .  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  the procurement processes are so 

r igorous such that… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Shoo.  

MS KWINANA:   Even i f  I  went  to  Chicago i f  the bidder  does 

not  qual i fy the bidder does not  qual i fy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Ms Kwinana qui te f rankly processes 

that  in terms of  which people are appointed as board 

members to SOE’s must  be reviewed.  I f  that  is what you 

think and you were the – you are a board member,  you are a 

chartered accountant  you think i t  would have been – there 

would have completely nothing wrong with that  then there is  

something wrong in the appointment process.   Ms Hofmeyr.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana I  want to pick up on a point .   

You recent ly said that  i t  was okay to be there because AAR 

did not  win that  tender they ended up not  qual i fy ing,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.   I  am not  saying i t  would be okay 

because AAR did not  win that  tender.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Hm.  

MS KWINANA:   I  am saying as part  of  the due di l igence we 

had to go there.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Why … 

MS KWINANA:   Whether AAR – whether AAR had b idded or 

not  our vis i t  to AAR was not  informed by whether  AAR had 

bidded or not .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No but  you… 

MS KWINANA:   Our vis i t  was informed by the par tnership 

agreement that  we wanted to enter  into at  that  stage.   So i t  10 

was not  informed by the tender.   Even i f  AAR did not  tender 

we would st i l l  have to go – to Chicago.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No of  course.   I f  AAR did not  tender there 

would have been no problem with you going.   On that  Ms 

Kwinana you and I  agree completely.   The problem is that  

you go wi th one of  the bidders r ight .   You are wined and 

dined by them and then they were not  disqual i f ied in th is 

tender.   Do you remember what happened with th is tender? 

MS KWINANA:   I  read in  the document I  may remember the 

– the fact  maybe incorrect ly but  i t  seems as i f  there was 20 

some move to disqual i fy them.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  th ink you might  be confusing i t .   You 

see because what happens is you go to America;  you get  

wined and dined by AAR; you come back and the board 

decides to  ret ract  that  tender – that  tender in respect  of  
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which there were other compet i tors who might  have been 

serv ice providers to SAA Technical .   And you decide to  

embark on the MOU with AAR.  So your closeness w i th AAR 

led to a retract ion of  a tender in respect  of  which there were 

compet i tors to now form a partnership wi th AAR.  Do you not  

regard that  as problemat ic ei ther? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  i t  was – i t  is problemat ic at  al l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   And i f  o ther compet i tors thought  

that  the fact  that  you were in the US and being wined and 

dined by one of  the bidders led you to cut t ing them out  of  10 

potent ia l  supply to SAA Technical  and forging a par tnership 

wi th the ent i ty that  had wined and dined you they would not  

have any complaints of  unfairness.   Is that  your approach? 

MS KWINANA:   I  do not  know Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know what your approach is? 

MS KWINANA:   I  do not  know i f  they would complain or not .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  am asking whether i f  they complained 

they would legi t imately do so.  

MS KWINANA:   That  would depend Chai r.   I t  – that  would be 20 

proved in  the court  of  law as i t  has happened with AAR and 

Air  France whether i t  is legi t imate or not .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We wi l l  come back to the l i t igat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  you do not  get  to a court  of  law i t  is  

f ine.  
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MS KWINANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you do not  get  to a court  of  law i t  is not  

a problem? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is  not  f ine Chai r  but  as SAA Technical  at  

the t ime we considered that  was the best  decision that  we 

did and in fact  as I  am st i l l  s i t t ing here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which decision now? 

MS KWINANA:   The decision to form a partnership wi th AAR 

because the process – the partnership process was 

embarked into and i t  was agreed that  we needed to form a 10 

partnership hence the back of  the MOU. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you get  persuaded whi le you were 

overseas at  AAR – being wined and dined by AAR that  the 

way to go would be to retract  the tender and enter  into a 

MOU with AAR?  Is i t  something you get  – got  persuaded of  

when you were overseas? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.   I  cannot be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or when you came back.  

MS KWINANA:   I  cannot be persuaded by wining and dining 

of  AAR Chair  because… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  at  what point  did you… 

MS KWINANA:   I  was in a posi t ion to wine and dine mysel f  i f  

I  wanted to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  what point  did you see this point  that  

the r ight  way to go would be to retract  the tender and enter  
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into a MOU with AAR?  Was i t  whi le you were vis i t ing AAR 

overseas or was i t  af ter you had returned? 

MS KWINANA:   Of  course the MOU I  am – I  do not  know the 

date but  I  would think the MOU would be entered af ter we 

have been there and seen the premises and seen what value 

can they add to SAA Technical  

CHAIRPERSON:   So what  you saw on the t r ip  would have 

inf luenced you to say we must go the MOU route? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So which means i t  was whi le  you were 10 

overseas on this t r ip that  you got  persuaded that  you must  

go the MOU route? 

MS KWINANA:   We d id not  – we did not  get  persuaded 

Chai r.   The purpose of  our  t r ip was to make sure that  we 

conf i rm the resources that  they said they had in  the paper 

which we l iked that  th is is the company that  we can form a 

partnership wi th.    

So basical ly  our  t r ip there was to make sure to  

conf i rm what was in the paper.   I t  was not  for them to 

persuade us.   We acted in the best  interest  of  SAA Technical  20 

to enter into that  MOU which expired af ter s ix months af ter  

al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  Ms Hofmeyr ask her next  quest ion but  

before that  I  want  to go back to the quest ion of  

communicat ion wi th a bidder  whi le  a tender is open.   The 
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basis on which you have now today said there would have 

been nothing wrong for you to go on this t r ip even i f  you 

were aware that  AAR was one of  the bidders in the tender 

that  was st i l l  open is that  the company that  is SAA Technical  

had a r igorous procurement process so as I  understand i t  

you were not  going to be inf luenced by anyth ing because 

there is a r igorous procurement process.    

I  do not  remember you advancing that  as the reason 

yesterday for saying communicat ion between a decision 

maker could take place – communicat ion could take place 10 

between a decision maker in regard to  a tender and a 

di rector of  a company that  has put  in a bid.   I  thought you 

advanced a di fferent  basis,  am I  r ight  – am I  r ight  in  

understanding that? 

MS KWINANA:   I  may not  have remembered Chai r  what 

basis did I  advance.   However I  remember me saying that  

there are processes including combined assurance providers 

and I  ment ioned internal  audi t ;  external  audi t ;  r isk 

management and management as a whole which basical ly 

would also form part  of  the chain wi thin the procurement 20 

process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  seem to think that  at  least  at  one stage 

the basis you advanced was that  as long as the 

communicat ion did not  include discussing the tender there 

would be nothing wrong with the decision maker having 
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communicat ion of  even having dinner or lunch wi th the 

di rector of  a company that  had put  in  a b id  in regard to a 

tender that  was st i l l  open.   At  least  that  was ei ther the basis 

you advanced or one of  them.  Is that  your recol lect ion as 

wel l?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r  and in addi t ion to that  there are 

these r igorous processes that  I  to ld you about today.   And 

more important ly at  SAA there is a cross-funct ional  

CHAIRPERSON:   Team. 

MS KWINANA:   Team yes which basical ly is responsible to  10 

make sure that  the process is thorough and in  fact  you can 

even see thei r  minutes that  there was a process that  was the 

process that  was fol lowed.  So in addi t ion to that  cross-

funct ional  team there is also the bid adjudicat ion commit tee 

and then there is  EXCO and al l  of  these people basical ly are 

the gate keepers of  making sure that  procurement processes 

are fol lowed to the let ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  we saw yesterday f rom your evidence 

how this board of  which you were a member at  SAA at  least  

you know could overr ide a decision by other people in regard 20 

to the Ai r  Chefs contract .   You did not  even want to look at  

the mot ivat ion put  up by the act ing CEO because you had 

decided you were going to overr ide them; you were going to  

reverse the decis ion.   That  is – that  can happen when people 

know they have got  power.   They might  disregard whatever  
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other people have said.  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  I  said yesterday the Air  Chefs 

ret ract ion of  that  tender was – the ci rcumstances were 

di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you do not  have to repeat  them.  I  

remember the c i rcumstances you gave.   I  was just  saying but  

whatever you said what was qui te  clear f rom your evidence 

was that  at  least  the SAA board of  which you were a member 

you know would not  hesi tate to reverse a decis ion made by 

other people wi thin the company and in your case would not 10 

even bother to look at  the mot ivat ion for  the decision that  

they – they would – they wanted to reverse.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Kwinana I  

understood you yesterday to accept  in your evidence that  as 

a general  pr inciple boards of  state owned enterpr ises should 

not  get  involved in operat ional  matters.   Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is  lef t  to the management of  the SOE, 

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So then can you just  help me why i t  was at  

al l  necessary for non-execut ive board members of  SAA 

Technical  to go on this due di l igence t r ip at  al l?  Should that  

not  have been lef t  to management? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second before she answers.   Ms 
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Mbanjwa.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Chai r.   I t  was actual ly a  

response to what the Chai r  had put  to the wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MBANJWA:   And I  just  want  Chair  to remind you what 

the evidence of  the wi tness was.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MBANJWA:   The evidence of  the wi tness was th is.   The 

reason why the A ir  Chefs tender that  is the award to LSG 

was reversed by board was because of  appl icat ion of  a  10 

sect ion in the Publ ic Finance Management act  and the fact 

that  that  is a tender that  ought  not  to have gone out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is what… 

ADV MBANJWA:   Before …. 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  what  I  to ld her  not  to  remind me 

because I  remember what her evidence was.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MBANJWA:   So i t  is – because that  is creat ing the 

impression that  they can overr ide.   They do not  overr ide they 20 

apply.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.   I  remembered what evidence 

she gave.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr I  th ink you had asked a 
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quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes I  had asked why i f  board members are 

not  supposed to involve themselves in  operat ional  matters i t  

was necessary for  non-execut ive members of  the board to go 

on this  t r ip to do a due di l igence.   Should that  not  have been 

lef t  to management? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  has been at  SAA Technical  i t  has been a 

pract ice that  the board and management who undertake this  

t r ip  and i t  a lso did happen at  AAR. Both board and 

management did go to th is t r ip.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Why only some board members then? 

MS KWINANA:   Of  course i t  would depend on the meet ing 

who would be se lected to go and i t  a lso would apply wi th  

management.   Not  everybody would go because that  would 

mean that  al l  management i t  depends who is nominated to  

go and represent  SAA Technica l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  can understand that  for management I  

cannot real ly understand i t  for non-execut ive board 

members.   Why should there – why should some of  you have 

the benef i t  of  th is and not  others? 20 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  i t  has been – i t  has been the case.   

People have been nominated in board meet ings.   L ike for 

instance when SAAT went to Luf thansa and when SAAT went 

to Ai r  France I  was a board member at  SAA Technical  and I  

d id not  go to these t r ips.   So i t  depends who is nominated in  
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a meet ing to go.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So you d id i t  because i t  was a pract ice,  is 

that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Did you ever look at  whether the pract ice 

made sense? 

MS KWINANA:   For me i t  made sense because SAA 

Technical  is involved in h igh value cont ract  and therefore 

also as the members of  the board then the needed to go.   I  

real ly did not  see anything wrong.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Why would they need to go? 

MS KWINANA:   The previous – the previous – the previous 

chairpersons did go and I  a lso do not  see the reason why 

they would not  go.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  because… 

MS KWINANA:   [00:25:32]  that  they have a f iduciary 

responsibi l i ty to make sure that  the companies that  SAA 

Technical  enters into are genuine companies,  are the 

companies that  have got  capaci ty.   So I  real ly did not  see 

anything wrong in  the board members going in the previous 20 

board members going and me remaining behind I  real ly did 

not  see anything wrong.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  let  me put  to you what might  be 

wrong.   You see on your version you went so a due d i l igence 

could be done.  
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MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You have a fu l l  management team with no 

doubt the expert ise.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   To evaluate the proposed partner.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   They would go;  they would do the 

necessary and they would report  to you.   Your ev idence 

yesterday is that  these SOE’s were populated by highly 

qual i f ied people.    10 

And the reason for separat ion Ms Kwinana is  

precisely  because as the ul t imate account ing author i ty you 

must  make the f inal  cal l  on these decisions so you do not  

want to be inf luenced along the way.    

You leave your managers to do operat ional  stuff ;  to  

do the ni t ty gr i t ty of  the due d i l igence.   They feed i t  into you,  

you assess i t ,  you can go back you can say i t  is not  good 

enough but  you do not  get  on a plane and go and be wined 

and dined by somebody who is a bidder in a process.    

Do you accept  that  that  might  be a bet ter way to do 20 

i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  th is  has been the pract ice and I  do not  

doubt  the intel l igence of  the people who made those 

decisions including my own intel l igence Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana you enter – you come back 
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r ight .   You retract  the tender and you enter into the MOU.  

And I  heard you a moment ago I  th ink say enter ing into that  

MOU was one of  the best  decisions that  SAA Technical  took,  

is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   That  was – that  was the best  decis ion that  

SAA Technical  entered into the reason being that  AAR is 

providing [00:27:44]  components in almost  al l  the ai r l ines 

and therefore the reason why SAA Technical  has been 

incurr ing losses or one of  the reasons is because we have 

been using the middle man to get  to  th is purpose that  AAR is 10 

support ing.    

So that  is why I  am saying i f  and in  fact  AAR has got  

a network al l  over  the world  which SAA Technical  would also 

tap into.   So that  is why I  am saying i t  was one of  the best  

decisions that  we made.   

And in fact  Chai r  I  said they are – I  do not  regret  a  

single decision that  I  made when I  was a board member at  

SAA and SAA Technical  but  some of  the decis ions are 

def in i te ly bet ter than the others and th is one was one of  

those.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  just  want to be sure that  we are on the 

same page.  Because what you have g iven now as I  

understand your evidence is a just i f icat ion for choosing AAR 

ul t imately to be the components suppl ier.   But  your ev idence 

ear l ier was that  deciding to embark on the MOU – the 
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Memorandum of  Understanding wi th AAR was one of  the best  

decisions that  the board has taken.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you stand by that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Why was i t  abandoned a month later then? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is because the Terms and Condi t ions was 

that  af ter – I  th ink i t  was six months  i t  was a six month MOU 

the Terms and Condi t ions required that  af ter s ix months i f  

nothing – i f  no relat ionship happens then i t  needed to be 10 

cancel led.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No that  would explain why six months later 

i t  d id not  cont inue.   I t  was reversed a month af ter  i t  was 

entered into.   How could that  be a good decision? 

MS KWINANA:   I  may not  remember about the reversal  a 

month af ter.   My recol lect ion is that  that  MOU was a six 

month contract  –  so i t  is s ix months MOU and af ter s ix  

months i t  expi red.   So the one month,  I  real ly  do not  

remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   But  in  your  mind,  even f rom as 20 

ear ly as that  t r ip,  I  understand your  evidence to be,  you had 

ident i f ied AAR as an excel lent  suppl ier of  component parts.   

Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you bel ieve that  for SAA Technical  to  
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partner  wi th AAR would be one of  the best  th ings that  i t  

could do.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Mr Parsons who was your co-board 

member around this t ime had some concerns about that  

MOU.  Are you aware of  them? 

MS KWINANA :    You know I  do not  even want to ta lk about  

Mr Parsons.   The reason being that  he was not  even 

supposed to be in that  board because he was an i l legal  

immigrant .   Anyway.   I  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Are you aware that  he had concerns?  

That  is the quest ion.  

MS KWINANA :    I  am aware that  he had concerns and I  even 

wrote him a let ter,  an emai l  to say:   Let  us meet so that  I  can 

hear your concerns.   And to be honest  Chai r.   That  emai l  that  

Barry(?)  wrote,  I  d id not  even understand what he was 

complaining about.   What I  know is that  he was very,  very 

disgrunt led . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  you wi l l  not  be asked about that  

emai l  as yet .   Ms Hofmeyr.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you say he was disgrunt led that  he did 

not  get  to go on the t r ip? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh.   Al r ight .   So did you surmise that  he 

wri tes this let ter because he did not  get  on the t r ip wi th you 
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to the US? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you have any facts to back that  up? 

MS KWINANA :    The reason is  that  he was doing the 

walkabout wi th AAR people at  SAA Technical  and he 

supported this th ing,  the partnership and he was very 

support ive and he l iked i t .   And then al l  of  a sudden now he 

turns around and wri tes that  emai l  and subsequent ly he 

res igned.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So the t r ip was real ly something that  10 

mattered to the board members,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  the t r ip  mattered to the board 

members.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m, h’m.  And he had been excluded.  So 

he fel t  lef t  out .   Is  that  your version? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  he was part  of  that  meet ing that  

decided who should go.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  he holds some discomfort  or  

f rust rat ion maybe about the fact  that  he was not  selected,  

correct? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Everybody in the board meet ing needs to 

decide.   I t  is not  only one person who decides.   Everybody 

decides.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  indeed.  

MS KWINANA :    He also had an opportuni ty of  deciding and 
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make a recommendat ion as to who should go.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  Ms Kwinana i t  is not  about  that .   I  

mean, Ms Hofmeyr is real ly asking – is  fo l lowing up on your 

evidence that  he was disgrunt led.   Did he ever say:   I  want  

to go.   At  the board meet ing? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  remember him saying he wants to 

go because i f  he wanted to go,  obviously,  that  would be 

discussed and then a decision would have been made to say:   

Yes,  you can go or you cannot go.   With some reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you know of  any reason why,  i f  he 10 

wanted to go,  he would not  have expressed that  wish at  the 

board meet ing? 

MS KWINANA :    Even at . . .   I  la ter  came to understand 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   Ms Kwinana, do you know of  

any reason why,  i f  he wanted to go on the t r ip,  he would not  

have expressed that  wish at  the meet ing? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   I t  is because . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What is the reason that  you know? 

MS KWINANA :    I  know that  he is s tays in South Af r ica at  – 20 

was i l legal  at  the t ime.  And then therefore i t  would be 

di ff icul t  for him to get  out  of  the country.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So why would he be disgrunt led about not  

being nominated to go on a t r ip of  which he could not  go 

anyway even i f  he wanted to?  Where is the logic in that? 
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MS KWINANA :    Wel l ,  basical ly Chai r  that  is the only reason 

why I  would think that  al l  of  a sudden af ter the t r ip he 

res igned.   Otherwise,  that  would . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  but  we talk about  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I t  is purely speculat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  us talk about  your evidence that  he 

was disgrunt led because he was not  al lowed to go on the 

t r ip.   He was not  nominated.   I f  he – on your evidence,  he 

knew that  he could to go out  of  the count ry.   How could he 

be disgrunt led about not  being nominated?  Because even i f  10 

he had been nominated,  he would have been bound to 

decl ine.   I t  does not  make sense,  does i t?  

MS KWINANA :    That  is the speculat ion Chair  because I ,  as I  

am si t t ing here and . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  your speculat ion has no basis.   I t  

does not  make sense.   You are saying,  he could not  leave 

the count ry because he was i l legal  and he knew i t ,  in the 

count ry.   And then you say,  he was disgrunt led because he 

was not  nominated to go on the t r ip .    

 But  i f  he knew that  he was i l legal  and therefore could 20 

not  get  out  of  the count ry,  logical ly he could not  be 

disgrunt led about something that  he could not  take 

advantage of .  

MS KWINANA :    Maybe Chai r  he was disgrunt led because he 

could not  go . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  is that  another speculat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    . . .not  being nominated.   But  he could not  

go.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  another speculat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    I t  is a speculat ion Chai r  because I  do not  

understand his emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

MS KWINANA :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  his let ter is very clear about  his  

reasons,  r ight?  His let ter,  which you wi l l  f ind in your  bundle 10 

Ms Kwinana at  DD33, page 22.   So we are at  Exhib i t  DD33,  

page 22.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do I  need to go there? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  am just  going to read two points that  he 

made that  I  l ike to  pick up on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because Ms Kwinana has said that  she 

does not  understand f rom this let ter,  as I  have i t ,  why he was 20 

leaving.   Is that  your evidence Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   He says:  

“Please accept  my resignat ion wi th  immediate effect  

on the Board of  Di rectors of  SAA Technical .   I  fee l  
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l ike I  made a strong contr ibut ion to the board,  

f inding governance in the business,  weep(?) af ter  

what happened – what appeared years of  neglect .    

Unfortunately,  the value I  can add seems no longer 

wanted as i t  is  qui te clear ly due to  the AAR 

corporat ions st rategic partnership.  

There is c lear ly a hidden agenda somewhere in th is  

re lat ionship and i t  requires urgent  independent  

invest igat ion. ”  

 So i f  I  read that ,  he is communicat ing that  he is 10 

concerned that  there is something hidden in th is rela t ionship 

that  SAA Technical  is  forging wi th AAR.  Do you understand 

i t  in the same way? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   What is not  c lear about  that  reason? 

MS KWINANA :    What is not  c lear  is that  th is person was 

very exci ted about th is relat ionship and he was the person 

who was walk ing the AAR Team about.   And then now, al l  of  

a sudden, he wri tes this let ter.   So basica l ly,  I  just  do not  

understand.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  he . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But . . .   Precisely because he has real ised 

that  there is something hidden that  he does not  agree wi th.   

That  is why he at t i tude changes.   That  is logic.    

MS KWINANA :    Maybe Chai r  that  is what he should have 
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wr i t ten that  hidden agenda.  He could have said:   I  th ink 

there is a hidden agenda.  A h idden agenda being A,  B,  C,  D 

and E.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  he does do that .   So . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  he goes further? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    He goes on.   He explains precisely what  

his concerns are.   He talks about  the i r regular way in which 

the MOU was concluded.  He raised a ser ies of  concerns 

about i t  . . . [ indist inct ]   

MS KWINANA :    [ Indist inct ]   10 

[Part ies intervening each other and cannot be heard c lear ly. ]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    [ Indist inct ]   

MS KWINANA :    You take . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, wai t  unt i l  Ms Hofmeyr has 

f in ished what she has to say.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  am try ing to summarise.   

We can read every word of  th is le t ter i f  i t  is necessary.   I t  

was in your bundle.   So I  assume you have taken some t ime 

to look at  i t  beforehand.  I  am summarising now but  i f  you 

would l ike to go through i t  yoursel f ,  you must  let  us know.   20 

 He,  in essence,  says the fol lowing.   He had reservat ions 

about the conclusion of  the MOU.  He raises the concern 

about when i t  was entered into because there were certain 

t ime periods that  was supposed to run and i t  was unclear  

when i t  was entered into.    
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 That  appears in much more detai l  before this let ter  but  

here he is summarising i t .   And then important ly.   In the 

penul t imate as paragraph on page 23,  he says:  

“My other speci f ic concern is the ident i f icat ion and 

select ion of  the BBBEE partners,  i f  any,  for the 

proposed jo inted venture,  a process that  needs to  

be highly t ransparent  in a business that  al ready has 

an uncompet i t ive cost  base.  

The MOU received includes an implementat ion 

t imetable that  suggests this process may al ready be 10 

signi f icant ly advanced and there is no vis ib i l i ty of  

th is to ei ther the SAA Technical  or SAA boards or  

Nat ional  Treasury. ”  

 He concludes:  

“ I  hope the company shares my concerns and 

appreciate that  I  have no conf idence in the integr i ty  

of  the SAA Technical  Board and my membership of  

that  board has become a reputat ional  matter and i t  

is a simple decision to submit  my resignat ion. ”  

 What would you not  understand about that  Ms Kwinana? 20 

MS KWINANA :    I  st i l l  do not  understand when he ta lks 

about the ident i f icat ion and the select ion of  the BEE 

partners.   I  a lso do not  understand the MOU, what is not  

c lear about  the MOU.   

 And another th ing.   For him being a board member,  he 
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should have raised these issues in a meet ing.   And then now, 

he just  resigns wi thout  rais ing the issues and get  them 

properly at tended to.    

 So basical ly,  I  real ly do not  understand.   And i f ,  for  

instance,  he is ta lk ing about the AAR and the ident i f icat ion 

and the select ion of  the BEE partners and he referred to al l  

other companies.    

 We do not  – of  course,  we have got  a l ist  of  the BEE 

companies that  would want to do business wi th SAA.  But  

now, the select ion of  the BEE partners also do fo l low a 10 

r igorous process to be included in the database of  the 

BEE’s.    

 So basical ly,  i f  Mr Parsons had a problem with that ,  he 

was a board member.   He had the plat form to raise his  

issues and make sure that  they are proper ly communicated.    

 As I  sa id,  I  needed to have a meet ing wi th him and then 

we decide what  needs to happen.  And instead of  us 

meet ing,  he just  resigned.   So basical ly,  I  do not  understand 

a person at  h is level  who has the plat form to put  together 

what his concerns are,  he is unable to do that  and he simply 20 

res igns.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I t  is about  luncht ime.  But  Mbanjwa 

had her hand up.    

MS MBANJWA :    No . . . [ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Mbanjwa. 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 126 of 279 
 

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r  of  the opportuni ty but  

Ms Kwinana has a lready . . . [ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Has taken care of .  

MS MBANJWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   Ms Hofmeyr,  shal l  we take 

the lunch break now? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I t  is f ive past  one.   We wi l l  resume 

at  f ive past  two.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr,  I  see the  w i tness  is  no t  

here .   Ms Mban jwa is  no t  here .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  d id  say f i ve  past ,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  th ink  so ,  I  m igh t  have even heard  two,  

bu t  i t  m igh t  have been f i ve  past .   We can t ry  and take  

s teps to  contac t  them.   I  th ink  we might  have a  ce l l  phone  

number  fo r  Ms Mban jwa.   I  do  no t  know abou t  the i r  

loca t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   I  de f in i te ly  d id  say f i ve  past .   And 

on my watch  i t  i s  ten  past  now.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  another  f i ve  

m inutes .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  we w i l l  update  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  thank you.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

MS KWINANA:    Sorry  Cha i r  I  have to  apo log ise  

unreserved ly,  I  thought  i t  i s  quar te r  past  two,  so  we were  

in fo rmed by  Mr  K i rk land to  say i t  is  ac tua l l y  f i ve  past  two,  

our  s incere  apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay a l r igh t ,  jus t  pay a t ten t ion  more  

next  t ime when we say what  t ime we a re  coming back.   10 

MS KWINANA:   Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.    Ms Kw inana I  

ind ica ted  tha t  we are  go ing  to  be  focus ing  on  the  AAR 

cont rac t  and wha t  we ’ve  done in  the  ev idence so  fa r  i s  tha t  

we have looked a t  the  t r ip  tha t  some members  o f  the  Board  

and management  o f  SAA Techn ica l  took to  the  US we have  

looked a t  the  MOU and the  concerns tha t  your  Co-Board  

member  Mr  Parson ’s  had about  tha t  MOU.   I  wou ld  now l i ke  

to  ge t  to  ge t  to  the  ac tua l  f ina l  tender  tha t  was awarded to  20 

the  jo in t  venture  o f  AAR and JM Av ia t ion .   A re  you  aware  

tha t  tha t  was adver t i sed a t  the  end o f  2015 I  th ink  the  da te  

was the  8 t h  o f  December  2015.    

CHAIRPERSON:     Jus t  repeat  the  answers  so  i t  can  be  

recorded.    
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you d id  te l l  me prev ious l y  tha t  you 

had watched some o f  Ms Memela ’s  ev idence but  no t  a l l  o f  

i t .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Were  you aware  o f  the  par t  in  wh ich  she 

was taken to  the  requ i rements  in  the  RFB for  th is  tender  

tha t  p roh ib i ted  communica t ions w i th  anyone o ther  t han the  

pro jec t  manager?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were  no t  aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you  to  that  

today because what  we have t raversed w i th  Ms Memela  is  

tha t  she had rece ived communica t ion  f rom JM Av ia t ion  the  

jo in t  venture  pa r tner  o f  AAR whi le  the  b ids  were  open and  

she was asked to  comment  on  the  b id  submiss ion  o f  JM 

Av ia t ion  as  we l l  as  to  g ive  input  on  the i r  JV  agreement  and  

what  we showed  her  was tha t  tha t  was in  b reach  o f  the 

RFB,  o f  the  b id  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  i t .   You w i l l  -  20 

wou ld  f ind  i t  in  ac tua l l y  Mr  Human ’s  bund le  wh ich  is  DD22  

and i t  i s  the  m in i  f i l es  fo r  Mr  Human.   So th is  i s  DD22E and  

you w i l l  need to  p ick  i t  up  a t  page  2052,  two thousand and  

f i f t y - two.   So the  page is  2052,  two zero  f i ve  two and jus t  

fo r  the  record  where  everyone i s  tu rn ing  up  tha t  page I  do  
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no t  suggest  tha t  we go there  j us t  so  tha t  you know tha t  the  

b id ,  the  request  fo r  b id  commences in  Exh ib i t  DD22E 2043 

but  what  I  am want ing  us  to  look  a t  i s  2052.    

So tha t  i s  w i th in  the  request  fo r  b id  and i t  inc ludes 

a  C lause 1 .6  on  tha t  page.   Do you  see tha t  Ms Kwinana?     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  tha t  says is  C lause 1 .6 .1 :  

“A l l  que r ies  or  i n fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  th is  document  

o r  sur round ing  the  b id  must  be  addressed to  the  

pro jec t  manager  as  s t ipu la ted  on page 1  o f  th is  RFB 10 

in  wr i t ing . ”  

And then C lause 1 .6 .2 :  

“Any quer ies  addressed to  ind iv idua ls  o the r  than as  

s t ipu la ted  where  the  verba l  te lephon ic  and wr i t ten  

or  in  any o ther  fo rm wi l l  e l im ina te  the  b idder  f rom 

th is  p rocess. ”  

Do you see tha t?      

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  was put  to  Ms Memela  tha t  her  

communica t ions w i th  Ms Seku lu  who was represent ing  JM 20 

Av ia t ion  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  b id  was open were  in  b reach 

o f  tha t  c lause.   So you ag ree tha t  those commun ica t ions 

wou ld  have been in  b reach o f  tha t  c lause? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  now I  am drawing your  a t ten t ion  
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because you d id  no t  see Ms Memela 's  ev idence on th is  

p rev ious ly,  tha t  JM Av ia t ion  and  AAR cou ld  never  have  

been awarded th is  tender.   Do you  accept  tha t?    

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  want  to  say I  accept  o r  I  do  no t  

accept  bu t  as  I  sa id  i f  the  procurement  p rocesses were  no t  

fo l lowed or  were  f lawed in  one way or  another  then  

necessary  s teps wou ld  have been taken.      

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l  no  what  th i s  says a t  c lause 1 .6 .2  i s  

tha t  i f  you  address any quer ies  to  anyone o ther  than the  

pro jec t  manager  you are  e l im ina ted f rom th is  p rocess.   10 

What  poss ib le  s teps cou ld  then have been taken?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe Cha i r  you see when you get  me to  

read on ly  th is  and then the  tender  p rocess as  i t  i s  s ta r ts  

f rom the  beg inn ing  up to  the  end and then now you are  

te l l ing  me about  the  peop le  who  communica ted .  I  do  no t  

want  to  comment  about  the  peop le  who communica ted  

because I  do  no t  know what  they were  communica t ing  

about  and I  do  no t  know i f  they  communica ted  spec i f i ca l l y  

w i th  th is .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  tha t  i s  why I  ass is ted  w i th  jus t  a  20 

summary o f  the  ev idence tha t  was presented.   Would  you 

l i ke  me to  take  you to  the  communica t ions be tween JM 

Av ia t ion  and Ms Memela?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  le t  us  go  to  the  Sambu Bund le  
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tha t  i s  DD18 and we w i l l  need to  go  to  page 339.  

CHAIRPERSON:     I  th ink  somebody w i l l  ass i s t  you Ms 

Kwinana you can  s i t  down somebody must  ge t  the  f i le  fo r  

you.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  we do have  ass i s tance thank  you so  

much.   So we ’ re  look ing  fo r  DD18,  one e igh t  and we go ing  

to  beg in  a t  page 339.   

CHAIRPERSON:     I t  was w i th  her  jus t  now I  th ink  i t  must  

the  one on top  o f  the  o thers  i t  must  be  one o f  those,  ja .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    So 339 is  the  page.   Okay  so  Ms  10 

Kwinana what  you see here  is  m idway down the  page do  

you see tha t  there  is  a  f rom Khos i  Seku lu  da te  14  January  

2016 a t  four  in  the  a f te rnoon to  Nomsasa Memela  a t  an 

IC loud emai l  address and the  sub jec t  i s :  

“RE:  Jo in t  Ventu re  Dra f t  Agreement . ”  

Do you see tha t?         

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  i s  the  communica t ion  be tween 

Ms Seku lu ,  what  was Ms Seku lu ’s  s ta tus  a t  JM Av ia t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    A d i rec to r.   20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  d i rec tor  o f  JM Av ia t ion ’s  sends  

to  Ms Memela  who was the  Head  o f  P rocurement  a t  SAAT 

the  jo in t  ventu re  dra f t  agreement  tha t  was go ing  to  be  

en tered in to  be tween JM Av ia t ion  and AAR and she says:  

“H i  cous in  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  d ra f t  o f  the  JV  so  fa r.   
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Ju les  d id  a  qu ick  rev iew and not i ced the  fo l low ing 

and then po in t  1  re la tes  to  the  agreed  

par t i c i pa t ion . ”  

So JM Av ia t ion  was go ing  to  5% and AAR 95% then  C lause 

6  sa id :  

“Par t i c ipa t ion  in te res t  the  same JM Av ia t ion ,  5% 

AAR,  95%.”  

And then over  the  page:  

“As per  the  co l labora t ion  agreement  JMS to  rece ive  

5% of  any amoun ts  rece ived by  AAR f rom SAAT,  th is  10 

is  l inked to  revenue not  p ro f i t s .   For  example ,  i f  

SAAT remi ts  a  100 000 US Do l la rs  to  AAR then JM 

is  to  rece ive  f i ve  m i l l ion  US Do l la rs ,  so r ry  5  000 US  

Do l la rs . ”  

D id  I  say  m i l l ions  ear l ie r  I  m igh t  have,  sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:     I  d id  no t  hear.                 

ADV HOFMEYR:     

“100 000,00 US do l la rs  t hen  JM Av ia t ion  ge ts  5  000  

US do l la rs .   The way the  par t i c ipa t ion  in te res t  

c lause is  wr i t ten  and s ta tes  tha t  JM wi l l  rece i ve  5% 20 

o f  the  pro f i t s  th is  i s  no t  cor rec t .  We need to  

de termine what  w i l l  5% o f  revenue equate  to  as  a  

parentage ownersh ip  o f  the  jo in t  venture  fo r  JM,  

p lease le t  me know i f  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  we 

might  have over looked?”  
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So  th is  i s  a  communica t ion  be tween a  b idder  and a  Head o f  

P rocurement  who  conf i rmed in  her  ev idence fa i r l y  tha t  she 

was not  the  p ro jec t  manager  w i th  whom the  on ly  

communica t ions cou ld  take  p lace  ask ing  fo r  her  i nput  on  

the  way tha t  they were  s t ruc tur ing  the  JV agreement  and  

the  look th rough the  JM Av ia t ion  wou ld  have to  a l l  revenue  

genera ted  by  AAR.   The second  communica t ion  you w i l l  

f ind  a t  page 367 .   Now 367 is  an  emai l  o f  the  same day 

aga in  you must  go  ha l fway down i t  i s  f rom Ms Seku lu  

aga in ,  14 t h  o f  January  2016 now i t  i s  th i r teen minu tes  past  10 

e igh t  in  the  even ing  to  Ms Memela  a t  he r  iC loud address.   

I t  says :  

“Sub jec t  fo rward  RE:  South  A f r i ca  Dra f t  P roposa l .  

H i  Cuz,  so  here  i s  the  la tes t  p roposa l  le t  me know i f  

i t  i s  acceptab le  thanks. ”  

And then i f  you tu rn  ove r  two pages you w i l l  see  there  a t  

page 369 what  was a t tached and tha t  i s  the  then dra f t  o f  

the  AAR,  JM Av ia t ion  b id .   So now hav ing  seen those 

documents  are  you then sa t is f ied  tha t  JM Av ia t ion  and AAR 

shou ld  have been  e l im ina ted f rom h is  p rocess?            20 

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  want  to  say yes o r  no  tha t  wou ld  

a lso  depend on the  ro le  tha t  Ms  Memela  wou ld  p lay  i n  

respect  o f  the  jo in t  ventu re .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No i t  does not ,  do  you remember  we saw 

the  c lause.   The c lause says:  
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“Any quer ies  addressed to  ind iv idua ls  o the r  than as  

s t ipu la ted  i .e .  the  pro jec t  manager  where  the  verba l  

te lephon ic  and wr i t ten  or  in  any o the r  fo rm wi l l  

e l im ina te  the  b idder  f rom th i s  p rocess. ”  

Ms Kwinana?  

CHAIRPERSON:     Wel l  I  am sor ry  Ms Hofmeyr,  le t  us  jus t  

go  back to  tha t  page where  tha t  c lause i s  jus t  to  make sure  

you know what  you a re  c lear  about  what  c lause Ms 

Hofmeyr  i s  ta lk ing  about  a t  page 205 o f  DD22E.       

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:     DD22E a t  page  2052.   Have you got  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja ,  C lause 1 .6  th is  i s  communica t ion  

sur round ing  the  RFB c lause 1 .6 .1 :  

“A l l  que r ies  or  i n fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  th is  document  

o r  sur round ing  the  b id  must  be  addressed to  the  

pro jec t  manager  as  s t ipu la ted  on page 1  o f  th is  RFB 

in  wr i t ing . ”  

1 .6 .2 :  

“Any quer ies  addressed to  ind iv idua ls  o the r  than as  20 

s t ipu la ted  whethe r  ve rba l ,  te lephon ic  and wr i t ten  o r  

in  any o ther  fo rm  wi l l  e l im ina te  the  b idder  f rom th i s  

p rocess. ”  

Do you unders tand tha t?     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Now my unders tand ing  o f  th is  c lause 

1 .6 .2  i s  tha t  i f  any  b idder  communica tes  in  any way about  

the  b id  o ther  than th rough  the  pro jec t  manager,  

communica tes  w i th  o ther  peop le  in  the  company tha t  b idder  

i s  e l im ina ted,  no  d iscuss ion ,  tha t  i s  i t .   I s  your  

unders tand ing  the  same or  i s  i t  d i f fe ren t?      

MS KWINANA:    My unders tand ing  is  the  same in  respect  

o f  th is  1 .6 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:     Yes.   

MS KWINANA:    However  as  I  sa id  yeste rday there  a re  10 

many c i r cumstances sur round ing  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    There  are  many c i rcumstances tha t  

what?  

MS KWINANA:   Surround ing  tha t  and some t ime yesterday  

I  spoke about  a  s i tua t ion  where  somet imes i t  i s  impract ica l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  hang on,  excuse me,  th is  i s  a  ru le  

pu t  in to  a  b id ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you see tha t  i t  doesn ’ t  p rov ide  fo r  

any except ions,  do  you see tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  there  are  now except ions prov ided  

fo r,  so  how are  you go ing  to  c rea te  your  own excep t ions to  

the  ro le ,  because i f  anybody th inks  there  a re  d i f f i cu l t ies  

w i th  the  ru le  then they must  use in te rna l  p rocesses to  say  
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we mustn ’ t  have such a  ru le ,  we must  change i t ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r. .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you can ’ t  have a  s i tua t ion  where  the  

ru le  has no  except ions and anybody is  f ree  to  make the i r  

own except ions then the  ru le  w i l l  no t  work ,  you  accept  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  thank you.   Ms Mban jwa?  

MS MBANJWA:   Thank you Cha i r,  i f  I  can  take  Cha i r  back 

to  2052,  the  c lause tha t  has jus t  been read,  C lause 1 .6 .2 ,  10 

tha t  c lause has a  head ing ,  “communica t ion  su r round ing  the  

RFB” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  what  you  –  immedia te ly  you say  

tha t  i t  seems to  me someth ing  tha t  you shou ld  reserve  fo r  

re -examinat ion  because i t  seems you want  a  cer ta in  

qua l i f i ca t ion  or  mean ing  to  be  a t tached to  i t  wh ich  you can 

do a t  re -examinat ion .  

MS MBANJWA:    No Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  want  to  be  obst ruc t i ve  

bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you see . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MS MBANJWA:   . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  ta lk ing  over  one another ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on Ms  Mban jwa,  you see the  

danger  o f  do ing  tha t  now is  tha t  i t  w i l l  l ook  l i ke  you a re  

g iv ing  a  t ip  to  the  w i tness . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MBANJWA:   No,  I  wanted . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  you  reserve  i t  fo r  la te r  then  

nobody w i l l  th ink  they tha t  you are  t ry ing  to  g ive  a  t ip  to  

the  w i tness.  

MS MBANJWA:   No Cha i r,  I  know I  am not  g iv ing  a  t ip  to  

the  w i tness,  ac tua l l y  the  quest ion  is  addressed  to  Ms 

Hofmeyr,  what  I  want  Ms Hofmeyr  to  do ,  because she has  

re fer red  us  to  th i s  o the r  bund le ,  tha t  i s  bund le  BD18 ,  wh ich  

is  o f  a  JV,  so  I  want  now Ms Hofmeyr  to  show us what  k ind  

o f  communica t ion  is  ment ioned in  the  RFB under  wh ich  the  

day be fo re .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  p lease leave Ms Hofmeyr  to  do 

her  job  as  she sees f i t  you  w i l l  come in  a t  re -examinat ion  

and e i the r  exp lo i t  whatever  you be l ieve  is  a  w i tness on  

how she d id  the  job  bu t  leave tha t  fo r  re -examinat ion .    Ms  

Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r,  so  Ms Kwinana I  

unders tand your  ev idence to  be  tha t  you and the  Cha i r  

agree on your  unders tand ing  o f  tha t  c lause,  tha t  there  i s  

no  except ions,  tha t  the  b idder  w i l l  be  e l im ina ted f rom the  

process and I  ac tua l l y  do  want  to  add c lause 1 .6 .3  because 20 

I  th ink  i f  there  was any debate ,  wh ich  I  don ’ t  th ink  there  

can be,  1 .6 .3  conc ludes the  po in t  because i t  says :  

“no  d i scuss ions w i l l  be  en te red in to  sur round ing  

e l im ina t ion  th rough  non-compl iance in  C lause 

1 .6 .1 . ”  
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So  I  wou ld  say  what  was a l ready c lea r  in  1 .6 .2  i s  

emphas ize  aga in  in  1 .6 .  we are  no t  even go ing  to  debate  

the  issue i f  you communica te  you  w i l l  be  e l im ina ted.   Now 

Ms Kwinana i f  you as  a  Board  member,  the  Cha i r  o f  SAAT 

had had th is  b rought  to  your  a t ten t ion  when you dec ided to  

award  th is  jo in t  venture  to  AAR and JM Av ia t ion  wou ld  you 

have sa id  they have been e l im ina ted,  I  cannot  award  th is  

to  JM Av ia t ion  and AAR.  

MS KWINANA:    What  the  management  wou ld  b r ing  to  the 

Board  they wou ld  br ing  say a  recommendat ion  or  the  10 

cance l la t ion  o f  the  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease ra i se  your  vo ice .  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:   So what  I  am say ing  Cha i r  what  wou ld  

come to  the  Board  wou ld  be  a  recommendat ion  f rom 

management ,  f rom the  CEO and is  execut ives  to  say there  

are  f laws in  respect  o f  th is  tender,  and there fore  we 

recommend tha t  the  tender  be  cance l led  and then they  

wou ld  s ta te  whatever  the  reasons  tha t  they pu t  to  cance l  20 

the  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana I  am sor ry  p lease you – 

there  i s  no  need to  g ive  a  long answer  to  th is ,  the  quest ion  

tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  pu t t ing  to  you  is  i f  you  knew th is  ru le  

as  i t  reads,  and you to ld  me what  your  unders tand ing  is  o f  
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i t ,  and i t  i s  the  same as my unders tand ing ,  i f  you  knew th is  

ru le  and you knew what  had happened w i th  regard  to  th is  

communica t ion ,  wou ld  you have  taken the  a t t i tude tha t  

there fo re  th i s  b idder  had been e l im ina ted or  wou ld  you not  

have done i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  how bas ica l l y  we  dec ide  I  wou ldn ’ t  

jus t  say  e l im ina te  the  tender,  even  i f  I  knew I  wou ld  take  i t  

to  the  Board  and get  the  c i rcumstances sur round ing  tha t  

be fore  the  Board  dec ides tha t  the  tender  must  be  

cance l led .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean you have agreed tha t  th is  ru le  

does not  make  prov i s ion  fo r  except ions,  so  what  

c i rcumstances wou ld  you look fo r?  

MS KWINANA:   How we dec ided Cha i r  a t  the  Board  even  

i f  I  knew th is  in fo rmat ion  there  is  no  ways tha t  I  wou ld  go  

in  the  passage and say th is  b idder  i s  e l im ina ted even i f  I  

knew about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  i t  i s  no t  about  the  passage,  i t  i s  

about  in  your  own mind what  wou ld  you unders tand the  

e f fec t  o f  a  b reach o f  th is  ru le  to  be ,  wou ld  you accept  tha t  20 

the  e f fec t  was tha t  th is  b idder  was e l im ina ted o r  wou ld  you  

say the  b idder  was not  e l im ina ted  even though the  b idder  

had ac ted  in  b reach o f  th is  ru le?    Now tha t  on  your  own  

once you know tha t  th is  i s  the  ru le ,  th is  i s  what  i t  says ,  

there  are  no  except ions tha t  i t  p rov ides fo r,  th is  b idder  has 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 140 of 279 
 

ac ted  in  b reach o f  th is  ru le?  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  I  wou ldn ’ t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  do  tha t  

on  my own.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  have to  take  a  v iew,  I  mean 

tha t ’s  what  Ms Hofmeyr  wants  to  es tab l i sh  f rom you,  what  

i s  the  v iew tha t  you wou ld  have,  wou ld  i t  be  tha t  a  b reach 

o f  th is  ro le  means the  b idder  i s  e l im ina ted or  wou ld  you 

s ta r t  say ing  we l l  there  must  be  some except ions or  wou ld  

you say no  i t  i s  no t  e l im ina ted because when you meet  as  

a  board  you mus t  have thought  about  i ssues and taken a  10 

v iew yourse l f .  

MS KWINANA:   Of  course  Cha i r  look ing  on  the  face  o f  i t  

be fore  cons ider ing  the  reasons why and c i r cumstances,  on  

the  face  o f  i t  I  wou ld  be  o f  the  v iew tha t  the  b idder  shou ld  

be  e l im ina ted,  however  as  I  sa id  I  wou ld  no t  be  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  say e l im ina te  on  my own,  I  wou ld  ga ther  some 

ev idence and f ind  ou t  what  happened,  and whether  indeed 

tha t  shou ld  be  e l im ina ted and in  fac t  tha t  wou ld  be  dec ided 

not  by  me on ly  as  the  Cha i rperson but  a lso  a l l  the 

members  o f  the  Board .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you know Ms Hofmeyr  d rew your  

a t ten t ion  to  C lause 1 .6 .3  and I  th ink  she is  r igh t  in  say ing  

i f  you  look a t  tha t  c lause i f  there  was any doubt  tha t  

anybody had about  the  mean ing  o f  C lause 1 .6 .2  tha t  doubt  

i s  removed when  you get  to  C lause 1 .6 .3  because  i t  i s  – 
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the  message i s  c lea r,  a  b reach o f  th is  ru le  i s  so  se r ious  

tha t  the  company w i l l  no t  en ter ta in  any d i scuss ions w i th  

the  b idder  about  the  e l im ina t ion .   I f  you  are  e l im ina ted 

because you have ac ted  in  b reach  o f  th is  ru le  there  w i l l  be 

no  d i scuss ions,  you are  cu t  o f f ,  tha t ’s  how ser ious the  

company took th is  i ssue o f  communica t ion  be tween a  

b idder  and o f f i c ia ls  o ther  than the  pro jec t  manager.   Th i s  

says we have one pe rson to  ta lk  to ,  o r  communica te  w i th  

about  the  b id ,  th i s  i s  the  pro jec t  manager.    So you cannot  

say  you do not  have anybody to  t a lk  to ,  bu t  i f  you  then go  10 

and communica te  w i th  somebody e lse  you a re  in  b reach o f  

th is ,  you have been to ld  th is ,  you know about  i t  because i t  

i s  inc luded here ,  there  w i l l  be  no  d i scuss ions,  you are  

e l im ina ted.    

 Now do you have any doubt  tha t  tha t  i s  how 

emphat ic  the  message under ly ing  th is  c lause is?  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r  I  have no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have no doubt ,  okay a l r i gh t .   Thank 

you.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  then Ms Kwinana in  fa i rness to  you I  20 

don ’ t  rea l l y  unders tand your  res i s tance to  say ing  

abso lu te ly,  i f  th is  came to  my a t ten t ion  as  the  Cha i r  o f  the  

SAA Techn ica l  Board  tha t  a  b idder  was be ing  proposed to  

the  Board  to  be  conf i rmed fo r  th is  cont rac t  tha t  ought  to  

have been e l im ina ted,  you wou ldn ’ t  reso lu te l y  say  there  is  
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no  way tha t  they can be awarded th is  tender.   Why do you  

res i s t  say ing  c lear ly  they shou ld  have been e l im ina ted,  

they shou ld  no t  have got  th is  tender.  

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  res is t ing  Cha i r  bu t  I  am 

emphas iz ing  the  co l lec t i ve  Board  dec i s ion  because 

def in i te ly  I  wou ldn ’ t  say  th i s  i s  e l im ina ted,  tha t  i s  why I  am 

say ing  we wou ld  take  i t  to  the  Board  and dec ide  as  a  

co l lec t i ve  so  bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  no t  how we dec ide ,  I  don ’ t  

dec ide  a lone Cha i r  in  the  Board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    In  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  Ms Kwinana  I  have to ld  you what  Ms 

Hofmeyr  i s  look ing  fo r  i s  your  own judgment  o f  what  i s  

permi t ted  and what  i s  no t  permi t ted  i f  there  are  ru les  tha t  

say  A ,  B ,  C,  D,  you might  no t  be  the  person in  a  par t i cu la r  

case to  make the  dec is ion  bu t  you  can have a  v iew and in  

th is  case when you are  Cha i rpe rson o f  a  Board  you are  the  

leader  and you shou ld  show the  way,  you shou ld  be  c lear  

about  what  the  ru les  are ,  you shou ld  be  c lear  about  how 

the  ru les  must  be  en forced,  compl iance w i th  the  ru les ,  so  i f  

you  say  i t  i s  the  co l lec t i ve ,  the  co l lec t i ve  m ight  have to  20 

take  a  dec is ion  i f  the  power  to  make a  dec is ion  is  g iven to  

the  co l lec t i ve  bu t  tha t  does not  mean you cannot  o r  shou ld  

no t  have your  own v iew o f  what  i s  permi t ted ,  and what  i s  

no t  permi t ted  in  te rms o f  the  ru les ,  do  you unders tand? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .   Ms Mban jwa?  

MS MBANJWA:    Chai r  I  know you are  go ing  to  be  

f rus t ra ted  but  I  s t i l l  fee l  the  quest ion  tha t  i s  pu t  to  the  

w i tness i s  inco r rec t  because we were  no t  re fe r red  to  

someth ing  in  the  RFB tha t  says communica t ion  be tween 

two b idders  abou t  a  JV  is  a  v io la t ion  o f  the  prov i s ion  o f  

tha t  RV.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  am go ing  to  say aga in  Ms Mban jwa  

when you re-examine you can get  tha t  c la r i f ied .   Ms  

Hofmeyr?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   So can I  then  take  i t  to  be 

your  ev idence tha t  Ms Kwinana you accept  tha t  AAR and 

JM Av ia t ion  shou ld  no t  have been awarded th i s  tender  

because they shou ld  have been e l im ina ted?  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id  Cha i r  I  wou ld  no t  say  they 

shou ld  have been e l im ina ted  or  no t ,  because the  

c i rcumstances su r round ing  tha t  my lawyer  wants  to  c la r i f y  

someth ing  and we are  unab le  to  do  tha t ,  and there fore  

what  you are  say ing  to  me you are  say ing  I  must  agree tha t  

I  shou ld  have sa id  tha t  and the re fore  I  w i l l  no t  do  tha t  20 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on Ms Hofmeyr.    You see Ms  

Mban jwa th is  i s  what  I  was ta lk ing  about ,  tha t  when the  

w i tness is  s t i l l  be ing  asked ques t ions and you ra ise  the  

issues tha t  you ra ise  th i s  i s  what  i s  go ing  to  happen,  now 
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she  is  say ing  because he r  lawyer  i s  ra is ing  a  ce r ta in  i ssue  

she is  no t  go ing  to  answer  tha t .   I t  does not  do her any 

good.  She should be seen to be giving her  evidence wi thout  

assistance f rom anybody.   You see.   But  i f  you do that  i t  

g ives r ise to that  percept ion even i f  you might  not  intend i t  

that  way yoursel f .   Okay Ms Hofmeyr what was your answer 

Ms Kwinana?  You said you would – you wi l l  not  give an 

answer or what was your answer? 

MS KWINANA:   I  was saying Chai r  I  would not  wi th certainty 

say they should have been el iminated or not  because as I  10 

said before that  would depend on the ci rcumstances and I  

have seen these clauses.   But  now they needed to be read 

together wi th the whole bid and together wi th what was 

discussed here.   And therefore there needs to be some 

al ignment between what is discussed here and also wi th the 

RFP.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  in any doubt  that  the 

communicat ion wi th Ms Memela and Ms Sokhulu was about  

the bid.  Are you in  any doubt about  that? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is – the communicat ion is about  the JV 20 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The agreement? 

MS KWINANA:   The communicat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes relates to the draf t  agreement.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   [ inaudible]  
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CHAIRPERSON:   That  re lates to… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  is the draf t  agreement is the f i rs t  emai l .   

The second emai l  at taches the bid – the bid and says is i t  

acceptable.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is what the second emai l  says.  

MS KWINANA:   Okay this one is – th is one is the JV and 

then where is the emai l  that  at taches the bid? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   367.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Oh okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have moved – we moved f rom the… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies we did Chai r.   So we are in 

DD18 at  367.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  DD20? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No DD18.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   At  367.  

CHAIRPERSON:   367.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes because remember there were two 20 

communicat ions on the 14 January.   I  took you to the f i rst  

emai l  that  is at  four o’c lock in the af ternoon.   There was a 

moment of  some humour in Ms Memela ’s evidence because 

she had indicated that  she would use her non-SAAT emai l  

address for communicat ions af ter hours and then I  asked her  
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is 4:00 pm af ter  hours.   That  is why that  one stays in my 

memory qui te clear ly.   And then there is the later on at  8:00 

pm where i t  is now no longer the JV i t  is the bid proposal  

which you see at tached at  369 and i t  is asking Ms Sokhulu 

who addresses Ms Memela as Cuz.  

“Here is the latest  proposal  please let  me 

know i f  i t  is acceptable. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  was told  Cuz in an abbreviat ion for  

cousin.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Hm.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   What I  have just  said might  dist ract  you 

f rom what you were looking for.   I  th ink what you were 

looking for  was the communicat ion whether i t  was about the 

bid or not .   I  th ink Ms Hofmeyr has referred you to page 368 

communicat ion – is i t  368 or 36? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   367 is where i t  starts Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is where i t  starts.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is the emai l ,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Hm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then i f  you go to 369 that  is the bid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Hm Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So now you have establ ished – we have 

establ ished Ms Kwinana that  i t  was a quest ion about whether  
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the bid proposal  was acceptable and do you then accept  that  

JV Aviat ion and AAR should have el iminated? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then they should not  have been 

awarded th is tender,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   So you do not  anymore.   You began 

yesterday and this morning to say you stand by a l l  of  these 

decisions.   I  take i t  that  you do not  stand by this one 

anymore? 10 

MS KWINANA:   I  do not  stand by which one?  The award? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   The one in terms of  which they got… 

MS KWINANA:   The award? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes when they had breached the tender 

ru les and should have been el iminated.  

MS KWINANA:   When they breached the tender rules yes 

Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is  the one that  they f inal ly got  on the 

9 May when the board met and gave them the tender for  f ive 

years wi th AAR and JM Aviat ion.   I t  is in that  process that  20 

they should have been el iminated.   Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So we – and in  fa i rness to you 

given that  concession we do not  need to spend t ime on the 

way in which the decision was mot ivated at  the t ime because 
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th is informat ion was not  brought  to your  at tent ion at  the 

t ime, was i t?  

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you regard i t  as an obl igat ion on Ms 

Memela to have disclosed i t  to  the board that  she had 

received this communicat ion whi le the bid was st i l l  open 

f rom one of  the bidders? 

MS KWINANA:   I  th ink Ms Memela of  course i f  she received 

i t  she would have not  even disclosed i t  to the board but  

el iminate.   So basical ly i t  would not  even come to the board.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is t rue and actual ly that  is an 

important  po int  because earl ier you said what would happen 

i f  th is was discovered is that  there would be a 

recommendat ion that  came to the board to cancel  the tender.   

I  want  to suggest  to you that  is by no means what would 

happen.  You do not  cancel  the tender you just  el iminate the 

bidder who has breached the rules and you let  the remaining 

bidders stay in the process,  do you not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So that  is what should have 20 

happened.  I t  should not  even have been before the board to 

approve AAR and JM Aviat ion should i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  was Ms Memela who held 

informat ion that  she did not  disc lose to anyone which i f  she 
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had disclosed i t  would have el iminated JV of  AAR and JM 

Aviat ion,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  for whatever reason she thought that  

AAR should not  be el iminated because of  the breach of  th is  

ru le at  least  she should have disclosed to say there has 

been this  communicat ion this is  what the rule says but  I  take 

the fol lowing view.  She should not  have just  not  el iminated 

them and not  have disclosed to some higher author i ty,  is i t  10 

not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And Ms Kwinana in  the process that  did 

lead up to the board’s decision on the 9 May 2016 you 

received submissions f rom the then act ing CEO of  SAAT Mr 

Malola Phi r i ,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   In  respect  of  the tenderers? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   Because he made the 

recommendat ion to the board.   Remember they were 20 

recommending Ai r  France and at  the board meet ing on the 9 

May you and your fe l low board members decided not  to go 

wi th management ’s recommendat ion and you went for the 

jo int  venture of  JM Aviat ion and AAR, do you recal l  that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And al l  I  am clar i fy ing is the person who 

makes that  submission to you was the then act ing CEO Mr 

Malola Phi r i ,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Now I  want to just  move to 

your communicat ions at  th is t ime.  Because dur ing this t ime 

you were having a number of  te lephone conversat ions wi th 

the Mr Ndzeku were you not? 

MS KWINANA:   I  would not  – I  would not  know unt i l  you 

show me and that  is very possible.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  is possible.   So whi le a tender is open in  

respect  of  which JM Aviat ion and AAR are jo int  b idders you 

were having communicat ions wi th the director of  JM Aviat ion,  

is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Are you not  concerned that  that  would not  

be appropriate in the c i rcumstances? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  real ly would not  be concerned.   The 

reason being that  as I  to ld you about the processes and as I  

to ld you about the fact  that  basica l ly  the only t ime that  we 20 

know is when the documentat ion is in f ront  of  us.   And I  a lso 

told you that  there are many tenders at  SAA Technical  

including SAA and I  do not  have a record where I  would say 

the tender is start ing now and then the tender is  ending 

there.   So wi th me not  being involved in the tender process I  
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would communicate f reely wi th Mr Ndzeku without  knowing 

that  there is a  tender that  is  going on or wi thout  register ing 

that  there is a tender going on.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  remember I  asked you about  Mr 

Phi r i ’s  submissions to the board.   In your own aff idavi t  you 

explain that  there were some earl ier  submissions where 

Luf thansa was f i rst  and then you asked them to go back and 

then there were later submissions and then what came was 

Air  France.   Do  you recal l  saying that  in your aff idavi t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes and in fact  I  was state – I  a lso stated 10 

the reason why they were taken back.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Correct .  

MS KWINANA:   Is because there was a disagreement 

between management in f ront  of  the board where the – the 

CFO was in disagreement in terms of  I  th ink the b id – the 

process basical ly.   And then I  said you cannot f ight  in f ront  

of  us.   Go back and make sure that  you come with the same 

voice.   So basical ly they did go back and came with the 

same voice and the process cont inued.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but  that  means you knew when you 20 

were speaking to  Mr Ndzeku that  he was a bidder in th is 

open tender because you had al ready had that  interact ion 

where you had asked him to go back where they were 

pr iv i leging Luf thansa over AAR and Ai r  France.   They came 

back to you again.   In al l  of  that  t ime you knew fu l l  wel l  Ms 
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Kwinana that  JM Aviat ion was a bidder.  

MS KWINANA:   The date when we told them to go back and 

when they came back I  do not  th ink there was much 

di fference that  is point  number 1.   Point  number 2 Mr Ndzeku 

is  not  operat ional  and I  do not  even think that  he had even 

an input  into this.    

Hence I  said yesterday basica l ly  in fact  I  made a 

pract ical  example where I  – l ike i f  a person goes to the 

shopping cent re and then you come across a person maybe 

you would even know that  there is a tender here and maybe 10 

the person does not  know that  there is a tender there.    

So basical ly  my interact ion wi th Mr Ndzeku was not  

in any way about  the tender that  was – that  was happening 

there.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is a di fferent  answer to the one you 

gave ear l ier.   The ear l ier  answer was i t  was okay for  you to  

communicate wi th  Mr Ndzeku because at  the t ime you were 

communicat ing wi th him you did not  know JM Aviat ion was a 

bidder.   I  am now showing you how that  cannot factual ly be 

so.   So your answer is now as I  understand i t  that  is okay for  20 

you to have been communicat ing wi th him because you were 

not  ta lk ing about the bid,  is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is also what I  said yesterday Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  am saying how i t  d i ffers f rom the 

evidence you have just  given now.  I  am not  suggest ing you 
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d id not  say that  yesterday.   What I  would then l ike to 

understand is how do you know he was not  operat ional  at  JM 

Aviat ion?  I  thought  you were not  ta lk ing to  him about 

anything speci f ic to JM Aviat ion? 

MS KWINANA:  Of  course.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Of  course so how do you know he was not  

operat ional? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is exact ly the reason because i f  he was 

operat ional  at  JM he would basical ly ta lk about  JM.  Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you sure that  is the – that  is the 

answer you are giving? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   And in fact  – in fact  that  is the answer I  can 

give you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The reason why you know that  he was not  20 

operat ional  is because he was not  ta lk ing to you about 

operat ional  matters? 

MS KWINANA:   Of  course.   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Kwinana you even 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 154 of 279 
 

spoke to Mr Ndzeku the day before the board took the 

decision,  do you remember that? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chair  I  do not  remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You spoke to him at  twelve minutes past  

seven in the evening.   You do not  have a memory of  that? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.   Okay.   Do you want me to take you to 

the cel l  phone records that  show that  or wi l l  you accept  that  

that  took place? 

MS KWINANA:   I  wi l l  accept  i t  Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Right  then I  would l ike to  

move to – wel l  in fa i rness to you do you accept  that  i t  would 

be high – i t  was highly i r regular for you the chai rperson of  

the board of  SAA Technical  to have numerous conversat ions 

wi th the director  of  a bidder whi le the bid was open in  

advance of  you taking the decision to award i t  to him and his  

jo int  venture partner.  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  do not  take i t  as i r regular.   We were 

not  ta lk ing about the bid and i t  fact  also my talk ing about the 

bid would end in  the board room.  And I  do not  th ink Mr 20 

Ndzeku would talk about  the b id anyway.   And as I  to ld you 

that  we were talk ing about the whole lot  of  th ings and 

therefore you cannot assume that  when we are talk ing at  ten 

past  seven in the morning or whatever t ime we are talk ing 

about the bid.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   We have only your word for that  do we not  

Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   What about  that  ru le that  we talked about 

ear l ier on would i t  not  have appl ied to you? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  we are not  – we were not  ta lk ing about 

the RSB yet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes so in your  view how would the 

ru le be pol iced by the company i f  people who are going to be 10 

making decisions could have telephone conversat ions wi th 

whichever bidder they wanted to ta lk to even the day before 

the decision is taken.   How would the company pol ice this to 

make sure that  there is that  people wi thin the company 

whether board members or managers to make sure that  they 

do not  discuss matters relat ing to  bids wi th bidders.   How 

would they pol ice i t?  Who is there to pol ice – pol ice you and 

Mr Ndzeku when the day before the – you decide the bid you 

are having a telephone conversat ion in the evening.  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  said ear l ier – yesterday Mr Ndzeku is  20 

involved in many other businesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  does not  te l l  me how … 

MS KWINANA:   And in fact… 

CHAIRPERSON:   How the company would pol ice this .   Then 

my quest ion is i f  the posi t ion was that  as a decision maker i f  
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you are going to  make a decision tomorrow on a bid the 

evening before you could phone one of  the bidders and have 

an hour long conversat ion wi th them, i t  is f ine as long as you 

do not  ta lk about  the bid.   How wi l l  the company know that  

dur ing that  hour long conversat ion you did not  ta lk  about  the 

bid? 

MS KWINANA:   Maybe how the company would know would 

tape the conversat ion for instance and br ing i t  to the 

at tent ion of  the re levant  author i t ies.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i f  you – i f  you do not  phone i t  – i f  you 10 

do not  ta lk  on the phone but  you phone each other to make 

an appointment and meet at  a restaurant  and enjoy wine and 

dinner for two hours and then talk about  the b id how wi l l  the 

company know you – you talked about the bid?  You do that  

the day before you make a decis ion on the bid and this 

person comes f rom a company that  has put  in a bid for th is.   

How wi l l  the company enforce this? 

MS KWINANA:   Chai r.   I  would not  know about the cont rols 

surrounding that .   But  i t  a lso would depend on the integr i ty 

of  the people involved.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  would just  depend on the people.   

Once you say depends on the integr i ty of  the people i t  a lso 

means i t  depends on the lack of  integr i ty  on those you do not  

have integr i ty.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chair  … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   And therefore the rule cannot be enforced 

because everyone – I  mean i f  you did talk about  i t  or any 

off ic ia l  or board member who talked about the bid wi th a 

bidder would not  admit  that  they talked about i t  because they 

would know that  then they would have acted in breach of  the 

– of  the rule and that  bidder would be el iminated.   So they 

would not  admit  i t .    

So in  the end the rule would not  be enforceable 

which is why you might  have a si tuat ion where the company 

says they must  just  be an absolute prohibi t ion.   No 10 

communicat ion whatsoever.   Because i f  we are going to say 

you may have communicat ion but  do not  ta lk about  the bid 

we wi l l  never be able to enforce that  rule.    

So the best  th ing is to  say no communicat ion 

whatsoever between somebody who has decision making 

powers on a par t icular tender and anyone of  the bidders 

whi le the bid – the tender is open.   You understand that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Then I  would just  l ike to deal  wi th the 20 

signing of  the agreement.   The agreement between SAA on 

the one hand and AAR and JM Aviat ion on the other.   Were 

you involved in that  s igning? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You were not?  You do not  remember a 
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meet ing at  which you asked for the couriered copy of  the 

agreement to go and be fetched? 

MS KWINANA:   The only th ing Chair  I  remember regarding 

the cont ract  – or maybe say regard ing the agreement  is that  

I  went to SAAT af ter I  received a le t ter f rom the chai rperson 

of  SAA and also received a let ter f rom Nat ional  Treasury 

saying they want – oh and then also I  th ink the newspapers 

we also had to respond to the newspapers about th is tender.   

And then I  went to SAA and then SAA Technical  and then I  

said that  was the act ing CFO – I  said … 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Who was that  sorry? 

MS KWINANA:   Arson Malola Phir i .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   He was the act ing CEO. 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sorry you said CFO so I  just  wanted to  

check.  You were speaking to Mr Malolo Phi r i  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Act ing CEO cont inue please.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.   And then I  sa id to them I  received th is 

let ter which we needed to respond to.   Can they please make 20 

sure that  al l  the f i les,  everything is taken to Nat ional  

Treasury because also the chai rperson of  the board was 

saying I  th ink she received the let ter  f rom Nat ional  Treasury 

and therefore the f i les were requi red at  Nat ional  Treasury.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So that  is the only meet ing you recal l  is 
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that  r ight?  You do not  recal l  being involved in a meet ing 

when the signing of  the contract  took place? 

MS KWINANA:   Def in i te ly not .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Def in i te ly not .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You – Ms Kwinana you always say i t  wi th 

such convict ion so I  just  want to check again.   You have no 

recol lect ion of  being in that  meet ing when i t  was signed? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.   So i f  Ms Malola Phi r i  had given an 10 

aff idavi t  to th is commission in which he had set  out  in detai l  

your presence at  that  meet ing and what you said in i t  and 

your role in i t  would you say he is made that  up? 

MS KWINANA:   Let  me see what he is saying Chai r? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Certainly.   You wi l l  f ind that  in DD25[c] .   

So that  is also Ms Memela ’s bundle and i t  is Exhibi t  DD25[c]  

and we wi l l  go to page DD25[c]  at  page 790.    

MS KWINANA:   Page 791? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  the one I  want to start  at  is 790 but  I  

do just  want to or ientate you.  So th is is an aff idavi t  that  Mr 20 

Arson Malola Phir i  provided to the state capture commission.   

I t  commences in DD25[c]  at  page 773 but  we are going to 

pick i t  up at  page 790.    Chai r  I  just  want to ensure that  Ms 

Mbanjwa has the f i le and i ts… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no that  i t  is f ine.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Comfortable.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Mbanjwa we are at  page 790 wi thin Mr 

Phi r i ’s aff idavi t  and I  would l ike to start  at  the bot tom at  

paragraph 105.   Right  so what  Mr Phi r i  says in th is 

paragraph and some of  the fol lowing ones.   I  am just  going 

to highl ight  a few features.   He says:   Wel l  let  us start  at  

104.  

“ I  cannot recal l  who brought  me the 

execut ion version of  the cont ract  for  my 10 

signature but  I  vaguely remember that  the 

chairperson had cal led an impromptu 

unscheduled meet ing at  the SAAT board 

room which included Ms Memela.   I  cannot  

recal l  further detai ls.   However as far as I  

can recal l  Ms Kwinana expressed with a f i rm 

voice that  she would not  leave the board 

room unt i l  the AAR contract  was signed.   Mr 

Memela then indicated that  the contract  was 

at  the t ime in the process of  be ing sent  to 20 

her by courier for  SAAT’s s ignature.   I t  was 

at  th is point  that  Ms Memela gave an 

instruct ion to Ms – Ms Kwinana gave an 

instruct ion to Ms Memela to get  the ai rway 

bi l l  AWB number f rom AAR to t rack the parcel  
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– the cont ract .   Ms Memela then obtained the 

AWB number and subsequent ly t raced the 

parcel  to a warehouse in Johannesburg. ”  

Can I  just  stop there.   Is  th is  helping wi th your memory?  Do 

you recal l  th is interact ion? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   

“Ms Kwinana’s dr iver was then requested to  

col lect  the parcel /contract  whi lst  we were al l  

wai t ing in the board room for the dr iver to  10 

arr ive.  Ms Kwinana requested that  we 

respond comprehensively to the complaints 

ra ised staff  and labour unions against  SAAT 

management.   The complaints were 

addressed d irect ly to the SAA board 

chairperson Ms Dudu Myeni  for her  

intervent ion.”  

That  is the part  that  you have just  to ld us you do remember 

is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r  but  i t  was not  the complaint  raised 20 

by staff  and labour unions.   I  cannot  remember wel l  but  the – 

the let ter was coming f rom SAA Chai rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   And f rom Nat ional  Treasury.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right ,  r ight .   So that  part  you remember 
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but  you have no recol lect ion of  saying we are not  leaving 

this room in a f i rm voice unt i l  th is cont ract  is s igned.   

Gett ing Ms Memela to go and t rack i t .   Get t ing dr ivers to go 

and pick i t  up.   You have no memory of  that? 

MS KWINANA:   My understanding Chai r  was that  the 

contract  was al ready signed when I  went there.   And hence I  

was saying make sure that  the f i les that  the Nat ional  

Treasury wants are in place and then we take them together 

wi th the contract .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see Mr Malola Phir i ’s version is that  10 

you p layed a much more act ive role in that  meet ing.   I f  you 

go to paragraph 108 this is when the dr iver comes back wi th 

the cont ract  or the parcel .    

“The cont ract  del ivered was al ready signed by AAR’s 

President .   Ms Kwinana then requested that  I  s ign the 

contract  as i t  was signed by the President  of  AAR so i t  

would be in al ignment wi th the contract  – that  the 

contract  be signed by the act ing CEO on the SAAT side.   

At  th is point  I  requested Ms Memela to go through the 

contract  and sign i t ,  g iven that  she was leading the team 20 

that  negot iated the cont ract .   Ms Kwinana also went to  

the cont ract  and was happy for me to sign.    

I t  was on Ms Memela ’s and Ms Kwinana’s go-ahead that  

I  s igned the cont ract . ”  

And then he at taches a copy of  the signed contract  to his  
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aff idavi t .   And then,  i f  we just  go on to 110.    

“As far as I  recal l ,  Ms Kwinana wanted the contract  

s igned as a matter  of  urgency in  order to ensure the 

SAAT could access costs saving wi thin a matter  of  

weeks.  

However,  her  behaviour at  the meet ing was,  she says,  

over the top,  border ing on being aggressive. ”  

Do you deny h is account of  th is meet ing and your  

involvement in assist ing that  the contract  be signed? 

MS KWINANA :    I  would not  ins ist  that  the cont ract  be 10 

signed because according to my recol lect ion,  when I  got  

there to say we need to respond to th is and we need to take 

the f i les to Nat ional  Treasury because they want to audi t  

them, then the contract  was already signed.    

 Of  course,  maybe I  may have been aggressive in  the 

sense that  when the Nat ional  Treasury wants something,  

Nat ional  Treasury,  basical ly,  is our  f inance department and 

therefore,  there is no way that  when they say,  we want th is  

informat ion,  I  can take i t  l ight ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  why were you even get t ing involved in  20 

those things Ms Kwinana?  That  is for management.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   That  is  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Why would you . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    That  is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    There was a CEO or act ing CEO or SAA 
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Technical .   Why were you get t ing involved in which contract  

is being couriered f rom where? 

MS KWINANA :    No . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The dr iver  must  go and fetch i t  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chair  I  was not  involved in that .   The 

reason why I  went to SAAT is because I  received a let ter  

f rom the chai rperson of  the SAA addressed to me and 

received a let ter f rom Mr Tj i tamano(?) of  Nat ional  Treasury,  

saying that  they want to audi t ,  basical ly,  the process.    10 

 And therefore,  I  had to SAAT and inst ruct  management  

that  th is is what is required.   Of  course,  I  would not  – I  do 

not  even know where the contract  is  f i led.   I  am not  involved,  

as I  said before.    

 But  I  would have to g ive di rect ion and make sure that  al l  

the informat ion that  Nat ional  Treasury wants is submit ted to  

Nat ional  Treasury.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Ms Kwinana, I  do want  

to pick up on a point  that  the Chai r  has just  highl ighted wi th  20 

you and that  is  th is quest ion of  the degree of  your  

involvement in matters going on at  SAAT and at  SAA, qui te 

f rankly,  in relat ion to procurement.    

 Because you have previously given evidence,  both 

yesterday and you conf i rmed i t  today again.   And I  was real ly  
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qui te speci f ic to be clear that  I  understood your evidence.    

 You conf i rmed that  other than that  10 February 

encounter in 2016 with Swissport ,  you did not  have any other  

meet ings.   You did not  involve yoursel f  in that  contract  

process.   That  was to be lef t  for management.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   You see,  I  was reminded by my 

fai thful  team that  there is an emai l  suggest ing something to  

the cont rary.   So we took efforts to  have i t  copied over the 

lunch break.   I  would l ike to ask an opportuni ty to hand i t  up.   10 

I  am wel l -aware that  Ms Mbanjwa and Ms Kwinana may not  

have seen i t  recent ly.   So they must  please take the t ime 

they wish to consider i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Chai r,  i f  we could enter i t  as Exhibi t  

33.23?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  Exhibi t  BB.. . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    DB33.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Point? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Twenty-three.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Twenty-three.   Is  th is a few emai ls  or one 

emai l?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is actual ly just  two emai ls.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is an emai l  – you wi l l  see at  the bot tom 
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of  the f i rst  page f rom Ms Kwinana to Mr Peter and then i t  is 

Mr Peter ’s response.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   The document containing an emai l  

f rom Ms Yakhe Kwinana dated 20 January 2016 to Mr Lester  

Peter,  as wel l  as an emai l  f rom Mr Lester Peter to  

Ms Yakhe Kwinana which consists of  three pages is admit ted 

and i t  wi l l  be marked as Exhibi t  BB(?)33.23.  

DOCUMENTS OF EMAIL BETWEEN MS YAKHE KWINANA 

AND MR LESTER PETER IS ADMITTED AND MARKED AS 

EXHIBIT BD33.23 10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So Ms Kwinana, i t  starts at  the bot tom of  

the page with an emai l  that  you sent  to Mr Peter on,  as I  

have i t  there,  the 20t h of  January 2016 at  19:37 in the 

evening.   Have you had a chance to consider i t?  

MS KWINANA :    Let  me read i t  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes-no,  that  is f ine.    

MS KWINANA :    A i ,  Chair  I  just  do not  remember this.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    What is appears to be Ms Kwinana is an 

emai l  that  you sent  to Mr Lester Peter  on the 

20t h of  January 2016 and the subject  is,  meet ing wi th  
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Swissport .    

 And you address i t :   Dear A:  CPO.  Which I  take to  be 

Act ing Chief  Procurement Off icer.   But  remember,  he has 

now replaced Dr Dahwa.  And you say:  

“Yesterday I  had a meet ing wi th one of  the 

shareholders of  Swissport ,  Mr Vuyo Ndzeku,  

Mr Peter Cole (CEO/CFO of  Swissport ) ,  Mr Daluxolo 

Peter,  a BEE partner of  Swissport .  

The purpose of  the meet ing was that  the BEE 

partner was concerned about the status of  the 10 

contract . ”    

 And then you go over and you summarised the 

resolut ions of  those discussion that  you had and you say:  

“ I  promise that  I  would get  back to them af ter 

consul t ing as to what happened and i f  what  they are 

suggest ing is possible or not . ”  

 So you have no recol lect ion of  th is,  do you? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Apology Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink i t  might  be convenient  i f  you just  20 

read that  f i rst  page.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Read the whole . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  for the benef i t  of  those who are 

l istening.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Of  course.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  do occasional ly forget  about  them, wi th 

respect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   [ laughing]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    A lr ight .   So what happened is.   You talk  

about  the meet ing.   You say that  the BEE partner was 

concerned about the status of  the contract  and then you go 

on and you say:  10 

“This is the summary or resolut ions of  yesterday’s  

discussions.    

1.  Swissport  wants the current  contract ,  which 

includes ground power uni t ,  crew t ransportat ion and 

ground handl ing.   The f i rst  two i tems are not  part  of  

the approved tender that  needs to be signed.  

2.  Peter said in the event  that  the f i rs t  two i tems 

cannot be added,  they wi l l  pul l  out  but  there wi l l  be 

no business mot ivat ion to cont inue wi th ground 

handl ing only.   They wi l l  pul l  out  of  th is contact .    20 

I  promised that  I  wi l l  get  back to them af ter 

consul t ing as to what happened and i f  what  they 

are suggest ing is  possible or not .   Thank you.   

Yakhe Kwinana. ”  

 Do you not  have any memory of  th is  emai l?  
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MS KWINANA :    Not  at  a l l  Chai r.   And the other th ing that  is 

st range here is  that . . .   Okay I  do not  know what emai l  is 

Yakhe Kwinana to.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is the one you of ten get  emai led on at . . .   

I  can show you lots of . . .   There is a yakhekwinana2 and a 

Yakhe.  I  wi l l  f ind one of  the emai ls.  

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  that  is the SAA emai l .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Let  me f ind i t  for you.   Wel l . . .   No,  hang 

on.   I  th ink. . .   No,  I  th ink i t  is your  personal  one because i f  

you go up to the response f rom Mr Peter to  you,  you wi l l  see 10 

yakhekwinana2, i t  seems to be yakhe@kwinana.co.za.    

 I  have certainly seen that  before,  I  can tel l  you,  in some 

of  the emai ls that  you were sent .   I  th ink you were of ten sent  

emai ls.    

 That  is your Fly SAA one and at  your yakhekwinana one 

which comes up as yakhekwinana2.  I  can t ry and look for 

some of  that  i f  that  would help you?  But  does that  resolve i t  

for you? 

MS KWINANA :    I  st i l l  do not  remember this  Chair.   And 

secondly,  I  do not  know why the footer would be SAA.    20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  let  me explain why.   Because,  you 

see,  i t  is Mr Lester Peter ’s emai l  at  the top which is 

f lysaa.com.  So i t  takes his footer because i t  is actual ly his 

emai l  in which he responds to you that  contains your  emai l ,  

r ight?   
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 So i t  is his f lysaa.com emai l  that  contains the footer.   I t  

is your yakhekwinana emai l  in the middle.   But  we now, as I  

understand how these things come up because we have seen 

many of  them in our two years.   But  that  is aside.   Are you 

suggest ing this is fabr icated? 

MS KWINANA :    I  th ink so Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You think i t  is fabr icated? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, you may be wel l -advised to 

just  ref lect  before you can say i t  is fabr icated.   To make sure 

that  you do not  say i t  is fabr icated unless you . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying Chai r.   I  th ink i t  is fabr icated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You think i t  is fabr icated? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  thank you.   Am I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you have an idea who may have 

fabr icated i t ,  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  do not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  know.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because i f  i t  is  not  fabr icated,  then i t  is  20 

inconsistent  wi th qui te a bi t  of  evidence you have given at  

th is Commission,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    I f  i t  is  not  fabr icated,  i t  is inconsistent .   

What does that  mean? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  i t  is authent ic that  you did send such an 
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emai l .   That  is what she means.   I f  you . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I f  I  d id send such an emai l?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you did send such an emai l ,  she says i t  

would mean that  i t  is  not  – i t  is inconsistent  wi th a lot  of  

evidence you have given.   That  is what she is saying to you.   

I f  you did send i t .  

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you accept  that? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And I  would just  l ike to h ighl ight  

what those are.   F irst  of  a l l ,  you indicated to  us yesterday 

that  Mr Daluxolo Peter,  to your understanding,  was part  of  

Swissport .    

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    This makes i t  c lear,  he was not  part  of  

Swissport .   He was the BEE partner  who was going to jo in  

Swissport  in relat ion to the Swissport  agreement  on i ts  

terms.  That  is what i t  says,  correct? 20 

MS KWINANA :    My understanding of  Mr Daluxolo Peter ’s 

involvement and in fact ,  the way he was introduced to us,  I  

was thinking that  he was part  of  Swissport .   How he would 

be part  of  Swissport ,  basical ly,  I  would not  interrogate them 

as to how are they – how is he rela ted to Swissport  but  they 
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had always been together.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  but  your  own emai l  draws a d is t inct ion 

between Swisspor t  representat ives and Mr Peter.   Your own 

emai ls says:   The shareholder of  Swissport  was Mr Vuyo 

Ndzeku.   The CEO/CFO of  Swissport  was Mr Peter Cole.   

And Mr Daluxolo Peter was there as the BEE par tner of  

Swissport .   So that  is separate on your own descr ipt ion of  

them, i f  th is is an authent ic emai l .   Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  i f  th is is an authent ic emai l .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So that  is why your test imony 10 

yesterday would have been false.   The second respect  in  

which your  test imony yesterday and repeated again this 

morning would have been false is.  

 Because you repeatedly said you had no other meet ings 

wi th Swissport  in relat ion to th is contract  bar ing the 

encounter on the 10t h of  February.   Again,  i f  th is is authent ic,  

that  means that  evidence was false,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And i t  a lso shows a level  of  

involvement in f inal is ing th is contract  that  you previous 20 

accepted should not  be a level  of  involvement  f rom a 

member of  the Board of  SAA, correct? 

MS KWINANA :    F inal is ing which contract?  Are you talk ing 

about . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    The Swissport  contract .  
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MS KWINANA :    The Swissport  cont ract? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  In respect  of  which Jammicron,  

which is the ent i ty that  Mr Daluxolo Peter  was represent ing,  

was going to be the BEE partner.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  am not  aware of  the contract .   As I  

said,  I  do not  get  involved in sign ing the contracts.   We did 

talk about  the Tr ipart i te Cont ract  which basical ly I  was not  

party to.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    We did talk about  the Swissport  contract  10 

which basical ly does not  have anyth ing to do wi th me.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  but  th is emai l  says you are involved 

in the cont ract  because i f  th is emai l  is  authent ic,  you had a 

meet ing wi th the BEE partner of  Swissport ,  Swissport  

representat ives at  which the BEE partner  was – and I  am 

quot ing “concerned about the status of  the cont ract ” .   So 

here,  you are get t ing involved in the contract .   Do you 

accept  that  i f  th is is authent ic? 

MS KWINANA :    I f  th is is authent ic.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You accept  that? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Right .   I  would then l ike to  

know Ms Kwinana.  Oh, no sorry.   Before we move on.   I  do 

want to put  to you in fa i rness for your opportuni ty to 

respond.  What we would l ikely submit ,  in due course,  is the 
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overwhelming impression created by your evidence thus far.   

The f i rst  is  that  AAR and JM Aviat ion were unfai r ly favoured 

in the tender processes that  your  board at  SAA Technical  

decided.   Do you accept  that  that  is  so? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you accept  that  they had access to you 

and to Ms Mamela when no other bidder had that  access? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not?  And why not? 

MS KWINANA :    As I  said,  we went to AAR, Chicago and 10 

also other bidders had been v is i ted by the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Apologies.   I  take that  point .   I  should 

have been more precise.    

CHAIRPERSON :    She is ta lk ing about the bidders in th is 

tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    In which tender? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    The last  tender that  was awarded to AAR 

and JM Aviat ion.   In that  process,  f rom December of  2015 to 

your decision on the 9 t h of  May 2016.  JM Aviat ion and AAR 20 

had access to you and Ms Mamela when no other bidder did.  

MS KWINANA :    JM Aviat ion because of  th is. . .   I  mean 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    JM Aviat ion . . . [ intervenes]   

[Part ies intervening each other and cannot be heard c lear ly. ]  
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MS KWINANA :    . . .you are talk ing about Swissport  now.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  we are on AAR and JM Aviat ion.  

MS KWINANA :    You are now.. .   So we are no longer ta lk ing 

about th is? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.    

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Remember,  I  said we went to that .  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because of  something that  you have said 

in the evidence and I  was reminded about the emai l .   In 10 

fai rness to you Ms Kwinana, let  us put  that  aside.  

MS KWINANA :    Okay.   So we are going back to AAR now? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    We are focussing on AAR and JM Aviat ion.  

MS KWINANA :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .    

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  said to you.   Do you accept  – because 

we wi l l  l i kely submit  in due course – that  AAR and JM 

Aviat ion had access to you and to Ms Mamela when that  f inal  

tender was open in ci rcumstances where no other  bidder had 20 

that  access to ei ther of  you? 

MS KWINANA :    I  said Chai r. . .   Sorry,  Mr Ndzeku and I  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry,  just  star t  af resh.   I  d id not  hear 

everything.  
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MS KWINANA :    I  said Chai r.   Mr Ndzeku and I  had 

numerous things that  we were talk ing about and I  said 

Mr Ndzeku was not  involved in operat ions.   And I  sa id 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  hang on.   Remember,  the quest ion is 

simply that ,  he had access to you that  no other bidders who 

were bidding for that  tender had wi th you.  

MS KWINANA :    This pol icy Chair  that  we d id read was 

saying communicat ion in respect  of  th is RFP.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  please do not . . .   For now, do not  th ink 10 

about the rule because the quest ion did not  make any 

reference to the rule.   The proposi t ion is s imply this  or the 

quest ion is.   Do you accept  that  JM Aviat ion and Swissport  

had access to you . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry,  and AAR Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  am sorry.   And AAR.  I  am going to  

confuse. . .   And AAR had access to  you and Ms Mamela that  

no other bidder in  that  tender dur ing that  t ime had w ith you 

and Ms Mamela.  

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Factual ly.   Factual ly.  

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  agree Chai r  in respect  of  me.  The 

reason being that ,  as I  said before,  Mr Ndzeku and I ,  we 

have got  many companies outs ide SAA and . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Because she does not  ta lk about  
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companies.   I t  s imply says,  do you agree,  do you accept  that 

dur ing that  t ime, JM Aviat ion and AAR had access to  you that  

no other b idder who had put  in a bid in regard to that  tender 

had wi th you,  factual ly? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  agree Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They did not  have access to you 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They did not  speak to you? 

MS KWINANA :    Mr Ndzeku spoke to me, not  in his capaci ty 

as JM Aviat ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    And as I  was saying.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So,  in whatever capaci ty,  he did 

speak to you?  Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Maybe Chair  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Whatever the capaci ty was.  

MS KWINANA :    Maybe Chai r. . .   Maybe Chai r,  you. . .   Maybe 

you may ask and say beyond Ndzeku(?) instead of  saying JM 

Aviat ion.   Because in my interact ion wi th Mr Ndzeku 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MS KWINANA :    I t  was def in i te ly was not  in  regards 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Okay so your problem with 

regard to the access that  happened between yoursel f  and 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 178 of 279 
 

Mr Ndzeku is where we say JM Aviat ion?  But  i f  we say 

Mr Ndzeku had access to you,  factual ly that  you accept? 

MS KWINANA :    I  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  AAR wined and d ined you and 

other members of  the board and management whi le the 

tender was st i l l  open.   Do you accept  that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  th ink we are going back Chai r  to what we 

discussed before.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We are.   And in fa i rness to you,  I  have to 10 

put  to you what we are l ikely to make submissions in due 

course.   I t  is going . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    You know Chai r.   This d ining and win ing and 

the effect  on tender.   I  real ly do not  see any signi f icance in  

respect  of  that .   And in fact ,  as I  said,  th is has been the 

tendency for the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Kwinana . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    . . .or the pract ise.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, we discussed that  ear l ier on.   

At  th is stage,  i t  would help i f  you simply answer the quest ion 20 

whether factual ly that  is so,  namely,  did  AAR wine you and 

dine you whi le the tender was open?  Is that  factual ly  t rue? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  do not  l ike the term of  being wined 

and dined as i f  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Just  use another  one.   
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[ laughing]   What terms would we use?  [ laughing]  

MS KWINANA :    I  mean, i t  seems as i f  we. . .   I  am a hungry 

person and I  am happy that  I  am being dined al l  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

MS KWINANA :    A l l  a lone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   How would you put  i t  in terms of  

what happened? 

MS KWINANA :    Maybe i f  you can say Chai r,  we vis i ted AAR.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    That  would be bet ter.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Now, I  would l ike to ask 

whether. . .   You accepted moments ago that  they were 

unfai r ly  favoured in  th is  process.   And I  want  to know 

whether you received any benef i t  f rom ei ther  of  them as a 

consequence of  that  unfai r  favouring? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  d id not  receive any benef i t .   And in  

fact ,  you said we were dr iven in,  as you were saying,  in  

pr ivate jet .   And I  do not  consider that  as a benef i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Would you consider receipt  of  20 

money as a benef i t?  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    Depending what the purpose of  the money.   

I f ,  for instance,  the money is given to me for me to spoi l  
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mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    Then that  would be f ine,  I  would take i t  as a 

benef i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    When would i t  not  be a benef i t?  

MS KWINANA :    But  remember that  the amount that  Zano 

Spark received were not  for  my benef i t .   The amounts that  

Zano Spark received are st i l l  for the benef i t  of  Mr Ndzeku 

and his wi fe who did not  know that  he. . .  she. . .  he. . .   she was 

the wi fe at  the t ime.  But  be that  as i t  may.   I t  would not  10 

make any di fference.   But  the monies that  Zano Spark 

received are for the forex t rading.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .    

MS KWINANA :    So they are not  for my benef i t .    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay let  us move to the forex t rading and 

Zano Spark then.   Tel l  me a l i t t le bi t  about  Zano Spark.   

When was i t  establ ished? 

MS KWINANA :    I t  was establ ished in 2016.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What month? 

MS KWINANA :    Together wi th three other companies that  20 

are establ ished in  2016.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   What month?  Do you recal l?  

MS KWINANA :    Maybe February.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  was February,  according to the records.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    So you establ ished i t  and you star ted wi th 

your daughter,  Ms Goniwe.  Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    You were the two directors when i t  was 

establ ished in February 2016.  Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  understand she is no longer a di rector.   

You are now the sole d irector.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Why have Zano Spark not  responded to 10 

the summons that  i t  received f rom this Commission many 

weeks ago? 

MS KWINANA :    We responded to the summons.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  when you respond to a summons, you 

ei ther have to produce the documents or you have to provide 

an aff idavi t ,  explaining why the documents cannot be 

produced.  Why have you done nei ther of  those two things? 

MS KWINANA :    We do not  have the documents Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You would have been – and you have been 

told many t imes,  you needed to say that  on aff idavi t .   Is that  20 

now your evidence? 

MS KWINANA :    I  said that  on the emai l  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  you did not .   I  can take you to i t  in a 

moment.   But  is  your  evidence now,  you conf i rm under oath,  

none of  the documents that  was summonsed, do you have? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   We can move on then.   What was 

Zano Spark going to be doing?  You have ment ioned forex 

t rading.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Was that  i t?  

MS KWINANA :    And other investments.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And other investments.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  predominant ly forex t rading,  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because that  is what Mr Ndzeku said your  

daughter conveyed to him when she approached him about  

invest ing in forex t rading,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Were you aware that  she was 

contact ing him to do that? 

MS KWINANA :    Who was contact ing? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Your daughter,  Ms Goniwe was contact ing 

Mr Ndzeku about invest ing in forex t rading.  20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  she told me.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    She told you? 

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So that  would have been 2016, somet ime 

af ter February 2016, correct? 
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MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   Before that .   That  was before 

that .   They met – she said they met  before that .    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Before that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  the company was only establ ished in 

February 2016, correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  was establ ished at  the t ime that  the bid 

is open for the Components Tender because February 2016 

is st i l l  before you decided in May 2016, correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Zano Spark has got  nothing to do wi th  

Components Tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We wi l l  see i f  that  is so in a whi le Ms 

Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  your evidence is that  Zano Spark was 

establ ished to do forex t rading predominant ly and some 

other investments.   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    What other investments? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Any investment basical ly.   Somet imes 

property.   Somet imes venture capi tal .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .    

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  are investments for th i rd part ies.   
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Is that  r ight?  Not  yourselves? 

MS KWINANA :    What not  for ourselves? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    For yourselves but  also for th i rd part ies.   

Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Thi rd part ies.   Not  members of  the publ ic.   

But  the people l ike the – the people that  we know.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    The people that  you know l ike Mr Ndzeku? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   With whom you have no personal  

re lat ionship,  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you said previously you did not  know 

Ms Hendricks was his wi fe.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    When did you f i rs t  learn that  she was? 

MS KWINANA :    When Mr Ndzeku was test i fy ing here.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  want  to spend a b i t  of  t ime on forex 

t rading because I  have to confess,  I  f ind i t  a  l i t t le bi t  

confusing.   What does i t  mean to go long on a currency pair? 

MS KWINANA :    That  means you are buying stuff .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    What? 

MS KWINANA :    You are buying the pai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Which pai r?  

MS KWINANA :    Whatever.   There are many forex currency 

pairs.   There is US,  DJPY, US . . . [ indist inct ]  and there is  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 185 of 279 
 

Nasdaq and the whole lot  of  other pai rs.   In fact ,  I  th ink 

there are more than 400 pairs that  you can t rade.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  when you go long on a pai r,  what  do 

you are doing in respect  of  each part  of  the pai r?  Do you 

know? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because a pai r  is  two currencies.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So how do you go long on a pai r?  

MS KWINANA :    When you say you are going long on 

US/DJPY that  means you are buying U/?DJPY  When you are 

going short ,  that  means you are sel l ing US/DJPY.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   And that  is the sort  of  work that  

Zano Spark does,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  through me.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Through you? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Where do you do that  t rading? 20 

MS KWINANA :    On my computer.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    On your. . .   But  you need a plat form for  

that .   What plat forms do you use? 

MS KWINANA :    IC Markets.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  beg your pardon? 
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MS KWINANA :    IC Markets.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    IC Markets -  so  le t  me jus t  ge t  i t  r igh t .   

You wou ld  rece ive  money in  Zano Spark ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then you wou ld  go  onto  th is  IC 

Market ’s  p la t fo rm  and then you yourse l f ,  Ms Kwinana,  then 

t rades on the  fo rex  cur rency pa i rs ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  thank you.   And what  i s  t he  b id  

p r ice?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I t  depends,  i t  f luc tua tes  a l l  the  t ime.   I t  

depends.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am drawing the  d is t inc t ion  be tween b id  

and ask  pr i ce .   What  i s  the  d i f fe rence between a  b id  p r i ce  

and an ask  p r ice?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  l i ke  the  buy and the  se l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And te l l  me,  when Zano  

Spark  s ta r ted  opera t ing  how b ig  was i t s  c l ien t  base?  

MS KWINANA:    Much as  tha t  we reg i s te red Zano Spark  in  

2016 I  s ta r ted  to  t rade in  2014.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  bu t  I  am ask ing  about  Zano Spark ’s  

c l ien t  base.   How b ig  was i t?  

MS KWINANA:    How b ig  was i t  when?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    When i t  s ta r ted  in  February  2016.  

MS KWINANA:    O f  course  when  we s ta r ted  in  2016 the  
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c l ien ts  tha t  we had I  th ink  i t  was about  maybe e igh t  c l ien ts .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    E igh t  c l ien ts  in  2016?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so  they wou ld  invest  mon ies ,  

cor rec t?   And then you wou ld  go  onto  th is  p la t fo rm and 

t rade fo r  them,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you were  rece iv ing  money f rom th i rd  

par t ies  and you  were  t rad ing  on  a  p la t fo rm fo r  tha t  

purpose,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I  a lso  do  not  l i ke  th is  te rm o f  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  I  do  no t  mean the  pub l i c  

genera l l y.  

MS KWINANA:    Because I  do  no t  go  ou t  and market  and 

put  i t  on  adver t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You take  the  money o f  a  se lec t  few.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you t raded fo r  them,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A re  you aware  tha t  you need a  l i cence to 

do  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  do  no t  need  a  l i cence.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not?   Why do you not  need a  

l i cence?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because accord ing  to  FSCA there  are  

spec i f i c  compan ies  wh ich  a re  ment ioned there  tha t  requ i re  

a  l i cence.   Fo r  example ,  I  may no t  ment ion  a l l  o f  them but  

obv ious ly  the  bank requ i res  the  l i cence,  the  insurance 

compan ies  and insurance brokers  and FSCA has  s ta ted  

those and Zano Spark  i s  no t  one o f  them.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  they have cer ta in l y  s ta ted  tha t  Zano  

Spark  does not  have any l i cence  but  i s  i t  no t  a  f inanc ia l  10 

serv i ce  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Yes because we do not  need a  l i cence.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  they do  not  say  because i t  does not  

need a  l i cence,  they say i t  does  not  have one and then  

they te l l  us  in  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you have seen and we can  

now go to ,  wh ich  is  in  you r  bund le  DD33 a t  page 323.    

MS KWINANA:    323?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Do you have tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  you have seen 20 

before ,  have you,  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you have cons ide red i t .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  th is  i s ,  i s  an  a f f idav i t  p rov ided  
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by  Fe l i c i t y  Mpho Mbaso o f  the  FSCA,  the  F inanc ia l  

Serv i ces  Conduc t  Author i t y  in  wh ich ,  f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  the 

au thor i t y  was asked to  conf i rm whe ther  there  is  any l i cence 

tha t  has been issued e i ther  to  Zano Spark ,  to  Ms  Gon iwe  

or  to  yourse l f  and they conf i rm tha t  there  is  no  l i cence.   

You conf i rm tha t  too ,  do  you not?  

MS KWINANA:    I  con f i rm tha t  the re  i s  no  l i cence and I  do  

no t  need a  l i cence to  do  fo rex  t rad ing ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    They go on and they exp la in  a t  page 324 

the  purpose o f  t he  a f f idav i t  and tha t  i s  to  dea l  w i th  the  10 

var ious ways i n  wh ich  l i cens ing  is  requ i red  tha t  m ight  

invo l ve  fo rex  t rad ing ,  r igh t?   So a t  4 .1  they say they are  

go ing  to  exp la in  the  person to  en ter  in to  f inanc ia l  serv i ces  

–  to  render  f inanc ia l  serv ices  to  c l ien ts  i n  a  fo re ign  

cur rency denominated investment  ins t rument  inc lud ing  a  

fo re ign  cur rency depos i t  and in  secur i t ies  and ins t ruments  

inc lud ing  der i va t ive  ins t ruments  are  requ i red  to  be 

au thor ised under  the  F inanc ia l  Adv i sory  and In te rmed iary  

Serv i ces  Act .   We wi l l  ca l l  tha t  the  FAIS  fo r  shor t .   They 

a lso  sa id  tha t  they are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  requ i rements  20 

fo r  approva l  by  the  conduct  au tho r i t y  o f  a  c lear ing  f i rm fo r  

fo re ign  fo rex  serv ice  prov ide r  and the  requ i remen ts  to  be  

au thor ised as  an  over  the  counte r  der i va t i ve  prov ider  wh ich  

is  –  summar ises ODP.  

 And then in  qu i te  a  complex  a f f idav i t  they  te l l  us  the  
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l i cens ing  reg ime fo r  each o f  those.   I s  i t  your  ev idence tha t  

you are  none o f  those?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am none o f  those.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  you take  money f rom c l ien ts ,  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You invest  them in  fo rex  t rad ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And your  ev idence is  you do not  need a  

l i cence to  do  tha t .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Not  a t  a l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why not?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because fo rex  t rad ing ,  Cha i r,  does  

not  fa l l  under  the  FSCA Act .   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Where  does i t  fa l l  under?  

MS KWINANA:    And as  I  sa id  be fo re ,  I  sa id  th is  

te rm ino logy o f  the  th i rd  par t ies ,  I  do  no t  l i ke  i t  because I  

do  no t  a t  the  t ime,  I  say  to  the  peop le  c lose  to  me,  I  say  to  

them or  my co l leagues or  my bus iness pa r tners ,  I  say  to  

them th is  i s  what  I  do  and then i f  they  want ,  they say  20 

p lease invest  fo r  us .   So bas ica l l y  I  do  no t  need a  l i cence.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So i f  I  unders tand your  ev idence,  

p rov ided you do  not  adver t i se  tha t  you are  go ing  to  be  

do ing  i t  you  do not  requ i re  a  l i cence,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  and so l i c i t  money f rom the  
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peop le .   I f  peop le  come to  me because they know tha t  I  do  

fo rex  t rad ing  and  they say I  have  got  th is  money can you 

do t rad ing  fo r  me? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    How d id  they  know tha t  you do th is  

t rad ing?  

MS KWINANA:    You a l so  now know,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  am do ing  

fo rex  t rad ing ,  fo r  ins tance.   You can …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you have conversa t ions w i th  them,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  exact ly.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    L ike  Mr  Ndzeku.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  when your  daughter  approached 

h im and sa id  we  have s tar ted  do ing  bus iness and we are  

go ing  to  do  fo rex  t rad ing ,  tha t  was not  so l i c i t ing  h is  

cus tom? 

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because Mr  Ndzeku,  when Lunga  

in t roduced herse l f ,  Mr  Ndzeku got  exc i ted  and sa id  he  was  

a  f r iend o f  h is  la te  fa ther  and the re fore  he  d id  no t  so l i c i t  

money,  they were  together  i n  Cape Town,  she d id  no t  go  20 

there  to  so l i c i t  money.   When they were  ta l k ing ,  what  a re  

you do ing?  Lunga to ld  h im what  he  is  do ing  and  then he 

got  in te res ted  and sa id  when I  have money then maybe you  

can a lso  t rade fo r  me.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you put  them in  touch,  d id  you?   



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 192 of 279 
 

You put  your  daughter  Ms Gon iwe in  touch w i th  Mr  

Ndzeku?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  tha t  happened independent ly?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   So how d id  you end up do ing  the  

t rad ing  fo r  h im yourse l f  on  the  p la t fo rm? 

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because when I  am the  one who is  

do ing  fo rex  t rad ing ,  Lunga does  not  – she does some 

l im i ted  fo rex  t rad ing .   I  wou ld  say  I  am a lmost  fu l l t ime in  10 

fo rex  t rad ing ,  so  tha t  i s  why the  money wou ld  come to  me 

and then I  pu t  i t  in  my cred i t  ca rd  and then I  pay IC  Market  

o r  I  pay  A l tco in  Traders ,  Skr i l l  o r  Luno or  IC Markets  

th rough my cred i t  card .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  IC Markets  i s  one but  A l tco in  and 

o thers  are  o the rs ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Where  you t rade the  depos i ts  tha t  you  

have rece ived f rom your  c l ien ts ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    A re  there  any l im i ta t ions  on  those  

p la t fo rms tha t  you cannot  be  t rad ing  fo r  o the r  peop le?  

MS KWINANA:    You know,  when I  open an account  there ,  I  

do  no t  open an account  us ing  the  names o f  o ther  peop le ,  I  

w i l l  open an account  us ing  my name.   I  open d i f fe ren t  
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accounts  us ing  my name,  yes.   And then now when there  is  

t ime then I  wou ld  depos i t  the  money in  Zano Spark  or  take  

the  money f rom Zano Spark  depend ing  on wh ich  d i rec t ion  i t  

i s  go ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  bu t  as  I  unders tand your  ev idence,  

c l ien ts  –  c lose  c l ien ts ,  e igh t  o f  them,  are  pu t t ing  money in  

Zano Spark  so  tha t  you can t rade i t  fo r  them on these  

p la t fo rms,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   Do you know i f  those p la t fo rm put  10 

l im i ta t ions  on  your  t rad ing  o ther  peop le ’s  money? 

MS KWINANA:    The l im i ta t ions ,  Cha i r,  when I  have got  

th is  money in  my account ,  tha t  company takes i t  as  my 

account ,  they do  not  know whose  money i t  i s  because i t  

goes in to  my account .   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes bu t  a re  you  not  l im i ted  by  the  te rms  

and cond i t ions  o f  those p la t fo rms  to on ly  t rade your  own 

money,  no t  a  th i rd  par t y ’s  money?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  have never  seen …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You have never  seen tha t .   So i f  I  la te r  20 

show you the  te rms and cond i t ions  tha t  p lace  tha t  l im i t ,  

then wou ld  you be a  b i t  concerned tha t  you have been  

t rad ing  money on  these p la t fo rms in  c i rcumstances  where  

you are  no t  permi t ted  to  do  so?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    A l r igh t .   Okay,  r igh t ,  so  we es tab l i shed  

Zano Spark  in  February  o f  2016 and you open bank 

accounts  fo r  Zano Spark ,  as  I  have i t ,  on  the  15  March 

2016.   Does tha t  acco rd  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   And open ing  ba lance in  –  there  

are  a  number  o f  Zano Spark  accounts  so  I  have to  remind 

myse l f  bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  the  bus iness account ,  was  R500.   

Do you remember  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Super.   So le t  us  see what  happens,  a t  

tha t  t ime you to ld  me you have about  e igh t  c l ien ts  and now 

we a re  go ing  to  see in  the  bank account  what  happens w i th  

the  money tha t  you rece ived,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   Le t  us  go  to  the  bank account  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr,  I  th ink  we must  take  a  shor t  

b reak.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we a l l  ag reed tha t  we can cont inue 

a t  leas t  un t i l  qua r te r  to  s ix?   Ms Mban jwa,  i s  tha t  f ine  w i th  

you?  Yes.   Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I t  i s  about  four  m inutes  to  
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four,  le t  us  take  the  break befo re  Ms Hofmeyr  moves onto  

someth ing  e lse ,  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  indeed,  Cha i r.   And t i l l  what  

t ime?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  say we w i l l  come back a t  ten  past  

four,  i s  tha t  a l r igh t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Kwinana when Mr  

Ndzeku gave ev idence a t  the  Commiss ion  and  in  h is  

a f f idav i t  tha t  he  prov ided to  the  Commiss ion  he  spoke  

about  be ing  approached by  your  daughte r,  Ms Gon iwe.   He 

put  tha t  approach in  2016.   I  unders tood your  ev idence  

ear l ie r  to  suggest  i t  was ear l ie r  than tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  was my impress ion  Cha i r,  bu t  i f  he  

says they met  in  2016 I  wou ldn ’ t  ob jec t  to  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   He  a lso  sa id  when she to ld  20 

h im tha t  she had th is  company tha t  d id  fo rex  t rad ing  he  

was a t t rac ted  by  tha t  investment  because i t  wou ld  enab le  

h im to  hedge aga ins t  the  fa l l ing  rand.   Were  you aware  tha t  

tha t  was h is  in te res t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    So  d id  she communica te  tha t  to  you?  

MS KWINANA:    She communica ted  i t  to  me.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  as  I  unders tand h im he was  

in te res ted  in  the  fo rex  t rad ing  and he was go ing  to  now use  

Zano Spark  in  o rder  to  do  tha t  fo rex  t rad ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  now you ment ioned your  e igh t  

c l ien ts ,  o r  thereabouts  when Zano  Spark  was es tab l i shed,  

fo r  p r ivacy  reasons I  am not  go ing  to  ask  you  now to  

ident i f y  those e igh t  peop le  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  tha t  a f te r  10 

today you jus t  p rov ide  an  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion  

ident i f y ing  who those c l ien ts  were  so  tha t  we can be in  

touch w i th  them about  the i r  unders tand ing  o f  the  

ar rangement .    A re  you comfor tab le  do ing  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  comfor tab le  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see the  reason why I  need  to  ask  

tha t  i s  because when we summonsed you Ms Kwinana the  

summons was fo r  rea l l y  any scrap o f  paper  tha t  ex i s ted  

tha t  cou ld  show us the  investmen t  s ta tements  tha t  went  to  

your  c l ien ts ,  the  cont rac ts  tha t  you conc luded w i th  them,  20 

updates  on  the i r  investments  and  you have to ld  us  today  

not  a  s ing le  document  ex is ts ,  so  there  is  no  reco rd  tha t  we  

can summons to  leg i t im ise  and g ive  credence to  what  you 

are  te l l ing  us  the  ar rangement  was today,  so  our  on l y  

op t ion  then is  jus t  to  contac t  the  peop le  who you  say are  
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your  c l ien ts  and on beha l f  o f  whom you do fo rex  t rad ing .   

So tha t  i s  the  reason fo r  i t ,  you  can consu l t  w i th  your  

lawyer  a f te rwards and come back  to  us  w i th  your  a t t i tude 

to  tha t .   Thank you.  

 We a l so  asked Mr  Ndzeku fo r  a  s ing le  scrap o f  

paper  re la ted  to  th is  fo rex  investment  tha t  he  d id  w i th  you.   

Cha i r  you might  reca l l  he  in i t ia l l y  in  h is  response  to  the  

summons sa id  they d idn ’ t  ex is t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:  In  ev idence he changed,  he  sa id  they d id 10 

ex i s t ,  he  needed ten  days,  I  sa id  wou ldn ’ t  i t  be  qu i cke r,  he  

sa id  ten  days,  we l l  he  gave ev idence on the  26 t h  o f  August  

i t  i s  now the  3 r d  o f  November,  desp i te  repeated 

engagements  w i th  Mr  Ndzeku he seems to  have re leased 

h is  fo rmer  lawyers ,  they are  no  longer  a  po in t  o f  contac t  

fo r  us ,  he  is  no t  ye t  no t i f ied  us  o f  the  lawyers  he  has  

rep laced them wi th  bu t  there  has been no document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He has not  fu rn i shed any document?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Not  a  document  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADF HOFMEYR:   Desp i te  repeated  requests .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  when he gave ev idence he  was – 

when he gave h i s  o ra l  ev idence I  th ink  he  was adamant  

tha t  there  was some documents .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Rece ip ts  I  th ink .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  yes ,  no  ac tua l l y  as  I  reca l l  i t  he 

sa id  there  were  annua l  investment  s ta tements  tha t   he 

rece ived.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:  And there  was a  l i t t le  debate  about  how 

he gets  them o f f  the  emai ls ,  I  remember  th ink ing  i t  wou ld 

be  qu i te  qu ick  and h im res i s t ing  tha t  and say ing  he  needed 

a t  leas t  ten  days  so  you in i t ia l l y  gave h im ten  days,  there  

is  then repeated  engagements .    So tha t  i s  s t range Mr  10 

Ndzeku thought  tha t  he  had  got  annua l  investment  

s ta tements  ou t  o f  your  company who has no such  

s ta tements ,  do  you agree tha t  tha t  i s  s t range? 

MS KWINANA:    No tha t  i s  no t  s t range Cha i r,  I  have been 

g iv ing  h im the  annua l  s ta tements .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  why d idn ’ t  you produce those  

when you were  summoned to  produce them? 

MS KWINANA:    Who was summoned,  me? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now Zano Spark ,  Zano Spark  i s  the  

en t i t y  w i th  wh ich  he  is  do ing  the  t rad ing .  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  the  reason be ing  tha t  the  server  as  I  

th ink  I  sa id  in  my a f f idav i t  was conf isca ted ,  however  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  in  December  what   happened? 

MS KWINANA:   I  have been send ing  h im the  s ta tements  
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he  has go t  the  s ta tements  fo r  December  2016,  s ta tements  

fo r  December  2017 or  December  2018,  I  th ink  a lso  

December  2019,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So the  quest i on  was why d idn ’ t  you 

prov ide  those to  the  Commiss ion  in  response  to  the 

summons?  

MS KWINANA:   I  no  longer  have them Cha i r  because the  

server,  my se rve r,  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  se rve r  wh ich  

bas ica l l y  we were  a l so  us ing  fo r  Zano Spark ,  was  

conf isca ted  by  the  serv ice  prov ide r  fo r  non-payment ,  I  sa id  10 

tha t  in  the  a f f idav i t ,  however  when i t  was conf isca ted  we 

a l ready had pr in ted  the  s ta tements  to  Mr  Ndzeku.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How long ago was i t  when  i t  was  

conf isca ted?  

MS KWINANA :    That  was I  th ink  in  February  th is  yea r  

Cha i r,  more  or  less .  

CHAIRPERSON:    February  th is  year?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  was because Kwinana and  20 

Assoc ia tes  went  under,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  wen t  under  

in  February  o f  th is  year?  

MS KWINANA:    No I  th ink  be fo re  tha t ,  be fore  tha t ,  bu t  the 
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compute r  was s t i l l  there  un t i l  i t  was conf isca ted .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Who is  your  serv ice  prov ider?  

MS KWINANA:    Onero .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  you spe l l  tha t  fo r  me? 

MS KWINANA:    O-n -e- r -o .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  Onero  is  your  serv ice  prov ider  and i t  

conf isca ted  –  what  exact ly  d id  i t  con f isca te?  

MS KWINANA:    Our  se rve r,  they were  the  serv ice  prov ider  

fo r  the  server.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    For  the  serve r  fo r  Kwinana &  Assoc ia tes .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  went  under  be fore  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why wou ld  t hey cont inue to  main ta in  

a  se rver  fo r  a  company tha t  has gone under?  

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know but  they went  to  phys i ca l l y  

take  i t  in  February,  so  why d id  they remain  no t  tak ing  i t  I  

don ’ t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  don ’ t  unders tand,  you see i f  Kwinana  

and Assoc ia tes  went  under  how d id  they cont inue to  pay 20 

fo r  the  serv i ces?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  why had to  take  i t  fo r  non-

payment .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No I  don ’ t  unders tand i t ,  bu t  maybe I  am 

not  be ing  c lea r.    Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  went  under  some 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 201 of 279 
 

app rec iab le  t ime back,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you jus t  g ive  an  es t imate  o f  when 

tha t  m ight  be?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja  when was tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    More  or  less  wh ich  month ,  wou ld  tha t  be  

2019?  

MS KWINANA:    I  th ink  Cha i r  there  is  a  document  

somewhere  here  in  the  bund le  to  be  exact .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh but  what  i s  our  reco l lec t ion  so  tha t  10 

we can see whether  there  is  need to  go  to  the  bund les .  

MS KWINANA:  I  th ink  maybe 2018 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe 2018?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r i gh t ,  I  th ink  tha t  m ight  be  good  

enough.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  I  th ink  i t  was about  Augus t  2018,  

does tha t  jog  your  memory?  

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  i t  does.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay so  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  goes 20 

under  in  August  o f  2018 and i t  has  a  serv ice  prov ide r  on  

the i r  own cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  s tops opera t ing  in  August  o f  2018,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  how d id  the  serv i ce  cont inue  to  be  

prov ided a f te r  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  con t inued to  be  prov ided on a  c red i t  

bas is  hence they  on ly  took i t  w i th  such a  huge l iab i l i t y  in  

February.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you went  on  c red i t  f rom August  o f  

2018?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Who went  on  cred i t  because I  10 

unders tand tha t  Kwinana &  Assoc ia tes  went  under.  

MS KWINANA:    They cont inued Cha i r,  they  d id  no t  

phys i ca l l y  c lose  o f f  the  server.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    They cont inued.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you were  us ing  i t  fo r  Zano Spark ’s  

bus iness,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Zano Spark  has no t  gone under,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why d idn ’ t  Zano Spark  keep pay ing?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because  the  cont rac t  was w i th  

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    No tha t  w i th  respect  Ms Kwinana th is  i s  

a  se rver  c r i t i ca l  to  your  bus iness,  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  Kwinana and Assoc ia tes  i s  ou t  

o f  the  p ic tu re  in  August  o f  2018.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You need the  server  to  opera te  your  

bus iness as  Zano  Spark?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why  doesn ’ t  Zano Spark  pay  fo r  the  10 

serv i ce?  

MS KWINANA:    Because they had to  pay fo r  the  huge  

ar rears  wh ich  they cou ld  no t  a f fo rd .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Zano Spark  cou ldn ’ t  a f fo rd?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes to  pay fo r  the  ar rears  fo r  Kwinana & 

Assoc ia tes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you were  the  d i rec to r  o f  Kwinana &  

Assoc ia tes  and you and your  daughter  a re  the  d i rec tors  o f  

Zano Spark?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you dec ided in  your  Zano Spark  

d i rec torsh ips  no t  to  make good the  b i l l  tha t  Kwinana &  

Assoc ia tes  owed to  your  se rv i ce  p rov ide r,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  because we d id  no t  want  to  make  

good but  there  was a  huge l iab i l i ty  in  respect  o f  the  se rver  
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wh ich  bas i ca l l y  Zano Spark  cou ld  no t  ca r ry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  why cou ld  Zano Spark  no t  car ry  

i t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  because Zano  Spark  has no t  made 

money.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  i t  hasn ’ t  made money,  we w i l l  come 

back to  tha t .   So you need a  server  to  opera te  your  

bus iness a t  Zano Spark ,  you are  us ing  the  Kwinana &  

Assoc ia tes  bus iness se rver  s ince  August  o f  2018,  you don ’ t  

pay fo r  i t  a l l  and then i t  ge ts  taken  away f rom you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And remember  to  face  th is  s ide  Ms 

Kwinana.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  ge ts  taken away f rom you in  February  

o f  th is  yea r,  co r rec t ,  fo r  non-payment?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  tha t  jus t  scraps any e lec t ron ic  

records  o f  a l l  o f  these annua l  s ta tements  you prov ided to  

Mr  Ndzeku co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  rea l l y  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  s t i l l  i n  December  

2020 I  wou ld  s t i l l  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  c rea te  another  20 

s ta tement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  wou ldn ’ t  l i ke  anyth ing  to  be 

crea ted now,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  back to  the  ones tha t  you  

say you have in  hard  copy,  why  have those not  been  

fu rn ished to  the  Commiss ion?  
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MS KWINANA:    When I  p r i n ted  them Cha i r  I  gave them to  

Mr  Ndzeku,  I  d idn ’ t  know tha t  the  ones tha t  I  have  kept  in  

my server  one day I  wou ld  no t  have access to  them.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh so r ry,  so  they a re  no t  in  your  

possess ion?  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh I  unders tand,  so  why wou ld  you g ive  

h im hard  cop ies ,  when d id  you g ive  h im these ha rd  cop ies?  

MS KWINANA:    On an annua l  bas is  every  January.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You wou ld  go  and take  h im a  hard  copy?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d idn ’ t  you emai l  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Because I  fe l t  tha t  i t  i s  –  because o f  the 

conf ident ia l i t y  I  do  no t  know i f  the  emai l  i s  sa fe  enough.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see Ms  Kwinana Mr  Ndzeku ’s  

ev idence befo re  th is  Commiss ion  is  he  rece ived those on 

emai l .  

MS KWINANA:    Then tha t  i s  h is  ev idence,  I  sent  them,  I  

p r in t  them and send them.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No you don ’ t  send them you take them 20 

as  I  unders tand your  ev idence.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because  you are  a f ra id  tha t  

conf ident ia l i t y  o f  those documents  requ i res  you to  hand 

de l i ver  them to  Mr  Ndzeku,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you have been to  h i s  home,  i s  that  

cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    C lose r  to  the  m ic .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Where  do  you  de l i ver  them in  January  

every  year?  

MS KWINANA:   I  wou ld  ca l l  and f ind  ou t  where  he  is  and  

then go and drop them,  maybe in  a  meet ing ,  maybe a t  

a i rpor t ,  o r  –  ja  bas ica l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  what  you d id  w i th  a l l  the  o ther  10 

c l ien ts?    You sa id  when Zano Spark  s ta r ted  you sa id  about  

e igh t  c l ien ts .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r,  tha t ’s  what  I  do  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  what  you  d id  w i th  a l l  o f  them? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you hand de l i ver  a l l  the  conf ident ia l  

documents  re la t i ng  to  SAA and SAA Techn ica l  when you 

were  a  Board  member?  

MS KWINANA:    Hand de l i ve r  them where?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    To  whoever  you were  communica t ing  

w i th .  

MS KWINANA:    No SAA has go t  a  company sec re tar ia t  

tha t  does tha t ,  and Zano Spark  does not  have company 

secre tar ia t .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  so  when you were  a t  SAA and you 

were  communica t ing  w i th  peop le ,  co  board  members ,  

management  about  conf ident ia l  mat te rs ,  you were  happy to  

do  so  on  emai l ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  the i r  po l i cy  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  bu t  when  you are  invest ing  some 

money in  fo rex  t rad ing  fo r  your  assoc ia tes ,  I  want  to  ca l l  

them assoc ia tes  because you a re  res i s t ing  say ing  i t  i s  

members  o f  the  pub l i c ,  your  assoc ia tes ,  you won ’ t  emai l  

them is  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How i s  i t  d i f fe ren t?   Why is  –  why are  

cons idera t ions o f  conf ident ia l i t y  such tha t  you fee l  you 

need to  de l i ver  these s ta tements  persona l ly  to  your  c l ien ts ,  

bu t  when i t  i s  conf ident ia l  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  SAA you f ind 

no  p rob lem in  emai l ing  peop le  w i th  whom you must  be  in  

touch about  such in fo rmat ion?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  depends Cha i r  on  the  company po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   I f  SAA requ i red  tha t  the  documents  must  20 

be  hand de l i vered,  based on . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    SAA? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  oh ,  yes  Cha i r,  so  I  am say ing  i t  

depends on the  company po l i cy.   A t  Zano Spark  we dec ided 

tha t  we are  no t  go ing  to  emai l  because the  emai l  do  ge t  
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hacked le f t ,  r igh t  and cent re ,  and there fo re  our  po l i cy  was 

tha t  we are  no t  go ing  to  emai l .   So SAA I  never  rece ived  

someth ing  tha t  says th ings must  no t  be  emai led ,  so  

bas ica l l y  SAA po l i cy  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  in  terms o f  

de l i ver ing  o f  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  f rom Zano Spark .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So you communica ted  to  Mr  Ndzeku 

these conf ident ia l i t y  concerns d id  you?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Can you prov ide  us  w i th  th is  po l i cy  o f  

Zano Spark?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  I  can do tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You can do tha t ,  mmm.    That  wou ld  be  

usefu l ,  I  wonder  i f  you  cou ld  emai l  i t  to  us ,  wou ld  you do 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No I  wou ld  have  to  hand de l i ver  i t  cha i r  

because tha t  i s  our  po l i cy.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  you make an except ion  on  th is  

occas ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  there  cannot  be  anyth ing  

conf ident ia l  abou t  our  po l i cy.  20 

MS KWINANA:    No,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    You share  i t  w i th  your  c l ien ts .  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  Cha i r  even the  fac t  tha t  we do not  

emai l  s ta tements  bu t  we hand de l i ver  i t  to  them,  bas i ca l l y  

i t  i s  conf ident ia l i t y  i t se l f ,  so  i f  you  want  the  po l i cy  Ms  
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Hofmeyr,  I  w i l l  no t  emai l  i t  to  you,  I  w i l l  p r in t  and de l i ver  i t  

to  you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  we wou ld  l i ke  i t  on  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you have to ld  us  pub l i ca l l y  what  the  

po l i cy  says so  there  is  no th ing  conf ident ia l  about  i t .   

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  a t  leas t  Cha i r  I  w i l l  no t  be  w i l l i ng  to  

pu t  i t  down and emai l  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No Ms Kwinana can I  exp la in  why we 

want  i t  on  emai l?   We wou ld  l i ke  i t  on  emai l  because i f  you 

emai l  i t  to  us  we  can do a  Metadata  ana lys is  on  i t  and we 10 

can determine when tha t  document  was crea ted,  because I  

need to  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  your  ev idence thus fa r,  I  w i l l  

l i ke ly  a rgue in  due course  is  d ishonest .    Mr  Ndzeku came 

here ,  he  sa id ,  in i t ia l l y  he  sa id  he  had not  documents ,  bu t  

then when he is  f ina l l y  pushed  he says he  ge ts  them 

annua l l y  on  emai l .   You have come here  today and you te l l  

us  tha t  some server  re la ted  to  an  o ld  company whose debts  

you d idn ’ t  want  to  take  ove r  has been conf isca ted  in  

February  o f  th is  year  and so  you don ’ t  have any record  o f  

anyth ing  w i th  your  c l ien ts ,  bu t  res t  assured you pr in ted  ou t  20 

hand de l i vered documents  o f  annua l  s ta tements  to  hand  

de l i ver  them.  

 Ms Kwinana I  pu t  to  you tha t  i s  no th ing  shor t  o f  

p reposterous.  What  i s  you r  comment?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  Cha i r  I  w i l l  no t  be  in  a  
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pos i t ion  to  emai l  i t  to  you,  anyway the  po l i cy  tha t  you are  

look ing  fo r  I  wou ld  have to  c rea te  i t  because i t  has  gone 

w i th  the  server,  bu t  I  know what  i t  en ta i l s  because I  am the  

one who put  i t  in  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  anyway I  am not  go ing  to  emai l  i t  to  

you because tha t  w i l l  be  breach o f  our  po l i cy.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sure ,  okay Ms Kwinana.    R igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS HOFMEYR:   R igh t ,  le t  us  then move to  Mr  Ndzeku and 10 

your  unders tand ing  o f  h is  investment ,  because he was  

approached by  your  daughter  in  2016,  he  i s  to ld  he  can  

hedge aga ins t  the  Rand and he can do so  th rough her  

company Zano Spark  in  respect  o f  wh ich  she is  do ing  fo rex  

t rad ing ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t  so  then there  is  no  cont rac t  I  

assume tha t  ge ts  d rawn up fo r  tha t ,  i s  there?  

MS KWINANA:    There  is  no  cont rac t  Cha i r  bu t  in  the  

investment  s ta tement  i t se l f  . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    The one you hand de l i vered?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes?  

MS KWINANA:    There  is  some fo rm o f  I  wou ld  say the  

cont rac t  so  to  say.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    What  does i t  say?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  ta lk ing  about  the  re turn  on  

investments  and i t  ca lcu la tes  the  i l l us t ra t i ve  re turns  on  an  

annua l  bas is  and  i t  a lso  has go t  a  cap i ta l  amount  i nvested ,  

the  ra te  o f  re tu rns  and the  to ta l  amount  and i t  a lso  has the  

te rms and cond i t ions .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am go ing  to  come back to  your  te rms 

and cond i t ions .   Jus t  te l l  me  how was Mr  Ndzeku ’s  

investment  do ing?  He s ta r ts  invest ing  in  2016,  how is  i t  

done?  10 

MS KWINANA:    You know wi th  fo rex  t rad ing  Cha i r  today 

you are  do ing  we l l ,  today you make 10%,  the  fo l low ing you  

make 1%,  the  o ther  day you lose  2%,  you lose  5%,  so  

bas ica l l y  i t  i s  f luc tua t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    F luc tua t ion ,  so  you t rad ing  tha t  money 

s ince  you rece ived i t  in  the  accoun t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  on an annua l  bas is  le t  us  ta lk  about  

the  one you hand de l i ve red in  January  2017,  how was he  

look ing  a t  tha t  po in t  w i th  h is  investment  ove ra l l .   I  20 

unders tand the  da i l y  f luc tua t ions bu t  overa l l  was he up or  

was he down? 

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  say i t  is  a  l i t t le  b i t  up ,  i t  i s  no t  

tha t  good but  i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  up ,  i t  is  no t  as  my pro jec t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  i s  your  mandate  f rom Mr  Ndzeku?  
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MS KWINANA:    My mandate  is  to  invest  the  money and  

g ive  i t  to  h im wi th  the  pro f i t  a f te r  f ive  years .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  my ques t ion  is  you get  d i f fe ren t  

t ypes o f  manda te ,  a re  you aware  o f  tha t?    Fu l l  

d iscre t ionary,  non- fu l l  d iscre t ionary  mandates ,  do  you know 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  because tha t  i s  what  f inanc ia l  

serv i ce  prov ide rs  are  requ i red  to  be  very  c lear  about ,  so  

tha t  they don ’ t  jus t  do  the i r  own th ing  w i th  o ther  peop le ’s  10 

money cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  d id  you have a  fu l l  d isc re t ionary  

mandate ,  o r  someth ing  less  than tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r  a  fu l l  d iscre t ionary  mandate .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Fu l l  d isc re t ionary  mandate ,  so  you jus t  

went  on to  your  p la t fo rms whenever  you saw f i t  and you 

t raded h is  money,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  he  p lace tha t  leve l  o f  t rus t  in  20 

you?  

MS KWINANA:    He is  no t  the  on ly  one who is  pu t t ing  a  

leve l  o f  t rus t  in  me.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No I  unders tand  tha t ,  tha t  i s  why  we are  

go ing  to  ge t  the  names o f  the  o ther  e igh t  c l ien ts ,  bu t  jus t  
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te l l  me about  h im ,  why d id  he  pu t  tha t  leve l  o f  t rus t  in  you? 

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know,  maybe he wou ld  be  the  one  

to  answer  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you never  communica ted ,  because i f  

I  unders tood your  ev idence prev ious ly  a l l  you  had was a  

pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  h im in  wh ich  you d iscussed  

on occas ion  t ransfo rmat ion  issues and BEE in i t ia t i ves ,  

r igh t .    How does  he then have the  conf idence in  you,  no t  a  

f inanc ia l  serv ice  prov ider  because  you have got  no  l i cense,  

r igh t ,  to  pu t  m i l l i ons  o f  Rands  w i th  you,  w i th  a  fu l l  10 

d iscre t ionary  mandate?  

MS KWINANA:    Why he is  t rus t ing  me Cha i r  I  wou ldn ’ t  

know,  maybe he wou ld  be  the  best  person to  answer  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  someth ing  you sa id  to  h im tha t  

you th ink  may have g iven h im tha t  leve l  o f  conf idence tha t  

make h im g ive  you tha t  w ide  d iscre t ion  as  to  what  to  –  how 

to  –  what  to  do  w i th  h is  money?  

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i r  bu t  what  I  can conf i rm 

is  tha t  fo r  h im to  g ive  me tha t  l eve l  o f  conf idence tha t  20 

means he has seen someth ing  in  me tha t  maybe he t rus ted  

me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  I  unders tood you to  say tha t  the  

ar rangement  was  fu l l  d iscre t ionary  mandate  fo r  a  per iod  o f  
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f i ve  years  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We are  c lose  to  the  end o f  tha t  f i ve  

years ,  how i s  h is  investment  look ing  a t  the  moment?  

MS KWINANA:    We are  no t  c lose  to  the  end o f  f i ve  years  

Cha i r,  he  d id  no t  pu t  the  money  f i ve  years  ago,  he  has  

been put t ing  money as  and when he fee ls  tha t  he ’s  go t  

some b i t  o f  money to  invest ,  so  wh ich  means there fo re  

each investment  has  go t  i t ’s  l i f espan.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A l r igh t ,  so  there  is  a  new f i ve  years  fo r  10 

each depos i t  tha t  he  makes?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t ,  so  i t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  to  

know the  da te  on  wh ich  the  f i rs t  depos i t  i s  made,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes because  then you t rack  the  f i ve  

years ,  so  le t ’s  take  the  f i rs t  one wh ich  occur red  in  June o f  

2016,  tha t ’s  the  one I  was th ink ing  o f  when I  sa id  i t  is  qu i te  

soon,  i t  w i l l  be  June o f  next  year.   Te l l  me how h is  

investment  i s  do ing  on  tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    The f i rs t  one fo r  Ndzeku is  August  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    August  next  yea r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No i t  i s  no t ,  i t  i s  June.  

MS KWINANA:    I  have got  August  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You have got  August ,  okay le t ’s  take  
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August ,  jus t  te l l  me how tha t  investment  i s  do ing?  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id  Cha i r  i t  i s  no t  per fo rming as  we l l  

as  I  wanted to  bu t  i t  i s  do ing  fa i r l y  we l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No I  want  some g reater  c la r i t y  there ,  

what  was the  August  investment  amount?  

MS KWINANA:    I  th ink  tha t  was 600,  R600 000.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R605 000 to  be  exact ,  r igh t ,  how much  

has been los t  on  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No money has been los t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No money has been los t ,  has he  made a  10 

b i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Has he a lways made someth ing?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Which  ones d id  he  lose  on?  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r  you  know how forex  t rad ing  

works  i f  l i ke  fo r  ins tance as  we are  s i t t ing  here  there  is  

t rad ing  tha t  i s  go ing  on  and there fore  I  wou ldn ’ t  w i th  

conf idence say now we are  s i t t ing  a t  th is  much,  fo rex  

t rad ing  happens 24 hours  a  day as  I  am s i t t ing  here .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  you had to  dec ide  when to  buy and  

se l l  don ’ t  you?  

MS KWINANA:     Yes Cha i r.   Yes,  bu t  what  happens as  I  

am s i t t ing  here  there  are  pend ing  o rde rs ,  there  are  runn ing  

orders ,  so  bas i ca l l y  as  I  am s i t t ing  here  I  have pu t  in  the  
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pend ing  orders ,  tha t  means when the  pr ice  i s  a t  th is  then 

the  t rade must  se l l ,  when the  pr ice  i s  l i ke  th is  the  t rade  

must  buy,  tha t  i s  one.   And then two,  then you put  the  s tock  

losses and take  pro f i t s ,  so  bas ica l l y  I  may be s i t t ing  here  

w i th  tha t  investment  and I  wou ld  say maybe the  las t  t ime I  

checked i t ,  i t  was about  R700 000,  ja  R700 000 fo r  

ins tance.   I  can  go back to  the  p la t fo rm and f ind  ou t  tha t  i t  

i s  R1mi l l ion  or  I  can go back and f ind  ou t  tha t  a f te r  a l l  i t  i s  

R400 000,  so  bas ica l l y  in  fo rex  t rad ing ,  un l i ke  when you  

are  pu t t ing  money in  the  bank,  when you are  pu t t ing  money  10 

in  the  bank you say i t  i s  go ing  to  earn  5% per  annum,  then  

you know tha t  i f  you  have put  in  500 5% is  –  i f  you  had put  

in  100 5% is  R5 and there fore  you know tha t  a t  the  end o f  

the  year  you have 105,  bu t  i t  doesn ’ t  work  l i ke  t ha t  w i th  

fo rex  t rad ing .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Much more  vo la t i le  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    So bas ica l l y  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  say  how has i t  

per fo rmed or  no t ,  how you look a t  i t  i s  when you say  th is  i s  20 

the  end o f  f i ve  years  now and a t  the  end o f  f i ve  years  th is  

investment  i s  th is  month  then tha t  i s  when you – when we  

draw i t  and you c lose  tha t  account  then tha t  i s  when you 

dec ide  whether  you have made pro f i t  o r  loss ,  because i t  

depends on l i ke  a  second bas i s  bas ica l l y  because i t  
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changes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  can  unders tand tha t ,  so  i t  i s  a  h igh l y 

vo la t i le  market  to  be  invest ing  in ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  can  move,  as  you say as  you s i t  here  

today th ings m ight  have dropped  cons iderab ly  o r  ra ised 

cons iderab ly  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so  you rea l l y  on l y  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

assess the  investment  a t  the  end o f  the  f i ve  years ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  were  you put t ing  in  your  

investment  s ta tements  tha t  you had hand de l i vered to  Mr  

Ndzeku every  year  then?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am put t ing  in  the  i l l us t ra t i ve  f igures.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja ,  so  g ive  me the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  you are  pu t t ing  in?   Face th is  20 

s ide  p lease,  ja ,  you ’ re  pu t t ing  in?  

MS KWINANA:    I l l us t ra t i ve  f igures .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  a re  those?  

MS KWINANA:    I  don ’ t  remember  t hem now as I  am s i t t ing 
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here  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  what  I  asked you to  do  was jus t  te l l  

me now l i ke  you to ld  h im each January  how h is  investment  

was do ing ,  how h is  investment  i s  do ing  and I  unders tood  

you to  say you can ’ t  do  tha t  because i t  i s  too  vo la t i le ,  and 

you can on ly  es t imate  i t  –  we l l  you can on ly  de termine i t  a t  

the  end o f  the  f i ve  years ,  so  can ’ t  you do i t  fo r  me now,  

you sa id  tha t  f i ve  –  the  600 that  was invested in  August  

made a l i t t le bi t .   I  wanted to know which of  them he had lost  

on as you si t  here today.  10 

MS KWINANA:   When I  checked Chair  i t  had made a l i t t le 

bi t .   I  do not  know now how much i t  is and therefore I  wi l l  not  

be able to te l l  you.   And I  wi l l  a lso not  be able to te l l  you the 

i l lust rat ive one unt i l  I  have a look at  the statement.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes,  yes.   And that  is because his money 

is invested in plat forms in  respect  of  which there is a lot  of  

movement at  any point ,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So you need to stop i t  at  a point  to get  a  

proper sense of  whether he is up or  down, correct? 20 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And that  happens at  the f ive years,  

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   Let  me just  go back one step which 
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is that  – th is vo lat i l i ty suggests to me i t  is a very r isky 

investment,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is – i t  is Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Hm.  

MS KWINANA:   I t  is high r isk – i t  is  high rewards.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you remember what the FSCA said in 

i ts aff idavi t  about  the concerns i t  had about part ies engaging 

in these plat forms and not  being told about  the levels of  

r isk? 

MS KWINANA:   Of  course Chai r  you cannot not  te l l  the 10 

person about the level  of  r isk.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  is also… 

MS KWINANA:   And in fact  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry you cannot? 

MS KWINANA:   You cannot not  te l l  the person about the 

level  of  r isk.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Because i t  is high r isk and in fact  I  would 

tel l  my cl ients most  of  my cl ients are the members of  my 

fami ly.   I  would tel l  them that  you need to put  the money 20 

there that  you wi l l  not  commit  suicide when… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you lost  the bond.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes i f  you lose i t  and in  fact  that  is  exact ly 

– that  is exact ly how I  put  i t .   And in fact  that  is also what I  

said to Mr Ndzeku and Ms Hendr icks to say th is is vo lat i le,  i t  
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is high r isk,  i t  is high returns.   And what Mr Ndzeku said,  he 

said both of  them they are prepared to take the r isk.   The 

reason why they are prepared to take the r isk is that  – and 

they know that  I  do not  need a l icence to do that .   They said 

the reason why they are prepared to take the r isk is because 

even with formal ised businesses which have – which would 

have the l icence l ike for instance he made an example of  

Steinhoff  where people had invested in i t  th inking that  i t  is a  

good investment and thei r  monies were wiped off .   He made 

an example of  the Enron who went under and i t  was a 10 

[00:03:03]  company.   So basica l ly he knew exact ly what he 

was going through.  We are not  saying his money is lost .   We 

are saying in the – i f  they can lose that  money they know 

exact ly because we told them the r isks of  volat i l i ty including 

my own money.   I  have lost  money in forex t rading.   I  have 

gained money in  forex t rading but  I  never  lost  my mind 

because that  is the r isk I  know and that  is the r isk I  was 

prepared to take.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So this was what 2016 when you had this 

discussion wi th Mr Ndzeku.  20 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And he was referr ing to Steinhoff?  

MS KWINANA:   He was referr ing to I  th ink that  was 2016 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Just  the server is 

interest ing me.  You said i t  was conf iscated in February this 

year,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Have you taken steps to get  a  new server 

for your business? 

MS KWINANA:   No not  yet .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No not  yet .   Why not? 10 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is because basical ly wi th the plat form that  

we are using a very re l iable plat form there has not  been that  

much need for a server unl ike wi th  the – wi th the audi t  f i rm 

where basical ly you need to keep the f i les for a per iod of  f ive 

years others for a  per iod of  seven years.   And therefore the 

server basical ly is not  that  important  for the type of  the 

business that  you are in.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So you just  lef t  the conf iscat ion when i t  

happened in February of  2020 correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i f  Anero [?]  had just  contacted the 

commission and told us that  i t  d id not  conf iscate your server  

in February of  2020 would you say that  Anero is g iv ing us a 

false piece of  informat ion now? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  may not  necessar i ly be February i t  could 
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be February but  i f  they say they conf iscated the server on 

this date I  would agree wi th them.  But  i f  they sa id they 

never conf iscated the server then I  would not  agree wi th  

them.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  what would you say February 2020? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is what I  – that  is what I  th ink.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh okay.   But  you accept  you might  be 

wrong about that? 

MS KWINANA:   I  might  be wrong about that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay let  us then go to  what  actual ly  10 

happens in the Zano Spark bank account.  Right .   You open i t  

wi th R500.00 okay.   Then you get  a f i rst  payment into and we 

need to go to DD26 at  page 189 for that .   DD26 is Ms 

Ndzeku’s bundle.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  somebody – oh ja okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh apologies [a]  and i t  is page I  said 189.   

Oh sorry no,  no i t  is not  189.   Let  me get  that  r ight .   No we 

need to go to the JM Aviat ion – sorry the Zano Spark bank 

account.   I  do apologise.   Let  us start  there.   That  is 104.   

Apologies.   Okay so you had about eight  c l ients as I  20 

understand i t  when the business starts in February 2016, is 

that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   So we start  wi th the opening bank 

statement which is dated 15 March 2016 to 15 Apri l  2016,  do 
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you see that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   At  page 104.   And i f  you turn over the page 

you wi l l  see there is the credi t  of  R500.00 that  is what you 

have conf i rmed was deposi ted in i t ia l ly in the account ,  

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Ye Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   Then i f  you t rack i t  forward we wi l l  

see the receipts f rom your other c l ients,  is that  r ight?  

Because you said to us we do not  have Mr Ndzeku invest ing 10 

unt i l  August ,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  there wi l l  not  be the receipts f rom 

other cl ients here.   How the forex t rading plat form operates 

you put  the money into the plat form. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Closer  to the microphone.  Come closer  to  

the microphone.  

MS KWINANA:   You put  the money in the plat form.  You do 

not  put  i t  in the bank Chai r.   You put  the money in the 

t rading plat form and therefore you wi l l  not  see the money 

here.   And therefore you wi l l  not  see the cl ients here.   So 20 

basical ly that  is how i t  works.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh I  see.   So – sorry so I  misunderstood.   

So you do not  see the cl ient ’s money in th is bank account,  

r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   You just  put  i t  onto the plat form,  is that  

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is you,  you do that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   How do you get  the money f rom the 

cl ient  to put  on the plat form? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  depends Chai r  on the arrangements.   As I  

said some of  them would be put  through my credi t  card and 

then I  pay IC markets di rect ly.   Some of  them would be put  in 10 

my personal  account and then I  put  i t  in IC markets or I  put  

in Al tco in Trader or I  put  i t  in Luno.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Some of  them would direct ly  put  i t  in – in  

Luno and Al tcoin Trader.   Others would open the p lat forms 

accounts and then give me the logging detai ls  to  t rade for 

them.  So basical ly i t  depends on the level  of  the 

involvement that  the investor wants.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So they would not  be deposi t ing i t  in Zano 

Spark’s account  they would e i ther as I  understand your 20 

evidence I  do not  know pay you somehow into your personal  

account  so you can put  i t  through your credi t  card,  is  that  

r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is one of  them. 

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is one way.   The other way is  that  
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they do i t  d i rect ly onto the plat form but  give you login detai ls 

so you can t rade for them, is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Is there any other way than those two 

because I  have heard you reference credi t  card and I  have 

heard you reference direct ly onto the plat form.  

MS KWINANA:   There is also direct  payment into Al tco in 

Trader or Screams of  Luno.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right  but  what – what is c lear and you 

must  forgive me for  misunderstanding this.   I  thought  we 10 

would see the deposi ts into the Zano Spark account  but  that  

is not  how i t  happens,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   I t  happens…  

MS KWINANA:   And in fact  even thei r  prof i ts you – you wi l l  

not  see them here.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   Right .   They l ive somewhere else.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Correct .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So the money does not  come in here.   You 

do not  see the prof i ts here because there is  another 

arrangement,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  is going to be your personal  account  
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or  your credi t  card or then d irect ly onto the plat form, 

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  . . .  

MS KWINANA:   And also just  f rom – and also into A l tcoin 

Trader which basical ly is l ike the Bi tcoin bank account.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes exact ly.   We wi l l  come to Al tcoin 

short ly do not  worry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  wanted to say I  th ink I  must  give up 10 

Ms Hofmeyr.   Ms Kwinana l ikes looking at  you more than 

looking at  me.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh sorry Chai r.  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S ince yesterday I  have been saying she 

must  look this side.   She might… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are terr ib ly engaged.  She is very 

engaged.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She is much more interested in you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  do – I  wi l l  t ry and remind Ms Kwinana.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   She is giv ing me her back.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So i t  is terr ib le.  

MS KWINANA:   Apologies.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Terr ib le.   I  a lways say to wi tnesses t ry and 

as you have done turn the chair  so that  i t  reminds you 
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actual ly to whom your evidence is given.   But  nonetheless.   

Okay so we wi l l  not  see i t  Zano Spark that  is not  how i t  is 

done.   I t  comes d irect ly to  you,  credi t  card or your personal  

account,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay so that  is why I  should not  be 

surpr ised that  th is bank account starts  on the 15 March and 

there is just  nothing coming into i t  despi te the fact  that  you 

have your cl ients,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  goes f rom March to Apri l  and I  st i l l  

see no movement,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ja.   And then we get  f rom March to  – sorry 

Apri l  to May st i l l  no movement.   There is l i teral ly R501,37 in 

th is account.   No movement but  you doing a lot  of  forex 

t rading for your  other  cl ients.   And then we do however see 

R2.5 mi l l ion come into the account.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   At  page 111.   Why is R2.5 mi l l ion suddenly 20 

coming into the account i f  that  is  not  the way your forex 

t rading is done? 

MS KWINANA:   I  said Chai r  that  is one of  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No you did not .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr you said 111? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the amount did you say.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   2.5 mi l l ion 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay there I  can see i t  okay al r ight .   Thank 

you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see Ms Kwinana has just  sa id i t  was 

one of  the ways and I  was just  going to stop her and say no 

that  was not  your evidence a moment ago.   You see I  was so 

careful  about  that  evidence.   I  repeated i t  about  three t imes.    10 

I  have to confess I  bored mysel f  in  doing so.   But  i t  was so 

important  for me to get  absolutely clear  f rom you Ms 

Kwinana you as you give ev idence under oath in th is  

commission how this forex t rading happens for  your cl ients.   

So three t imes I  said to you we wi l l  not  see i t  in the Zano 

Spark account we wi l l  see i t  in  your personal  account  

through your credi t  card or di rect ly  onto the p lat form.  But  

now you have presented with a page that  shows a R2.5 

mi l l ion coming in to the account and you are now about to 

change your vers ion.   So te l l  us what your version has now 20 

become please? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am not  changing my vers ion Chai r.   I  am 

saying I  counted the ways in which to fund the plat form.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No I  asked you how the forex t rading took 

place.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry just  repeat .  

MS KWINANA:   I  counted the ways in which to fund the 

plat form.  I  said f i rst ly you fund i t  through your credi t  card 

and then the credi t  card what would happen I  would get  

money f rom my personal  account  and put  i t  in the credi t  card 

and fund that  is di rect ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   This is your – this  is business money? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you put  into your personal  credi t  

card? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.   I t  happens l ike that .   Yes.   And 

then I  put  i t  in my personal  account and then I  put  i t  in my 

credi t  card account and then i t  goes to IC Markets.   That  – 

basical ly – so that  is when you fund direct ly into IC Markets.   

And then – and then I  said you can al l  – you can also take 

this money f rom the account and pay i t  into Al tcoin Traders.  

CHAIRPERSON:   From which account? 

MS KWINANA:   From Zano Spark or f rom any account even 

my personal  account I  do that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Ms Kwinana i f  I  can say the record wi l l  20 

show you were absolutely  clear that  you did not  take the 

money f rom the Zano Spark account but  please cont inue.  

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r  I  have been saying I  have 

calculated the ways in which the money reaches the 

plat form.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   No my quest ion to you was how th is forex 

t rading take place and I  speci f ical ly  emphasised how do you 

get  the money with which to t rade?  And the record wi l l  show 

that  to you.   But  let  us not  detain ourselves.   Let  us have 

your version.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry let  her  f in ish how she was 

explain ing.   Just  f in ish how you were explaining Ms Kwinana.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   I  was saying I  was 

tel l ing the evidence leader how would the money get  into the 

plat form.  This is  how i t  happens.   There are many ways in  10 

which the money gets into the plat form.  I t  is not  one way.   I  

counted Scream, I  counted Al tcoin Trader,  I  counted Luno.   

So basical ly those ones and in fact  also then I  can get  

money f rom wherever.   I  can get  money f rom my credi t  card,  

I  can get  money f rom my personal  account,  I  can get  money 

f rom the business account.   The main aim is for the money to 

be in the plat form.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  wonder how quickly they could 

rewind to your quest ions and the answers – how quick that  

would be? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am not  sure Chai r.   You what might  be 

useful .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Is we could possibly cont inue a bi t  and we 

could actual ly do that  tomorrow morning because i t  is … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Would that  be convenient  because then we 

can certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f ine ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is f ine ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So let  us leave that  for a moment.   Let  us 

now focus at  page 111.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  I  am sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Mbanjwa.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Thank you Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you are not  avai lable tomorrow.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Because where I  understand i t .   Yes I  do 

not  want to mislead the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV MBANJWA:   The way I  understand i t  we – we were set  

down we were scheduled for two days.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Yes that  was just  a reminder.   Thank you 20 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Ja I  th ink the contemplat ion 

was that  we could f in ish – we would f in ish today but  certainly  

I  was also thinking obviously depending on your  avai labi l i ty  

tomorrow morning that  maybe before we start  wi th the next  
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wi tness i f  we do not  f in ish this evening we could cont inue for 

hopeful ly f in ish before lunch.   But  i f  you are not  avai lable I  

th ink other arrangements wi l l  have to be made.   

ADV MBANJWA:   No thank you Chair  I  regret  Chai r  but  I  

have al ready stayed with appointments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.  

ADV MBANJWA:   And I  th ink I  a lso have a cl ient  not  

tomorrow but  the [00:19:02] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.   I  th ink i t  should be easy to 

schedule for an evening session one of  the days.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chair  we wi l l  no doubt 

communicate wi th  Ms Mbanjwa af ter  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you for that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So i f  we are at  pages 111 tel l  us about  th is 

R2.5 mi l l ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry maybe in the l ight  of  that  we 

might  have to… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Leave a bi t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   P lay i t  – th is somet ime before we leave 

whi le . . .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  can I  ask that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Everything is f resh wi th everybody’s… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Fresh.   Maybe what we do is we just  f ind 
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out  whether i t  is feasible at  al l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And I  can be just  given a note i f  somebody 

wi l l  look into that .   And then I  can judge i t  as we … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Just  to not  lose … 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  some stage ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Time at  th is point .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So we are at  page 111 and there is th is  10 

deposi t  of  R2.5 mi l l ion.   So what is that? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is the forex t rading investment f rom Ms 

Hendricks.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And who is Ms Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA:   Ms Hendricks at  the t ime I  knew her to be Mr 

Ndzeku’s col league.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   His col league.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

MS KWINANA:   I  knew her to be Mr Ndzeku’s col league.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And so was this an investment for Mr 

Ndzeku? 

MS KWINANA:   She did not  say so that  is why a lso the 

statement – the investment statement is saying i t  is for her.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   For her? 
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MS KWINANA:   Yes 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   I t  is not  for Mr Ndzeku.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No.   So you have a separate arrangement 

wi th her,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what is the mandate there? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  is  the same because she wanted to invest  

in forex t rading.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So did you – how did she come to learn of  10 

this avai lable t rad ing? 

MS KWINANA:   I  was thinking that  she got  i t  f rom Mr  Ndzeku 

because that  is Mr Ndzeku who knows what we are doing.   

So when Lumka told me that  Ms Hendricks has put  in the 

money and Ms Hendricks is Mr Ndzeku’s col league i t  came to 

my mind that  she heard i t  f rom him.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes so did you have communicat ions wi th 

her about  what the investment involved? 

MS KWINANA:   The communicat ion between Ms Hendricks 

and Zano Spark is  through Lumka. 20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Your daughter Ms Goniwe. 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So she told her al l  about  the r isks? 
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MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes she knows.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And she communicated to Ms Goniwe that  

is Ms Hendricks communicated to Ms Goniwe that  i t  was her  

money that  she was invest ing,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So she needed a separate contract  and 

arrangement,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you know that  Mr Ndzeku’s evidence 

was that  she was invest ing for him? 

MS KWINANA:   That  should be thei r  arrangement.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No i t  is not  thei r  arrangement because i t  is  

very important  that  you know who your  cl ient  is.   You see 

and that  is why this is such regulated f ie ld.   You are going 

onto highly volat i le plat forms on your own evidence.   You 

have got  a ful l  d iscret ionary mandate and this is R2.5 mi l l ion 

f rom her.   So i t  is absolutely cr i t ical  that  you know who the 

cl ient  is,  who you receiving inst ruct ions f rom, who you 20 

contract ing wi th.   Did you do any know your cl ient  

invest igat ions that  are required under FIKA before these 

arrangements were set  up? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You did? 
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MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So you have got  FIKA documents for Ms 

Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA:   I  have got  FIKA documents Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And so she was your cl ient ,  d id you 

understand that? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   And there is  some other arrangement 

that  happened between her and Mr Ndzeku. 

MS KWINANA:   But  I  am not  party to  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   But  she came to you because of  Mr 

Ndzeku,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes I  th ink so.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No you have just  given evidence that  said 

you inferred that  when Ms Goniwe said she had been in  

touch and indicated that  she got  that  f rom Mr Ndzeku.   Did I  

have your evidence correct? 

MS KWINANA:   That  is what Lumka said.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  th ink she was not  stat ing i t  as a fact .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She was saying she was thinking so,  is  

that  r ight? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  what you are saying Ms Kwinana or 
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were you stat ing i t  as a fact  that  she heard f rom Mr Ndzeku 

about your services? 

MS KWINANA:   Who Lumka? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA:   Oh Ms Hendr icks? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You – she told you that  she heard f rom him 

or you just  … 

MS KWINANA:   No – Lumka told me – Lumka told me that  10 

Ms Hendricks who is a col league of  Mr Ndzeku has 

deposi ted the money that  she wants to be invested in forex 

t rading.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  the quest ion is,  how did she know 

about your services?  Did you think that  Ms – she had heard 

about you f rom Mr Ndzeku or did she tel l  you or  your  

daughter that  she heard about  your services f rom Mr 

Ndzeku? 

MS KWINANA:   My daughter to ld  me that  Ms Hendr icks – 

that  is why she knew that  i t  was Mr Ndzeku’s co l league 20 

because Ms Hendricks sa id she heard f rom Mr Ndzeku.  

MS KWINANA:   Okay alr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  understood f rom you evidence ear l ier you 

qui te  keen to emphasise that  you do not  provide these 

serv ices to the publ ic general ly,  correct? 



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 238 of 279 
 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  is people wi th whom you have a 

part icular associat ion,  is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Ms Hendricks have you ever met her? 

MS KWINANA:   I f  she is a co l league of  Vuyo and she cal led 

my daughter and my daughter to ld me and we did do they 

know your cl ient  I  real ly do not  take her as the member of  

the publ ic.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  see.   So i t  is… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The quest ion was have you ever met her? 

MS KWINANA:   Me I  never met her.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Who met her? 

MS KWINANA:   Lumka.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  was then her associat ion wi th Mr 

Ndzeku that  made you comfortable to take her on as a cl ient ,  

is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay.   So she deposi ts R2.5 mi l l ion that  is  20 

on the 1 July we saw that  at  page 111.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And the next  – so nothing else is 

happening in the bank account.   The next  th ing that  happens 

is i f  you go to page 113 she deposi ts another amount  of 
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R600 000.00,  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And that  is now taking the balance up to  

R3.1 is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And now what t rading are you doing for her 

pursuant to your contract? 

MS KWINANA:   Is  the same thing Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So you need to now invest  on the plat forms 

in order to do the t rading,  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And how do you do that  i f  no money is  

being taken f rom the account? 

MS KWINANA:   You wi l l  not ice that  somewhere in 

subsequent months the money is  taken f rom here.   The 

reason being that  when the money comes in I  just  would not  

put  i t  in the plat form because also as I  said the t rading is 

volat i le and somet imes l ike for instance wi th US Diza in 20 – 

in 2017 December 2017 one dol lar was R11.47 cents and 

about  a few two or  three months ago the – one dol lar was 20 

R19.40 or even R19.90 something.   So basical ly when you 

get  money for forex t rading you do not  just  put  i t  in in the – 

for t rading because you need to wai t  for the r ight  moment to 

st r ike.   So basica l ly that  is the reason why you wi l l  f ind that  

somet imes the money si ts for months or weeks and then 
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somet imes the money is put  i t  – is put  in the plat form or  

something.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So when was the r ight  moment to st r ike for 

Ms Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA:   I  would have to check i t  in the p lat form 

Chai r.   I  would not  say I  put  the money on this  date.   I  

def in i te ly would not  say that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No but  just  whereabouts.   She starts  

invest ing because she is interested in forex t rading on the 1 

July 2016 when was i t  the r ight  t ime to invest? 10 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  need to put  – I  need to check when 

did I  start  to invest  that  in forex t rad ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  you are invest ing for other c l ients at  

the t ime, were you not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   So why was i t  the t ime for them but  

not  the t ime for her? 

MS KWINANA:   When you enter the t rade Chair  i t  depends 

on the market  at  the t ime.  So the fact  that  in other c l ients I  

had put  in maybe let  us say for example I  use the simple pair  20 

l ike US to JPY for instance.   And US Disa which is wel l  

known in South Afr ica.   So i f  I  decide that  I  wi l l  put  your 

money in  US Disa I  wi l l  put  somebody else’s  money in gold.   

I  wi l l  somebody else’s money in Nasdaq.   I  wi l l  put  somebody 

else’s money in  AUDJPY for instance and therefore i t  
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depends when the market  is r ight  for that  part icular pai r.   

And in fact  I  would not  put  everybody’s money in  one pai r,  

for instance.   So basical ly,  when you say,  when was i t  the 

r ight  t ime for Ms Hendricks to put  i t  there?  I t  is d i ff icul t  for 

me to say this,  is  when I  put  i t . . .   Because another th ing.   I  

do not  have Ms Hendricks as the cl ient  only.   So i t  would be 

di ff icul t .    

 I  would say,  for instance,  I  put  i t  in October and only to  

f ind out  that  I  am not  te l l ing the t ruth because the money 

that  I  put  i t  in  October is for another cl ient .   So I  do not  know 10 

when did I  put  Ms Hendricks ’ money,   I  would have to  check 

the plat form.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So is your evidence that  at  any point  in 

t ime you are not  aware of  whose cl ients’ money you are 

deal ing wi th? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am aware of  whose moneys I  am deal ing 

wi th but  I  do not  know when d id I  enter the market  for that  

part icular c l ient  unt i l  I  check the p lat form.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Why would that  be so?  Ms Hendricks 

gives you R 3.1 mi l l ion by the end of  July.   How do you not  20 

know when you started invest ing her money in forex t rading? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am not  saying Chair  I  do not  know.   I  am 

saying,  as I  am s i t t ing here,  I  do not  know and I  do am not  

going to te l l  you when did I  invest  the money.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So at  some point ,  how would you earmark 
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what  has been invested for Ms Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA :    How would I  earmark. . .?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  how do you know which is  

Ms Hendricks’ money and not  Mr Ndzeku’s money? 

MS KWINANA :    The plat form has got  account numbers.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    So know that  th is  one,  th is account  number 

belongs to th is c l ient .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   So. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is i t  correct . . .   I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr.   

Would i t  be correct  that  you say you would work on the 

pr inciple that  once a cl ient  has given you his or her  money,  

you need to invest  i t  at  the ear l iest  opportuni ty?  So as soon 

as possible?  You should avoid delays? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  wi th forex t rading Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    But  wi th the bank because you would be 

losing some interest .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    That  is di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    But  wi th forex t rading . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MS KWINANA :    . . .you need to wai t  for the r ight  moment.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you have to watch how the markets 

are doing? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So at  some point ,  the money comes out  of  

th is account? 

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And goes into a p lat form for  Ms Hendricks,  

correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay and she wi l l  have her own account 

number.   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And I  understand you to  say,  what you 

cannot do today is te l l  me when that  is,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Could you tel l  me approximately,  l ike a 

year?  You know, you have only got  eight  c l ients.   

Ms Hendricks. . .   You held i t  for a year or two or three.   Can 20 

you give me any indicat ion l ike that? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   No,  I  would not .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  us talk about  saying that  you would 

not  necessari ly have to invest  i t  as soon as possib le af ter  
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the cl ient  has given you the money.   I  wonder to what extent  

that  is important  or  that  is a val id point  because as I  

understand i t ,  i f  you are ta lk ing about f ive years.    

 During that  f ive years,  that  money is going to be subject  

to the volat i l i ty of  the markets.   I t  can go down.  I t  can go 

up.   So why does i t  matter whether you. . .    

 I f  you get  the money now, f rom today f rom the cl ient ,  

whether you deposi t  i t  tomorrow or  next  week? Because in  

the end,  dur ing that  f ive year per iod anything can happen.  

So why should you not  deposi t  i t  immediately? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  how the forex t rading analyses 

happens.   As I  made an example of  US/ZAR(?).   When I  said 

in December 2017,  one Dol lar was R 11,47.   And I  th ink in  

October,  September,  October th is year,  one Dol lar was 

R 19,47 or R 19,80.    

 So basical ly,  what  I  would do,  depending on the st rategy 

that  I  am taking and i f  I  feel  I  take a long-term strategy,  then 

I  would say,  let  me wait  in th is example of  US/ZAR.   

 I  would say. . .   I  knew that  the Rand.. .  the Dol lar at  some 

stage was R 19,80.   And then now as i t  is,  the Dol lar is  20 

R 16,40.   Somewhere there,  these days.    

 And then I  knew that  in 2017 i t  was R 11,47.   So I  can 

decide to say,  I  wi l l  only invest  – I  wi l l  only put  the t rading 

when i t  is – when the Rand is. . .    

 Now I  know that  i t  is going down because i t  is coming 
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f rom R 19,00 but  I  know that  i t  is  st i l l  going to go up and test  

the market .    

 And therefore,  I  can decide that  I  put  a pending order  

where the Dol lar  is R 19,50 and then maybe put ,  a lso 

depending order to buy when the Dol lar  – when one Dol lar is 

R 11,47.    

 Because I  know, even i f  i t  is af ter three years,  i t  is going 

to go down to R 11,00 and test  the draf t (?) and i t  wi l l  a lso 

test  the highest .    

 So,  basical ly,  i f  i t  is now si t t ing at  R 16,00 I  can decide 10 

that  I  wi l l  not  do anything unt i l  i t  is there where I  wi l l  – I  

know that  I  wi l l  earn the biggest  money.    

 So basical ly,  that  is why am saying.   Unl ike when you 

put  money in the bank.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS KWINANA :    When you put  money in the bank,  you know 

that  you wi l l  earn 10% per annum. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    So the sooner you get  that  money and put  i t  

in the bank,  the bet ter.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    But  i t  does not  happen l ike that  wi th forex 

t rading.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    So that  is why they say forex t rading 
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requi res a lot  o f  pat ience.   You cannot just  come in  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no,  no.   That  is f ine.   

Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   So you received the 

R 2,5 mi l l ion f rom Ms Hendricks and you have received the 

600 and. . .   Is i t  600 f i rst?  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you cannot te l l  us now when you 

invested i t  f i rst  on the plat form, correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  i t  would. . .   Just  help me with the 

mechanics.   I t  would need to be taken out  of  the account to  

faci l i tate i t  being invested on the plat form.  Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i f  we could see when i t  was taken out  

of  the account,  i t  would then go onto the plat form, correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   So maybe the bank account wi l l  

help us wi th that  because she puts in two point  f ive.   She 20 

puts in six hundred-and-f ive.   We then have a total  – i f  you 

go to page 117 – of  about  three point  seven.   Then there is  

another credi t .   And Ms Kwinana,  just . . .   Nothing else is 

happening in th is account,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   There is Ms Hendr icks.   Two 

payments.   Sorry,  then there is another – there is one wi th a 

descr ipt ion JM Aviat ion.   So now what happened?  Why is JM 

Aviat ion suddenly deposi t ing money? 

MS KWINANA :    JM Aviat ion. . .   That  was when Mr Ndzeku 

started to do the investment.   And he required exact ly the 

same because he said – he promised me as that ,  as and 

when he has money he is going to  invest .   So now,  that  is  

when he started to do his f i rst  investment.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   So despi te his evidence that  he 10 

was invest ing ear l ier,  is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Pardon? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    His evidence was that  he was invest ing 

ear l ier just  through Ms Hendr icks.  

MS KWINANA :    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  you do not  know that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know that .   And as a resul t ,  I  have 

been sending statements to Ms Hendr icks.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    L ike hand del iver ing? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   Okay so then JM Aviat ion puts 

R 605 000,00.   Why was JM Aviat ion deposi t ing i f  i ts 

agreement was wi th Mr Ndzeku? 

MS KWINANA :    He said to me, JM Aviat ion is  paying him for 

is di rectorship.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    And then JM Aviat ion pays another amount 

at  page 117 of  R 600 000,00.   And then there is – that  money 

is taken out  of  the account.   Right? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So that  would then be,  as I  understood 

your evidence ear l ier,  when i t  is invested.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So by that  stage,  you have got  just  

Ms Hendricks and Mr Ndzeku’s money in th is account.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then you take i t  out  and you invest  i t  

on the plat forms, correct? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  d id not  take i t  out  and invest  i t  in the 

plat form.  I  took i t  out  and invested i t  e lsewhere whi ls t  I  was 

wai t ing for the market  because now I  am thinking that  i f  the 

money is s i t t ing here and there is an opportuni ty.   I  a lso do 

l ike maybe property speculat ion.   L ike,  for instance,  I  go to  

auct ions and then i f  there is a property that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  mean you took thei r  money 

which they wanted you to invest  in A and you took i t  and 20 

invest  in B?  You do not  do that ,  do you? 

MS KWINANA :    No.   Remember Chai r  that  they gave the 

conf idence to say I  can invest  i t  in forex t rading.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    And. . .   Yes,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  they d id not  say you can invest  i t  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   They said I  can invest  i t  in forex 

t rading and in  any investment that  I  deem necessary as long 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  is that  what they said?  They added 

that  as wel l?  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    You did not  say that  before.  

MS KWINANA :    That  is also in the ir  statements Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you did not  say that  before.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.  

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  then let  us add that  Chair  because 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  also,  you were talk ing about 

Mr Ndzeku.   You never said that  you had that  discussion wi th 

Ms Hendricks,  d id  you? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.  

MS KWINANA :    I  had that  discussion Chai r.  And in fact ,  wi th  20 

al l  my c l ient  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    With . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    And in fact  Chai r,  wi th al l  my cl ients.  

CHAIRPERSON :    With Ms Hendricks? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  wi th. . .   I  never met wi th Ms Hendricks 
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but  they know because the statement that  we have is  that  we 

can invest  in forex t rading and in  any other  th ing that  we 

deem f i t .   And in fact  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana,  you said you had a 

discussion wi th them.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    This is what they said.   And you never  

said that  about  Mr Ndzeku before.   I t  is new.  I f  that  is – i f  

you are inc luding Mr Ndzeku on – in that ,  in terms of  such a 

discussion,  that  is  new.  You did not  say i t  before you. . .    10 

 Whatever you sa id,  you said in regard to Mr Ndzeku with  

whom you had a discussion.   With whom you had a lot  of 

interact ions.   But  not  wi th Ms Hendricks as far as I  

remember.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  not  wi th Ms Hendricks.   I  never  met 

wi th Ms Hendricks.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And you never had such a discussion 

wi th her? 

MS KWINANA :    I  never had such a discussion wi th  

Ms Hendricks.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    However,  Lunga knows that  we invest  in  

forex t rading.   We invest  property speculat ion.   We invest  in  

venture capi tal .   L ike,  for instance,  i f  a person has got  a 

tender that  he is unable to f inance.   I f  we have money,  we do 
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that .   And then. . .   So basical ly,  we invested in anyth ing.   And 

in fact  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  Ms Hendricks never gave you that  

mandate in terms of  your own evidence.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    Okay.   The evidence,  therefore,  Chair  

should include the fact  that  wi th al l  our cl ients,  they gave us 

or they are conf ident  in us.   And then they gave us the 

leeway to say:   Invest  in whatever you feel  l ike invest ing in.   

But  our main aim . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]  

MS KWINANA :    Our main aim is  the investment  in forex 

t rading,  fo l lowed by the investment  in propert ies.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .  

MS KWINANA :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  i t  is just  a problem with that .   Is that  

Mr Ndzeku’s evidence under oath before this Commission is  

that  he wanted to  hedge against  the fal l ing Rand and that  is 

why he wanted investment in forex.   You do not  hedge 20 

against  the fal l ing Rand by buying propert ies.    

 Ms Kwinana, the only basis that  Mr  Ndzeku,  a suppl ier  to  

SAA Technical  at  the t ime that  he starts paying money into 

your account – his reason or doing so is  that  he wanted to  

t rade in forex so that  he could hedge against  the fal l ing 
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Rand.   

 You are now tel l ing me that  he entered into a cont ract  

wi th you that  said you could invest  in whatever you wanted 

including property that  would stay in Rands.   Is that  your  

vers ion? 

MS KWINANA :    Let  me repeat Chai r.   My cl ient  g ives me 

money . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Is your hand up or have you 

been covered? 

MS MBANJWA :    I t  is st i l l  up Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Yes? 

MS MBANJWA :    Yes,  thank you Chai r.   I  just  wanted to refer 

to a quest ion that  Ms Hofmeyr. . .   I  agree wi th you Chai r,  

when that  quest ion was asked,  i t  was not  concerning 

. . . [ indist inct ]  [voice of  speaker t rai ls off  and cannot be heard 

clear ly. ]    

 But  I  just  want to remind.   There was a quest ion that  

Ms Hofmeyr asked the wi tness.   (S)he said,  what was the 

nature of  your mandate?   

 And then she said she had a ful l  d iscret ionary mandate,  20 

which according to my inst ruct ion,  mean that  because 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   Do not  say what i t  means.    

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you wi l l  now be . . . [ intervenes]   
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MS MBANJWA :    Assist ing the c l ient .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Assist ing the wi tness.  

MS MBANJWA :    And before that ,  before that  quest ion.   The 

wi tness has said that  she was invest ing in a number of  

th ings and then Ms Hofmeyr has said but  the main thing was 

forex.   I  am just  put t ing a reminder to that .   Thank you,  

Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  The record wi l l  show precisely 

the evidence that  Ms Kwinana has g iven ear l ier today.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And what I  am put t ing to you now is,  your 

own descr ipt ion of  what you were ent i t led to  do wi th  

Mr Ndzeku’s money is inconsistent  wi th Mr Ndzeku’s 

evidence to this Commission of  why he gave you money.   Do 

you have a response to that? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  wi l l  st ick to my evidence.   I  wi l l  let  

Mr Ndzeku st ick to his evidence.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    So what did you do wi th that  R 4,3 mi l l ion 

that  was taken out  of  the account that  we just  saw? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Not  wi th the four point  three Chai r.   I  added 

some money.   I  th ink maybe a mi l l ion.   And paid i t  over to the 

lawyers to buy the property that  was,  I  th ink that  was on 

auct ion.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  let  us just  stop.   Remember,  four  
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point  three only comes f rom Ms Hendricks and JM Aviat ion.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Correct .   You said you added i t  to some 

money.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    I  added some money,  yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Where did that  other money come f rom? 

MS KWINANA :    Hmm.  I  th ink. . .   Let  me.. .   I t  came f rom 

Kwinana & Associates.   Ja.   Most  probably f rom Kwinana and 

Associates.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  d id  not  come from a suppl ier to SAA 10 

Technical? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You are certain about  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Hundred percent .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   So you take four point  three out .   

The you add some money,  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Which did not  come f rom a suppl ier  to  

SAA Technica l .  

MS KWINANA :    No.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  came from Kwinana & Associates,  is  

that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  I  th ink so.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   This is  2016,  about  September.   

And then you take those two amounts and you buy a 
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property.   Is that  what happened? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  was consistent  wi th your mandate 

wi th Mr Ndzeku and Ms Hendricks.   Is that  your version? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    What happened with that  property that  you 

bought? 

MS KWINANA :    I  sold i t  and put  back the money into Zano 

Spark.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In whose name was the property  10 

registered once i t  had been purchased? 

MS KWINANA :    I  would not  remember Chai r.   But  what we 

do to manage the r isk.   I f ,  for instance,  you buy a property.   

You buy a property in another ent i ty and then another  

property in another ent i ty.    

 So basical ly,  the reason being that  you want to – that  is  

part  of  the r isk management.   And therefore,  the property  wi l l  

not  be. . .    

 And another th ing.   These propert ies are for speculat ion 

purposes.   So the property is not  going to stay long anyway.   20 

So the regist rat ion of  that  property,  basical ly,  would be – 

would not  be that  mater ia l  in terms of  what you want to do.    

 But  I  understand,  maybe with you who is not  speculat ing 

in propert ies,  you would want to your property  to be 

registered in your name.   
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 But  because we do not  keep these propert ies for a long 

t ime.  And most  of  the t imes,  you even tender for th is  

property  on auct ion.   And then,  before i t  gets even 

registered,  you have already so ld i t  to the other person.    

 So which means that  the ownership has not  even taken 

hands between you who have invested because i t  is  has 

moved f rom one old owner to the new old owner.   So 

basical ly,  that  is how property speculat ion goes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    So you brought  property  on auct ion?  Is 

that  what you said? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    With the money? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   I t  is ei ther Chai r  on auct ion or. . .   

Basical ly,  that  would ei ther be on auct ion or would be 

di lapidated propert ies or maybe I  would be phoned by the 

agent  to  say here is  a  person who is  sel l ing her property  

because (s)he needs money.    

 Now,  so the person is  sel l ing i t  at  a good pr ice because 

he wants to  se l l  now.   So basical ly,  i t  depends on when and 

how you get  the property.    20 

 So somet imes i t  would be on auct ion.   Somet imes i t  

would be on dist ressed property.   Somet imes i t  would be 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So you cannot remember which one i t  was 

wi th th is part icular property? 
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MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    But  I  have since sold i t  and put  back the 

money in Zano Spark.   And then f rom Zano Spark,  when the 

market  was r ight ,  I  had to take i t  into the forex t rad ing.    

CHAIRPERSON :    That  property was never registered in the 

name of  Kwinana & Associates? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ja . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Kwinana & Associates never . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Zano Spark,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Because that  is the company we are 

now.. .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  i t  was a combinat ion of  money 

f rom Kwinana & Associates,  is i t  not?  And money f rom Zano 

Spark.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   And money f rom Zano Spark.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  i t  was not  registered in the name of  

ei ther? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Was i t  ever  registered. . .   And i t  was 

not  registered in your name? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And nor in your daughter ’s name? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  there was no change in  the 

ownership?  There was no t ransfer of  ownership? 

MS KWINANA :    Ja,  there was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS KWINANA :    There was the t ransfer of  ownership but  10 

what I  know – what I  can st i l l  remember is  that ,  i t  was not  in 

the name of  the two companies.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  in the name of  another ent i ty of  

your choice? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chair  i t  could be in another ent i ty of  

my choice because I  a lso manage many propert ies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you used money that  you took f rom the 

account of  Zano . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Spark.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Spark.   And money f rom Kwinana & 20 

Associates.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then bought th is  property  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    And speculate in forex.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   And then the property was registered 

in the name of  some other ent i ty . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . that  you choice? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  an ent i ty in which you 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .you had an interest? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  that  would be an ent i ty that  I  10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  you had an interest? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Would you have been the sole director or  

shareholder or member or would there have been others? 

MS KWINANA :    I  th ink Chai r  i t  was not  just  – in a name of  a  

t rust  but  I  do not  know what is the name of  the t rust .   I  would 

have to check that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  many t rusts which you – 

yoursel f?  20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  i t  was. . .   Just  a fo l low-up.   I f  i t  was 

a t rust ,  there would be benef ic iar ies of  that  t rust ,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    
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ADV HOFMEYR :    And the benef ic iar ies. . .   Because this is  

not  your money,  as I  understand i t .  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    The benef ic iar ies of  the t rust  would then 

appropriately be Ms Hendricks,  Mr Ndzeku and maybe 

Kwinana & Associates.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   Because this is for speculat ive 

purposes.   That  is why I  am saying,  I  can register i t  in any 

name.  somet imes I  even do not  have to register i t  because 

i t  wi l l  exchange hands . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  a t rust  has to be registered,  is i t  

not?  And a t rust  wi l l . . .   I t  is a requirement that  there should 

be benef ic iar ies,  is i t  not?  I t  is a legal  requirement.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    The t rust  that  you,  in whose name this 

property was registered,  who were the benef ic iar ies? 

MS KWINANA :    I  would have to  check that  Chair  which t rust  

was that  but  def in i te ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  a fami ly t rust? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   But  Chai r,  for  the purposes of  20 

speculat ion,  i t  does not  have to be registered.   And I  can 

even buy a shel l (?) company . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The t rust  you are ta lk ing about,  you say 

was not  registered? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  the t rust  would be registered.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And you said the property was 

registered in the name of  that  t rust? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   And then was also,  when we sold i t ,  

when the t ime was r ight  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    . . . i t  was registered in somebody else.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  i f  i t  went  into. . .   I f  i t  was 

registered in the t rust  of  a – in the name of  a t rust  and then 

i t  was later then taken out ,  i t  would be interest ing to know 

whether i t  was now a donat ion by the t rust  to  somebody or  10 

whether i t  was sold.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  might  be qui te a compl icated thing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How did i t  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I t  is not  compl icated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How d id i t  get  removed f rom the t rust?  

Was i t . . .   Did the t rust  sel l  i t?  Because once i t  was in the 

name of  the t rust ,  i t  was owned by the t rust .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   Chai r  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So how did i t . . .   Was i t  sold to somebody 

or donated to somebody? 

MS KWINANA :    I t  is a simple account ing t ransact ion Chai r.   

When the t rust  . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  before there is an account ing,  there 

is a legal  requi rement.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you register a property  in  the name of  a 

t rust  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . that  t rust  own that  property.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  now the t rust  is going to seize to be the 

owner of  that  property . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MS KWINANA :    Then the t rust  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    There is a legal  t ransact ion.   Ei ther you 

sel l  the property or you donate the property.   I  do not  know i f  

there is something else.   There is counsel  looking.   You can 

advise me. [ laughing]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  am stuck in sale and donate.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   So do you know i f  i t  was sold 

or donated? 

MS KWINANA :    Sold.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sold? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  when the t rust . . .   That  is  why I  am 

saying,  i t  is  s imple when you put  i t  in account ing terms.  

Because when the property is bought by the t rust ,  the 

property  gets reg istered in  the name of  a t rust .   And then 

when the property  is sold,  the property is deregistered.    
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 So basical ly,  the account ing t ransact ion there would be 

when the property gets into the t rust ,  then you get  that  

property.   Then you credi t  a credi tor.   In th is case 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]  

MS KWINANA :    In th is case,  a credi tor  would be Zano Spark 

and Kwinana & Associates.   And then. . .   Yes.   And then now, 

when the property is sold,  then you credi t  the property,  you 

get  the bank.   And then wi th the bank,  you pay Zano Spark.   

You pay Kwinana & Associates and . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You pay VAT,  you pay a l l  the taxes,  

t ransfers . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    You pay t ransfers.   Yes,  al l  of  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  th is was mister  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sure the purchase and sale 

agreement . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Indeed, Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  can be. . .    

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  you see.   None of  th is you provided 

to the Commission before today.   Did you,  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA :    Did you not  get  i t  f rom Mbanjwa 

Incorporated? 
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ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  certainly not .  

MS KWINANA :    Did your invest igator not  get  i t  f rom 

Mbanjwa?  I  th ink they did get  i t  f rom Mbanjwa Incorporated.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    The purchase of  th is property wi th the four 

point  three mi l l ion? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  we have never unt i l  th is moment in  

your evidence been told by you that  you took the four point  

three mi l l ion that  Ms Hendricks and Mr Ndzeku invested wi th  

Zano Spark to buy a property.   You have never to ld us that .    10 

MS KWINANA :    But  I  thought  your invest igat ion was 

fol lowing money and that  is what exact ly you were supposed 

to learn.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  no.   You were required to te l l  th is  

Commission everything you know about the payments made.   

I  wi l l  read you the di rect ive f rom the Chai rperson of  th is  

Commission.   The payments made to Aviat ion,  Ms Hendr i cks  

or  Mr  Ndzeku to  you in  your  persona l  capac i ty  o r  to  Zano  

Spark  L td  dur ing  the  t ime tha t  you served as  a  board  

member  o f  SAA and SAA Techn ica l  and s ince  then.   That  i s  20 

a  d i rec t i ve  f rom the  Cha i rperson o f  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  

asked you to  te l l  h im every th ing  you know about  tha t .    

You gave us  four  paragraphs,  r igh t?   One o f  those  

parag raphs I  w i l l  te l l  you  now is  incons is ten t  w i th  your  

ev idence today –  we l l ,  you r  rev ised ev idence.   One o f  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 265 of 279 
 

those paragraphs  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  th is  Commiss ion  i n  

response to  the  Cha i rperson ’s  d i rec t i ve  i s :  

“The payments  made by  Ms Hendr icks  to  Zano  

Spark  was fo r  investment  purposes th rough fo rex  

t rad ing . ”  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  tha t  i s  how you s ta r ted .   Then your  

ev idence moved  to  inc lude p roper t y  investment ,  o ther  

investments  bu t  here  you say i t  i s  investment  th rough fo rex  

t rad ing .   So on your  own vers ion  you cou ld  no t  take  any o f  10 

her  3 .1  m i l l ion  and put  i t  in  p roper t y,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  money is  in  fo rex  t rad ing  as  we speak,  

tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no ,  no ,  Ms Kwinana,  do  no t  run  

away f rom the  quest ion .   Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing  to  you,  you 

have now to ld  me tha t  the  money  tha t  Ms Hendr i cks gave 

you,  you cou ld  use by  invest ing  i t  in  p roper ty,  i t  was not  

jus t  fo rex  t rad ing  on ly  bu t  she says in  your  a f f idav i t  you 

on ly  ta l ked about  fo rex  t rad ing ,  you d id  no t  ment ion  

proper ty,  investment  in  p roper ty  and she is  t here fore  20 

say ing  what  you  sa id  in  the  a f f idav i t  i s  incons is ten t  w i th  

what  you are  say ing  now.   What  do  you say about  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Or  maybe,  Cha i r,  what  I  shou ld  have sa id ,  

there fo re ,  i s  to  say the  money rece ived f rom Ms Hendr i cks  

was u l t imate ly  invested  in  fo rex  t rad ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  we a re  very  c lose  to  the  end.   I  

wonder  i f  I  can  ind ica te  why the  ba lance o f  the  4 .3  m i l l ion  

tha t  made up the  add i t iona l  m i l l ion  came f rom a  supp l ie r  

f rom SAA Techn ica l  and then we can… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  w i l l  be  fa i r l y  qu ick .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   The way  tha t  we need to  do  tha t ,  

Ms Kwinana,  i s  –  remember  we saw in  the  Zano  Spark  10 

account  tha t  4 .3  or  thereabouts  went  ou t .   Do you  

remember  see ing  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   So tha t ,  le t  me jus t  ge t  th is  r igh t ,  

ac tua l l y  does not  go  to  you i t  goes to  anothe r  account  o f  

Zano Spark .   Were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  cannot  remember,  Cha i r,  maybe i t  i s  

f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  why d id  i t  have to  go  –  i t  went  to  

the  bus iness account ,  so  i t  went  f rom the  main  Zano Spark 20 

account  to  a  Go ld  bus iness account  and then to  you.   Why  

d id  i t  need to  go  th rough those accounts?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  check tha t ,  Cha i r,  why 

wou ld  i t  have to  go  f rom one account  to  anothe r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  does not  make sense,  does i t?  
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MS KWINANA:    And in  fac t  fo r  me,  i f  i t  goes f rom Zano  

Spark  account  to  another  Zano Spark  account ,  rea l l y  to  me 

i t  i s  immater ia l  because i t  i s  two Zano Spark accounts .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t  bu t  on  the  same day i t  went  to  

you,  I  am jus t  query ing  why do you need to  rou te  i t  th rough 

two accounts?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am sure  there  was some reason  fo r  tha t  

bu t  cons ider ing  tha t  they were  bo th  Zano Spark accounts ,  

fo r  me i t  i s  rea l l y  immater ia l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   Then  le t  us  jus t  go  to  your  10 

bund le ,  wh ich  is  DD33,  and the re  a t  page 67 …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  bund le  i s  tha t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    DD33,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  Ms Kwinana ’s  main  

bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Page?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    67 .   That  i s  a  copy o f  –  oh ,  so r ry,  Ms  

Kwinana,  do  you have i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  a  copy o f  you r  own persona l  20 

bank account ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you see a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 67  

you get  a  to ta l  o f  5  234 400,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  the  one tha t  comes f rom the  

Zano Spark  bus iness account .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay.   So then we need –  because,  

remember,  we on ly  had 4 .3  f rom Mr  Ndzeku and Ms  

Hendr icks  bu t  the re  i s  more  he re .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  unders tood to  be  tha t  i s  –  what  

makes up the  ba lance is  someth ing  tha t  came f rom 

Kwinana and Assoc ia tes ,  co r rec t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Okay but  le t  us  see ac tua l l y  where  

i t  came f rom.   So  fo r  tha t  we need  to  go  to  page 78 .   Okay,  

so  what  happens is  now -  the re  are  so  many bank  

accounts ,  i t  i s  very  confus ing .   Now we are  in  –  le t  us  s ta r t  

a t  77 ,  the  Zano Spark  sav ings account .   Okay.    

Bus iness account ,  cur ren t  account ,  sav ings  

account .   We a re  in  the  sav ings account ,  aga in  no t  much  

movement ,  i t  seems i t  has  a  zero  open ing  ba lance,  do  you 

see a t  page 78?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And then do you see there  is  a  

payment  on  the  15  Ju ly  tha t  says loan and 29 Ju ly  tha t  

says loan,  do  you  see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  i s  R700  000 loan and R119 000 

loan.   What  were  those loans fo r?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  have to  check,  Cha i r,  what  were  

these loans fo r  and where  do  they  come f rom.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you do not  know about  a  loan o f  

R819 000 tha t  came in to  the  company o f  wh ich  you and  

your  daughter  were  the  so le  d i rec tors  in  Ju ly  o f  2016? 

MS KWINANA:    As  I  am s i t t ing  he re ,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  

remember  i t  bu t  de f in i te ly  I  wou ld  have to  check the  bank  

s ta tements  and see where  i t  came f rom.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you ever  rece ive  a  loan  f rom a 

supp l ie r  to  SAA Techn ica l?  

MS KWINANA:    A loan f rom a  supp l ie r  f rom SAA 

Techn ica l?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  you cou ld  no t  rea l l y,  cou ld  you,  I  

mean you were  the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  o f  SAA Techn ica l ,  

imag ine  a  supp l i e r  i s  g iv ing  you a  loan.   That  wou ld  be  

h igh l y  i r regu la r,  wou ld  i t  no t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  wou ld  be  even more  i r regu lar,  I  pu t  to  

you,  i f  a  supp l ie r  was pay ing  you money w i th  no  s t r ings  

a t tached,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  



03 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 297 
 

Page 270 of 279 
 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  those two  amounts  came in to  the  

sav ings account  f rom an ent i t y  ca l led  Jan icap(?) .   Do you 

know what  Jan icap is?  

MS KWINANA:    Jan ipa r ts (?)  be longs to  Ms Nd i leka  

Nobaxa.   Okay,  what  Ms Nobaxa d id ,  she was a lso  one o f  

the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you jus t  want  to  g ive  the  spe l l ing  fo r  

the  name and the  surname? 

MS KWINANA:    Nd i leka  N-d- i - l -e -k-a .   The surname is  N-

o-b -a-x-a .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I  remember,  Cha i r,  Nd i leka  got  an 

RFQ,  she to ld  me  tha t  she got  an  RFQ f rom SAA Techn ica l  

and she wanted my …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And RFQ,  request  fo r  quota t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Quota t ion ,  yes .   And then now she got  –  

she was awarded th is  RFQ and  then she d id  no t  have 

money to  f inance  th is  RFQ and I  a lso  d id  no t  have money –  

she came to  me,  we go together  a t  church ,  and then she  

came to  me to  bor row the  money.   She sa id  she wanted 20 

700 000.   There  was an urgent  supp ly.    

I  d id  no t  have the  money but  wha t  I  sa id  to  her,  I  

sa id  the re  is  a  po ten t ia l  investo r  who ind ica ted  to  me tha t  

he  is  a lso  in te res ted  in  fo rex  t rad ing  and then I  can – she  

must  speak to  h im and then i f  i t  i s  my recommendat ion  I  
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w i l l  do  tha t  and she spoke to  Mr  Ko l i s i  o f  BMK and then Mr  

Ko l is i  –  o f  cou rse ,  Nd i leka  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    BMK,  are  those a t to rneys?  I s  i t  a  f i rm o f  

a t to rneys?  

MS KWINANA:    BMK o r  BKM.   BMK,  I  th ink  i t  i s  BMK.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  i t  i s  a  f i rm o f  a t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   So Ms Nobaxa ca l led  the  CEO or  MD 

o f  BMK,  Mbu le l i  Ko l i s i ,  because i t  i s  Ko l i s i  who ind ica ted  

tha t  he  w i l l  have money to  invest  and then Ms Nobaxa  10 

ca l led  and sa id  she is  re fe r red  to  me,  she has go t  th is  

tender  tha t  she needed to  serv i ce  and the re fo re  –  and then  

Mr  Ko l i s i  ca l led  me and sa id  do  I  know th is  person and  

then I  sa id  yes,  I  know,  and then  he sa id  can I  t rus t  he r  

and then  -  because she seemed to  be  despera te  because 

now when you go t  a  tender  and you are  unab le  to  serv ice  

i t ,  you  w i l l  no t  ge t  tha t  oppor tun i ty  .    

So  Mr  Ko l i s i  gave  her  the  700 and then now when i t  

was due fo r  payment  and in  fac t  Ms Nobaxa I  th ink  when 

she ca l led  i t  was  –  maybe I  th ink  beg inn ing  o f  Ju ly.   When 20 

she ca l led  me and sa id  I  do  no t  have money,  then she can 

go there .    

And then I  sa id  to  Mr  Ko l i s i  i f  you  can p lease ass is t ,  

I  t rus t  he r,  she is  –  we go together  in  church  and there fo re  

she is  no t  go ing  to  run  away.   I  a lso  know where  she l i ves  
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and there fore  she  is  no t  go ing  to  run  away.   And then  I  sa id  

why do you not  say  –  you send i t  to  me,  you are  in te res ted  

in  invest ing  and there  is  some money tha t  you can  invest ,  

so  you can g ive  h im tha t  money and then Mr  Ko l i s i  gave 

her  the  money and then when the  money was due fo r  

payment  and in  fac t  th is  money was pa id  on  the  15  Ju ly,  I  

th ink  i t  d id  no t  even take  10 days o r  15  days.    

Then Mr  Ko l i s i  sa id  you need to  pay tha t  money fo r  

the  investment  and there fo re ,  tha t  i s  –  and then now tha t  i s  

the  700,  when you –  th is  700 bas i ca l l y,  tha t  i s  the  money  10 

tha t  Mr  Ko l i s i  a lso  invested  and then now the  119,  Mr  Ko l i s i  

sa id  I  w i l l  g ive  you the  money p lus  in te res t .   So bas ica l l y  

when Ms Nobaxa pa id  th is  money to  me,  i t  was on the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  Ko l i s i  because Ms Nobaxa had bor rowed 

the  money f rom h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  119 000?  You sa id  someth ing 

about  i t?  

MS KWINANA:    The 119 i s  in te res t  because he  sa id  I  

cannot  jus t  g ive  ou t  the  money w i thout  an  in te res t ,  so  I  am 

go ing   -  in  fac t  he  a lso  to ld  me tha t  he  is  go ing  to  charge –  20 

he sa id  he  wanted to  charge 30% and then I  sa id  oh  

shame,  she is  an  emerg ing  person ,  why do you not  charge  

say 10% and then they reached a  compromise  o f  17%.   So 

bas ica l l y  the  119 is  the  17%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  who ac tua l l y  pa id  the  money in to  th is  
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account?   Who pa id  700 000 in to  th is  account?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  Nd i leka .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say on  the  i ns t ruc t ions o f  Mr  Ko l i s i?  

MS KWINANA:    On the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  Mr  Ko l i s i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who pa id  R119 000?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  a l so  Nd i leka  pay ing  in te res t  on  the  

700.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  we are  a t  f i ve  to  s ix .   Th is  i s  new 

to  me so  i t  i s  p robab ly  an  appropr ia te  t ime fo r  us  to  take  10 

the  ad journment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We can invest iga te  fu r the r  and Ms  

Kwinana w i l l  be  re turn ing  a t  some po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Sub jec t  to  whatever  fu r ther  

invest iga t ion  may  need to  be  done,  I  had in  m ind tha t  I  was  

go ing  to  check w i th  a l l  concerned whether  there  is  a  

chance tha t  we  cou ld  have Ms  Kwinana re turn  fo r  an 

even ing  sess ion  somet ime th is  week but  I  say  tha t  fu l ly  

aware  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr,  you w i l l  have been s tand ing  the  20 

who le  day,  so  i f  you  say no ,  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t ,  i t  i s  f ine ,  

bu t  I  a lso  say tha t  knowing tha t  Ms  Mban jwa sa id  tomorrow 

she is  busy,  so  bu t  i t  wou ld  be  on the  bas i s  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

a f te r  o r  maybe f i ve .   But  we cou ld  look a t  next  week but  I  

wou ld  no t  l i ke  us  to  go  too  fa r,  i f  poss ib le .   What  do  you 
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th ink ,  Ms Hofmeyr?   Maybe th is  week might  be  d i f f i cu l t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  may be d i f f i cu l t  bu t  I  am jus t  

wonder ing  i f  we cou ld  ge t  as  sense o f  Ms Mban jwa and Ms 

Kwinana ’s  ava i lab i l i t y  fo r  the  remainder  o f  the  week,  even  

maybe in  the  day.   I  am not  cer ta in  how long the  ev idence  

o f  the  next  w i tness wou ld  take  so  i t  may be poss ib le  tha t  

we cou ld  s lo t  them in  on  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Fr iday.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Fr iday or  even Thursday.   My cha l lenge 

is  ava i lab i l i t y  a f te r  th is  week is  ex t remely  d i f f i cu l t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t  w i l l  d i f f i cu l t ,  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  wou ld  be  he lp fu l… 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you wou ld  p re fer  th is  week as  we l l?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  do  th ink  so ,  yes .   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes,  Ms  Mban jwa,  how is  your  

s i tua t ion  fo r  the  res t  o f  the  week?  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r,  p lease,  I  do  no t  want  to  be  taken  

as  be ing  a  bad person here ,  I  have got  a  mat te r  in  cour t  

and then I  am a lso  d ra f t ing  an  app l i ca t ion  fo r  leave to  

appea l  and my days are  runn ing  out .   So th is  week du r ing  20 

the  day is  to ta l l y  ou t  fo r  me bu t  I  know tha t  I  need to  

accommodate  the  Commiss ion .   So I  can maybe look –  I  do  

no t  know on a  Fr iday,  i s  F r iday even ing  bad  fo r  the  

Commiss ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  can s i t  –  we can have –  f rom my s ide  
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we can have an even ing  sess ion  on  Fr iday.  

MS MBANJ WA:    I  th ink  then tha t  even ing  wou ld  he lp  and I  

rea l l y  do  no t  –  I  am not  p repared,  o f  course  sub jec t  to  the 

Cha i rperson.   I  am not  be ing  rude  but  I  do  no t  wan t  to  be  

to ld  tha t  we shou ld  come here  and then a f te r  the  o ther  

w i tness because I  be l ieve  tha t  the  w i tness is  Dudu  Myen i .   

And then I  wa i t  fo r  her  to  be  f in ished because I  must  pu t  i t  

on  record ,  Cha i r,  I  was very  b i t te r  about  the  las t  t ime I  was 

asked to  come here  when Ms Memela  was tes t i f y ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MS MBANJWA:    Because what  happened is  we were  to ld ,  

even when we were  on  the  way,  tha t  we must  rush ,  we  

must  be  here  a t  n ine  and we rushed,  we were  here  a t  n ine .   

Then when we were  on  our  way we were  to ld  tha t  p lease,  

do  no t  m iss  n ine  o ’c lock .   We ar r i ve  here ,  then the  f i rs t  

th ing  I  say  to  Ms Hofmeyr  because  I  see there  i s  a  w i tness  

there .   I  sa id  bu t  were  we be ing  pressur ised when i t  i s  

known tha t  there  is  another  w i tness?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MBANJWA:    because th is  i s  no t  cor rec t .   And then a l l  20 

tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  sa id ,  I  sa id  I  w i l l  compla in  to  the  Cha i r.   

She sa id  go  make your  compla in t  and not  even an apo logy.   

And then,  as  you  know,  Cha i r,  we  sa t  here  the  who le  day  

and I  d id  no t  rece ive  an  apo logy and tha t  i s  no t  the  way we 

normal ly  ge t  t rea ted  even by  Just ice  o f  the  H igh  Cour t .    
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I f  there  i s  a  p rob lem wi th  t ime –  and I  am jus t  an  

a t to rney,  I  am no t  an  impor tan t  pe rson,  bu t  the re  i s  a lways 

an apo logy to  say sor ry  about  the  issue o f  t ime,  I  cannot  

accommodate  you,  those who [ ind is t inc t  –  fa r  f rom mic ]   So 

dur ing  Ms Myen i  I  am rea l l y  no t  p repared.   In  the  even ing ,  

because I  know i t  i s  my duty  to  coopera te  w i th  the 

Commiss ion ,  I  am prepared to  ava i l  myse l f .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  tha t  

i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  i f  a t  a l l  poss ib le  we shou ld  do  i t  in  the  

even ing .   How is  Fr iday even ing  fo r  you,  Ms Hofmeyr?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  shou ld  be  f ine ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  shou ld  be  f ine .   Okay,  shou ld  we -  

Ms Kwinana,  i s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

MS KWINANA:    Can we do i t  on  weekend,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    Can we do i t  on  weekend,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  ava i lab le  on  Fr iday even ing?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  be  ava i lab le  on  Saturday  

i f  we were  to  s i t  on  Saturday?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

MS MBANJWA:    I  wou ld  a l so  be  ava i lab le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  a lso  be  ava i lab le?  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?   I  do  no t  know about  my 
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own s i tua t ion  bu t  I  w i l l  j us t  check …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  e i the r.   I  am go ing  

to  have to  poss ib l y  jus t  make an enqu i ry.   The weekend w i l l  

be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me ,  I  can see i f  I  can  move cer ta in  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  about  Thursday even ing  th is  week,  

Ms Mban jwa?  I s  tha t  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  you?  

MS MBANJWA:    I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t ,  Cha i r,  because  what  I  

in tended to  do  –  I  need to  f i le  the  app l i ca t ion  fo r  leave to  

appea l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  you wanted to  work  on  tha t?  10 

MS MBANJ WA:    I  was hop ing  –  i t  i s  a  p i t y  because I  jus t  

had two urgen t  app l i ca t ions [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   Ms  

Kwinana,  i f  Sa turday is  go ing  to  be  d i f f i cu l t  –  I  sa id  I  am 

not  sure  about  my own s i tua t ion  about  Saturday but  I  

app rec ia te  tha t  everybody is  t ry ing  to  see how we can 

accommodate  one anothe r .   I s  your  Fr iday even ing  –  wou ld  

there  be  any chance tha t  you might  be  ab le  to  move th ings  

on   F r iday even ing?  20 

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  no t  poss ib le ,  Cha i r ,  on  Fr iday .   I  can  

a lso  ava i l  myse l f  on  Sundays.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ava i l  yourse l f  anyt ime  dur ing 

the  weekend?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  apprec ia ted .  

MS MBANJWA:    And what  we can a lso  jus t  say ,  Cha i r ,  

because I  th ink  there  is  a  lady  –  I  th ink  she  is  Ms 

Chenne l l ,  though  I  do  no t  normal ly  look  a t  what  –  bu t  i f  

they  send me a  message,  we can ar range anyth ing  next  

week in  the  even ing ,  we w i l l  rea l l y  t ry  because we know we 

need to  f in ish .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know you were  say ing ,  Ms Hofmeyr ,  

you know tha t  beyond th is  week i t  i s  go ing  to  be  d i f f i cu l t  

fo r  you,  i s  i t  comple te l y  imposs ib le  o r  you cou ld  work  on  10 

someth ing?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  a  b i t  more  imposs ib le  than the  

weekend,  so  I  th ink  I  wou ld  be  bet te r  p laced to  move 

th ings around on  the  weekend i f  your  pos i t ion  was such,  

Cha i r ,  tha t  we cou ld  take  a  Saturday morn ing  s lo t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  I  w i l l  make p lans.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  the  weekend is  no t  conven ien t  fo r  

you,  Cha i r ,  then I  w i l l  see  what  I  can do next  week.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  th ink  tha t  –  because I  am 

a lso  keen tha t  we  t ry  and f ina l i se ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  w i l l  t ry  and  

make a  p lan  about  Saturday.   Maybe le t  us  work  on  the  

bas is  tha t  le t  us  cont inue on Saturday morn ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And a t  what  t ime,  Cha i r ,  wou ld  be  
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conven ien t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  f ine  i f  we s tar t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly  f rom my s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  be  f ine?  

MS MBANJWA:    I t  i s  f ine  w i th  me,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  w i l l  be  f ine .   Okay,  le t  us  say we w i l l  

con t inue in  th is  venue on Saturday,  th is  coming Saturday  

a t  ha l f  past  n ine .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   So we are  go ing  to  

ad journ  fo r  the  day bu t  o therw ise  we are  ad jou rn ing  Ms  

Kwinana ’s  ev idence to  Saturday a t  ha l f  past  n ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We are  indebted ,  thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 4  NOVEMBER 2020  


